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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

Tku1·sday, 7 May, 1874. 

Australian Joint Stock Bank BilL-Court Home and Post 
Office) Condamine.-'relegraph Line Repairer at Con­
d'1mine.-Overloading of Vessels.-Compensation to 
)Ir. 1\"ecker. - Appointments to the Legislative 
CounciL-The Ca<e of llfr. J. G. )IcDonald.-P.ock· 
hampton Gas Companies Bill.-Insolvency Bill. 

AUSTRALIAN JOINT STOOK BANK BILL. 
Mr. MrLES said, in rising to move the 

second reading of this Bill, he did not think 
it would be necessary to take up the time of 
the House for any lengthened period. In 
fact, practically, the whole of the measure 
was contained in the first clause; and he 
hoped honorable members would not, on this 
occasion, stultify themselves by introducing 
such a clause as they inserted in the Bank of 
New South Wales Bill. The Joint Stock 
Bank had thought it advisable to obtain legal 
advice as to whether it was necessary to have 
this Bill passed ; and he held in his hand the 
opinion of Sir \Villiam Manning, which 
stated there was no absolute necessity for it. 
He would read a clause from that gentleman's 
opinion, so that honorable members would be 
able to understand the matter:-

" I do not think there is any strict legalneces· 
sity for obtaining from the Parliament of Queens­
land an Act similar to that now before our own 
Legislature, namely, for extending for a further 
period of twenty-one years, the Banlj:'s power to 
issue notes and bills. But I am prepared to think 
it probable that the Government, or the public of 
that colony, may raise doubts upon the subject, 
which might be productive of practical incon­
venience." 

If honorable members would look at the first 
clause, they would see it was provided that 
whenever Parliament thought proper, it could 
repeal the Act. The first portion of that 
clause read as follows :-

" It shall be lawful for the said Corporation 
subject to the conditions restrictions ancl limita· 
tions contained in the said Act of Incorporation 
and the several Acts amending the same so far "as 
such conditions restrictions and limitations now 
remain in force for and during the further term 
of twenty-one years or until some general provi· 
sion be made by the Legislature in respect of the 
issue of promissory notes payable on demand by 
the banking institutions of the said colony anil no 
longer." 
Therefore, at any time the Legislature thought 
necessary, this Bill could be entirely swept 
away. He was sorry the honorable member 
for Oxley was not present ; but he thought, if 
he took the trouble to peruse the opinion he 
had read, he would not think it necessary to 
introduce such a clause in this Bill as was 
introduced into the Bank of New South 
Wales Bill. He now begged to move-

That the Bill be read a seconcl time. 

Question put and passed. 
The Speaker then, on motion, left the chair, 

and the House went into committee on the 
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Bill. The House having resumed, the Chair­
'tlan reported the Bill without amendment, 
1nd the third reading was made an order of 
the day for to-morrow. 

COURT HOUSE AND POS'r OFFICE, 
CO:NDAMINE. 

J\fr. H. THoRN moved-
" That this House will, at its next sitting, 

resolve itself into a Committee of the ·whole, to 
consider of an Address to the Governor, praying 
that His Excellency will be pleased to cause to be 
placed on the Supplementary Estimates for ISH, 
the sum of £800, for the erection of a Court 
House and Post Office at Condamine." 
He said he supposed it would be necessary to 
give some information as to why the sum was 
asked for. The facts were simply th~se :­
The place used as a court house was in a very 
dilapidated conditLm, being entirely eaten 
away by white ants. He could also say, that 
the cells used for the accommodation of pri­
soners coming from l'l,oma and elsewhere were 
under the same roof. He hoped the House 
would agree to the resolution, as the sum 
asked for was absolutely needed. 

'rhe SECRETAUY FOU PUBLIC vVouKS said 
what the honorable member stated with 
regard to the condition of the court house 
might be quite correct, but there was scarcely 
any busint>SS done there, and it was con­
stantly becoming smaller; and he could not 
see how they would be justified in agree­
ing to vote this sum. There had not been a 
bench sitting there for the last ten years, 
and there was not likely to be. 'rhe post 
office, he thought, was quite sufficient for all 
requirements, and the Government had no 
intention of supporting a motion to spend 
£800 on the post office in a place like Con­
damine. 

Mr. MILES was aware that the court house 
at Condamine was in a. very dilapidated con­
clition ; but he did not think there was much 
business clone there, and he could hardly 
support the honorable member in asking for 
£800. He thought if a few pounds were 
expended on the building, it would, perhaps, 
be sufficient for the next four or five years. 
He hoped the Government would not allow 
the building to tumble to pieces for the sake 
of spending a few pounds to put it in order. 
He believed the walls and roof were in good 
condition, but the floor had been damaged by 
the white ants ; and the lock-up and cells 
also required repairs. He thought £lOO or 
£150 would be ample to put the place iu 
good order. With regard to the post office, 
he believed the present building was ample 
for all requirements, and he could not assist 
the honorable member for Northern Downs 
in getting a new one. In fact, he thought it 
was rather too bad for that honorable membPr 
to ask for such a sum of money ior the 
purposes mentioned in the resolution. He 
thought, however, the Government ought to 
give some asBurance that they would see that 
necessary repairs were carried out. . 

The CoLONIAL SECRETARY thought; it wa~ 
only ricrht to the honorable member who 
brought this motion forward, as well as in 
justice to the Government, to state that they 
had no further information with regard to 
the necessity of this large expenditure than 
that given by that honorable member himself; 
and he thought the House could not be 
expected to vote a sum of £800 npon the 
statement> that had been made. There was 
nothing whatev.er to show that £800 was 
required. He was perfectly aware-he saw 
himself some years ago-that the court house 
was in a clilapiclatecl state ; but no business of 
any importance had been done there for years. 
The Government had no information even 
with regard to the necessity for repairs, but 
they had no intention of allowing the building 
to go to destruction, and it would be put into 
such condition J.hat it could be used for courts 
of petty sessions. With regard to the lJo.st 
office, the Postmaster was bound to keep 1t m 
repair. He w?ulcl suggest to t!1e honora~le 
member to wtthdraw the motwn, and tne 
Government would take steps to inquire into 
the necessity for repairs, and get them done 
to a reasonable extent. 

]\fr. H. THORN said, after the assurance 
from the honorable the Colonial Secretary that 
something would be clone in the matter, he 
would, with the permission of the House, 
withdraw the motion. 

l\fotion withdrawn accordingly. 

TELEGRAPH LINE REPAIRER AT 
CONDAl\:U::'\E. 

Mr. H. THORN, in moving the next motion 
standing in his name, said, he did not think 
anything coming from that side of the House 
would be supported by honorable members 
opposite, and, therefore, he would simply 
move-

That this House will, at its next sitting, resolve 
itself into a Committee of the Whole, to consider 
of an .Address to the Governor, praying that His 

·Excellency will be pleased to cause to be place cl on 
tJ1e Supplementary Estimates for 1874, the sum of 
£120, for the service of a Telegraph Line Repairer 
at Condamine. 

Mr. RoYDS thought the Government ought 
to make some reply. 

HoNORABLE :MEMBERS on the Government 
benches : We have nothing to reply to ; 
nothing has been said. 

Mr. MILES said this was the result ot' 
having a tyrannical Government; they woulJ 
not even condescend to give an answer. 

The SECRETARY FOU PuBLIC WoRKS: We 
have nothing to answer. 

Mr. MILES did not believe that a line 
repairer was necessary ; but he did believe 
that the honorable member for X 01·thern 
Downs would have clone more good if he had 
encleavored to get the present officer's salary 
increased, and made him do the whole of the 
work. 

Mr. PALMEU: They are all increased. 
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1\fr. MILES contended they were not. He 
believed, however, it would be necessary to 
have a line repairer at the place shortly; 
because, when the extension of the line to 
Charleville and St. George was completed, 
the business would be increased considerably. 
The fact of the matter was, that at present 
the greater portion of the time of the tele­
graph station master was taken up in attend­
ing to the repairing of the line, and he knew 
there had been oftentimes considerable 
inconvenience from this. He was, therefore, 
confidently sure that as soon as these exten­
sions were made, a line repairer would have 
to be appointed; but in the meantime he 
thought, if the Government increased the 
salary of the officer in charge, they would do 
all that was necessary for the present. 

The CoLONIAL SECRET.A.RY was very glad 
to hear the honorable member for Carnarvon 
say that the officer who was at present at Con­
damine could do all the work, because that was 
the position the Government took up; they 
were of opinion that he could do all the 
work, and there was therefore no necessity for 
an additional officer. ·whether that officer 
got a higher salary or not would not affect 
the work he had to do. He was in the same 
position as many other officers throughout the 
colony; in all country offices where there was 
not sufficient work to engage the attention of 
an individual in one particular duty, the offices 
of line repairer and officer in charge were 
combined. It was of course useless to keep 
a man hanging on when he had nothing to do. 
That officer had to repair the line a certain 
distance on both sides of the station, as 
was done between Ipswich and Brisbane. 
The officer at Gooclna, who had much more 
business in the way of messages to attend 
to than the officer at Condamine, had also 
to keep a certain distance of the line in 
repair. He could easily understand that 
the time might arrive when, through pres­
sure of business, inconvenience might arise 
from the present arrangements; but he was 
not aware that at present such was the 
case. Until the line was open to Char· 
leville, and there was a large increase of 
business, it would not be necessary to appoint 
another officer ; and he thought the honorable 
member for Northern Downs might rest very 
well satisfied with this discussion in miswer 
to his motion. 

Mr . .J. ScoTT rose merely for the purpose 
of calling attention to a remark which had 
been made by the honorable the Colonial 
Secretary. That honorable member said the 
officer at Goodna was in the same position as 
the officer at Condamine, and that a great 
many more messages passed through his 
hands; but he would call attention to the fact 
that the line which the telegraph manager at 
Goodna had to attend to was a very short 
one indeed, where as the line the officer at 
Condamine had to look after was a very long 
one-something like eighty miles from Dalby 
on the one side, and 120 miles frol!l Roma on 

the other. He hacl there for<' about lOO miles 
of line to keep in order-forty on one side, 
and sixty on the other-which, be thought, 
n-onlrl give him plenty of "1\"ork to do. He 
did not know whether there was much im­
portant telegraphic communication in that 
part of the country or not; but if there were, 
certainly the one officer could not attend to 
the line and the work of the oillce at the same 
time. 

:rvrr. H. THoR::'< said the rf'llSon why he 
made no remarks in moving the motion wa~, 
because he knew it would be utterly useless 
to do so. He thought that, unless another 
officer were appointf'd, it woulcl be far bette1' 
to take the present officer away altogether, 
because he was scarcely ever there when he 
was wanted. He had been away four days 
in the week ; and he thought it would be 
better to take him away altogether, or give 
him a man to assist him. 'l'here was a great 
difference between this case ancl Goodna, 
where the officer had only about ten miles to 
attend to. 

Question put-, and negativeu on division:-
Ayex;, 1~. 

~Ir. Pulmer 
~'forehead 
Ivorv 
Royds' 
·wienholt 

,, H. Thorn 
MacDonal<l 

., De Satge 
J. Tllorn 
rettigrew 
W. Scott 
.T. SPntt. 

Noes, 19. 
:\Ir.l\IacDevitt 

11cllwraith 
}iacalis:ter 

11 l\:Iorgan 
Ji1oote 
Pechey 
Edmondstone 
titephens 
llailey 
Buzacott 
Hemmaut 
Pt:r..Lttie 
:Miles 
Frvar 

:• Di'rk$0U 
Fraser 
Groom 
Moreton 
Graham 

OVERLOADING OF VESSELS. 
Mr. P.A.L?>IER saicl, in moving the motion 

standing in his name, he wished to state his 
reasons for doing so. It was known to 
almost everybody ~ho took an interest in the 
shipping of this port, that the overloading of 
vessels, and particularly stea:qiers, was carried 
on to a very dangerous extent.. He had 
observed it himst•lf, and he had been almost 
ashamed to go to sea in them. "\Yhosesoever 
clnty it was-ancl it would aFpear, from the 
reply given to his question, a few clays ago, 
by the honorable t.llf' Colonial Treasmer, it 
was Captain Manson's-· to see that ships did 
not go to sea in an overloaded state, h£' 
could not conceive what overloading meant if 
that officer dicl his duty. He, himself, had 
seen ships, and steamers particularly, over­
loaded to a most frightfnl extent ; he had 
seen the sponsons actually under water, ancl 
cargo still being crowded in. This he saw on a 
recent occasion when he arrived from Sydney. 
But the reason he more particularly had for 
bringing this matter before the House and 
before the Government, with a view that they 
would take some action-some serious action 
in the matter-was a communication he re-
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ceivecl from Oooktown at the time he placed 
this motion on the paper. \'Vithout disclosing 
names, he might state that a more di;~gr[lce­
ful state of aifhirs he had never heard of. 
He should at }Jresent refrain from mentionin;; 
the name of the "teamer, because he thought 
it would be inYidious to do so; but he would : 
read to the House some extracts from the 
communication, which was well written, and 
eviclent.ly by [I mrrn who had knocked about 
and seen a good deal of the world. He 
Slticl :-

want of discipline on board. Sufficient, however, 
that as a gold miner, who has travelled much, 
both by steam :1nd &ailing vessels, in various parts 
of the world, I cannot conjure up from the past, 
in a history of much vicissitude, anything more 
horrible than that which I experienced on board 
that vcs ;cl." 

The writer [ISked him to bri11g the matter 
before the House, and he thought it was a 
subject of very great importa11ce. In making 
the motion, he begged to call the attention of 
the honorable the Colonial Treasurer, in 

"\Ve obrtetl from Sydney so overcrowdecl 
with pas~enger; that forty or fifty people ha:l. to 
sleep on cleck. All our decks were lnmbrre;l up 
wich ropco, spa1·,, &c., to 'uch an extent that it 
Tms almost an impossible matter for any peraon 
to movP· ahout. 

" X ol 1viH1~'\tanclin·~· onr bPing so o-vercro\vdell, 
on arriving at Brisbane we fomul the >lgents of 
the w"'d were bookin;; more people to sail with 
us. An effort 'vas made by se1·ee<1l of us to in­
Jht~ncB the Shippinz i\Iaster there to stanLl be­
tm:,en us >tnJ the rapacity of the shipowner. He 
promi",' his a,,,,istancc, c1tme clmn1 and insrwdcd 
the vcs;d, aml afL·r much formality the matter 
emlccl in his allowing to go on board the aclcli­
tional passengers, which had been booked in Bris­
bane, the only place for ~UC'h passenger,< bf'ing on 
clr,~·k. At the entrance to IIarV<'.f's Bay, a small 
steamboat from ::\Iaryborongh brought a contin­
gent of hvcnt.yMeight n1ore Yoyagers, ::;cverul hns­
ban1_!~ and \Yivc:',, \vit.h tltl'ir ('hilch~en, bcing 
amongst the number. ;\t 'l'ownsvillt', also, w~ 

' whose department the matter lay, to the neces­
sity for having wme better system in con­
nection with the manner in which vessl'l8 were 
allowcrl to letwe the port. Some papers had 
been laid on the table which excluded th[lt 
honorable member from any laches, so far as 
one vessel was concerned. He referred to the 
"Thomas Brow11," but still he thought there 
must ha Ye bee11 somcthi11g wrong in that case to 

, have called for the interference of that honor­
ablc member ; a11cl he hoped these practices 
would be remedied by insisting upon the 
proper officer doing his duty in a proper and 
eiiieient manner. No matter wh[lt incon­
venience shipowners, or companies, or indivi­
duals might be put to, the law should be 
strictly enforced, so that the port should not 
be disgraced by the manner in which vessels, 
were no"'" allowecl to leave. He now moved--

r ', civc1l ano!hcr r:ontin~c'JJt of huma>J freight, 
until at last, I helicvc I mn within (,lJe mark in 
stating that, including uLbin pas~ :ngcr~, 'Ye harl 
,,omuthing like 320 souls on boarLl." 

He then went 011 to say:-
" 'l'he Imperial Act proscribe±, that any passen· 

gd' ships carrying lOO stocmge passengers, shall 
be proridetl with two watcr-closeb, and for every 
100 hunclrcd additional passengers, two additional 
water·closcts shall be provicl<'rl-separate closets 
being pl'Ovidecl for women ~tncl children. This 
~teamer W>ts permitted to go to sea with two closets 
only for the whole of the steerage passengers, 
inclucling women ancl children. Common decency 
pr2Yents one from entering furthc1· into this part 
of the subject. 

"Yet n1ore, the 8tccrage n~,,onu110clation for the 
female passenger, was approaehccl only through 
the fore t1tbin, occupiecl by male p[lssen;;ers. To 
give you some iclea of how the femak,' sleeping 
apcc,l'tmcnt wa' vt'ntilate<l, I may state tlmt several 
resper'table female''' with their children, rather 
than remain in their own berths, to b<' almost 
•tiilerl to death, ,,lept among tlw male passengers, ' 
in berths which fomc men vacated for them. 

"I1et us now go upon cle't'k. There, incleccl, clicl 
,,, motley crowd present itself-men, women, ancl 
chiltlrcn were huclcllC'cl together more like lower 
animals than human beings. I thank liC'aven the 
weather was propitious." 

After referring io other mattv<'S, he ,;aid-
" Permit me to say, in co11dusion, that I have 

narrat0~l only what can be authcn~ica'ecl. Much 
more I might eay about oiler um'le:', :•teh a< 
<lru::ken and incrrpabl:: men on •,;at('h at ni:ht, 
nE>g1ccting their tln!,y nnd r•'h.:r lhin""' cuch ,;; 

"Thai. there bt' laid upon the table of this 
Hous1', a rei uru s1wwing the number of steamer,; 
aml s:tiling vesrdR wltielt haYt' leH this ancl the 
other ports of the wlony fol' the Endeavour Ri 1·er 
since the 1st clay of January last; giving the names 
of '3nch stcamera or saili11g vessels, their tonnage, 
the mnount of space available for each passenger, 
distinguishing saloon passengers from steerage, 
ancl the number of water:closets available in each 
ship." 

The latter part of the motion met with a 
laugh when he was introducing it, but he 
thought, after reading the letter of this 
sensible man, it would not be considered a 
laughing ll1[1tter that there should be only 
two water-closets for about 320 persons. 

The OoLONIAr, TREASURER said he was 
sorry the honorable member for Port Curtis, 
who had just spoken, had left the House, as 
he felt that he would be wanting in duty to 
the officers of his depm•tmont, if he allowed 
some of the remarks of that honorable mem­
ber to go u11challenged. He believed it was 
the experience of every ship-master coming 
to Queensland ports, that far greater care 
was exercised in regard to the number of 
passengers a vessel was allowed to carry, 
than was shown with ships leaving Sydney, 
and that the majority of vessels which were 
overloaded were overloaded when they left 
Sydney. As regarded the number of water­
closets-and he knew to what vessel the 
hono:rable member referred-there was no 
doubt that the statement reacl by the honor­
able l!l('lllbGr was correct; but perhaps the 
honorable gentleman wa> not aware that, 
accordh1g to the Passengers Act, vessels 
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making passages of less than three weeks 
were exempted from making the provision in 
that respect, which would be required in the 
cases of ships going long voyages; therefore, 
the passengers in the vessel referred to by the 
honorable member suffered from circum­
stances, and not from any infringement of the 
Act. There was no objection whatever on 
the part of the Goverriment to furnish the 
information asked for, although, for the 
reasons he had stated, they could not furnish 
what they did not possess, namely, a return 
as to the number of water-closets. There 
was at the present time before the oiher 
branch of ihe Legislature a Navigation 
Bill, which would deal with the whole 
question of shi11ping and the accommodation 
to be afforded to passengers ; that measure 
had been very carefully prepared by the 
Marine Board, and had, ho l)('lieved, received 
the approval and sanction of the horror­
able member's colleague, the late Colonial 
Treasurer. He thought it would give increased 
powers to the Marine Board to those they 
now possessed, and would prove of great 
benefit to the country. At the present time 
there were thirty different Acts under which 
the Board could proceed, and yet it was 
difficult to say what powers they possessed ; 
but he thought the Bill now under considera­
tion in the other Chamber would meet all 
requirements and give all necessary powers to 
that Board. Unless he was very much 
mistaken, the very case quoted by the horror­
able member had come under his notice, and 
it arose in,the following way, namely, that a 
vessel came from Sydney having 137 passen­
gers on board, but was reported in the papers 
to have 240; but the captain was rather 
negligent in the matter, as it turned out that 
the number of passengers reported was a 
little gas on the part of the steward. A 
number of peoule had gone on board at 
Sydney, at th·e last moment, although 
nothing like the number reported in the 
papers ; but, on her arrival in Brisbane, 
the vessel was surveyed, and when the ship­
ping master found that she had not more 
than she was entitled to carry, she was 
allowed to leave ; at the same time he might 
remind the honorable member that they could 
not always accept the whole of the statements 
made by passengers. There were a great 
many deck passengers, and by law the master 
of a ship was allowed to take them, so long 
as he did not take more than his proper com­
plement. He thought that the fact of the 
Government having introduced a Bill in 
another place, showed that they were aware 
of the necessity of legislation on the matter. 
He thought the honorable member might 
withdraw that part of his resolution referring 
to the water-closets, as the Government were 
not in a position to give any information on it. 

Ur. RoYDS said that one thing had come 
under his notice, to which he would like to 
refer. The honorable Colonial Treasurer 
stated that it was mostly ve8se1~ coming from 

Sydney that were over-crowded, but he (Mr. 
Royds) had been informed by a gentleman in 
Sydney, in regard to a vessel going to Cooks­
town, that although the authorities there had 
refused to allow any more horses to be 
shipped, when she arrived at Brisbane more • 
horses were put on board. It thus appeared 
that the officers here were not so particular 
as they were in Sydney. 

Question put and passed. 

COMPENSATION TO MR. WEOKER. 

Mr. GRool\1 said that in moving the reso­
lution standing in his name, he desired to in­
form the House that he had received a com­
munication from the late honorable Secretary 
for vVorks that the matter had not been 
decided by him, and as soon as the change of 
Government took place, and the present honor­
able Secretary for Works took office, he ad­
dressed a further communication to him, and 
that honorable member in reply desired him to 
bring the matter before the House in the 
manner stated in the resolution. He might 
state that it was not so much the amount of 
cash involved in the resolution as it was the 
principle, whether the Railway Department 
was liable for accidents of such a nature. It 
was that particular principle which the 
honorable member was anxious for that House 
to affirm. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC WoRKs : No. 
Mr. GROOM supposed he was wrong, but 

he had understood that to be the object of 
the honorable member. It appeared that a 
paddock of wheat, the property of Mr. George 
W ecker, was destroyed, or partly so, by a 
spark from a locomotive engine in December 
last year ; a goods train was passing by the 
paddock, and a person in charge of a gate 
there, observed a spark to fly from the engine, 
which, in a few minutes, set the paddock 
in flames. He had a letter from the gate­
keeper, and there was also other evidence to 
show, that the paddock of Mr. Wecker was 
set on fire by the cause he had mentioned, 
and that, had it not been for the exertions of 
some of that gentleman's neighbours, the 
whole crop of 1C8 acres would have been 
destroyed. The evidence showed that the 
total loss was confined to two acres, the 
amount claimed by Ur. W ceker for which 
was £15. He mig'ht mention that two similar 
eases had been heard before the Supreme 
Court in Toowoomba. In one, under the 
judge's ruling, the jury gave a verdict agamst 
the Crown for the losses sustained ; but­
as was usually the case when gentlemen went 
to law with the Crown-when the costs were 
considered, the compensation amounted to 
nothing. In the other case-that of a Mr. 
Walker, the case was, by consent, referred to 
arbitration. His own opinion was that the 
railway should be made responsible for acci­
dents of that nature, for in the neighborhood 
of vV arwick there was a large area under 
cultivation, and if care was not taken to pre-
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vent sparks flying from the locomotives, very 
great injuries might be caused. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC WORKS : 
Tl1ey can get damages. 

Mr. GRoOM had been told by the Under 
Secretary for Works that they could not. 
It had been said that there were vroper spark 
catchers on the locomotiv-es, but he had been 
told by competent persons that there were 
not. He had also been informed that in 
America they used spark-catchers of such an 
improved character, that there was no danger 
at all from fire, and if that was the ease, he 
considered they should be introduced on the 
railways in this colony. He thought there 
was not the slightest doubt that the property 
of Mr. Wecker had been destroyed by a 
spark from a locomotive, and he did not 
think that any person, be he rich or poor, 
should be allowed to suffer from a loss of that 
kind. Such accidents had occurred before 
and might occur again. He desired to fill up 
the blank in the resolution with the words 
"fifteen pounds." 

The SPEAKER said he would have to put 
the motion as it stood, and it would be com­
petent of the honorable member to move the 
msertion of the words when the matter was 
before the committee. 

Mr. GROOM would then move-
. Tha.t this ~ouse :will, at its next sitting, resolYe 
1tself mto a Comm1ttee of the Whole, to consider 
of an Address to the Governor, praying that His 
Excellency will be pleased to cause to be plared 
upon the Supplementa1•y Estimates of 1874, a 
sum not exeeecling £ , as compensation to 
l'lfr. George Wecker, of Toowoomba, fm• losses 
sustained by the partial destruction of a paddock 
of wheat, caused by sparks of fire from the funnel 
of a locomotive. 

The SECRETARY FoR PuBLIC WORKS said 
the honorable member for Toowoomba had 
made a mistake in supposing that his advice 
to him to bring the motion before the House 
was for the purpose of initiating the principle, 
that the Government were liable for all 
damages caused by sparks from locomotives. 
His object in making that recommendation 
was bec~use the individual in question had no 
legal claim, but had only an equitable claim. 
At the present time the Government were not 
responsible so long as they could prove that 
they used all due precautions, and in the case 
referred to, he found that such precautions 
had been used. In the present case he had 
no doubt that the sparks had been allowed to 
escape. The law on the subject was as 
follows:-

" That in Citse damage is occasioned by this 
cause" (sparks from a locomotive), "the railway 
con:pany are not responsible if it were purely 
acCidental, no default or negligence being attribut.­
a?le t~ the railway company or their servants, 
e1ther m the construction of the engine, in the 
mode of driving, or in any other wav. The pro­
jection of a hot cinder or of spark; from a loco­
~otive being used on the line upon land adjacent, 
lB not a trespass, unlese there be eome negligence 

or default. For when the Legislature has sane· 
tioned and authorised the use of a particulA1• 
thing, and it is used for the purpose for which it 
was authorised, and every precaution has been ob· 
servecl to prevent injury, the sanction of the 
Legislature carries with it this conseq uenee, that if 
damage results from the use of such things, in­
dependently of negligence, the party using it is no~ 
responsible. It would seem, however, that the 
happening of mischief f1·om this muse will ruin a 

1 
prima facie case of nPgligPnce, and that the onus 
of showing tha!, it was ael'idcutal, aml not the 
result of any default, will lie upon the railway 
con1pany." 

In the case referred to, from all inquiries he 
had made, there was no negligence on the 
part of the railway authorities; but still there 
was no doubt that the property was burnt by 
a spark from the locomotive. He had not 
the least intention of initiating the principle 
that the Government were responsible, but 
he thought that the man had an equitable 
claim. . , 

Mr. MAcDoNALD would like to know 
whether the origin of the fire had been 
traced to the engine. 

The SECRETARY FOR PunLIC WoRKS : I 
said so. 

Mr. MAcDoNALD thought that the engines 
should be provided with proper spark 
catchers, as it would sometimes be difficult 
to say whether a fire was caused by a spark 
from a locomotive or by some lJerson who 
was smoking, throwing a li~hted match out of 
a carriage into a paddock of grass or wheat. 

Mr. MoRGAN must take exception to the 
statement made by the honorable Secretary 
for Public Works, that the Government were 
not liable for any d~mage caused by sparks 
from a locomotive. What the honorable mem­
ber had read referred only to private railway 
companies, whilst in the instance brought 
forward by the honorable member for Too­
woomba, it was a Government railway, and 
surely they were liable for injuries caused by 
their engines, or by their means. 

Mr. PETTIGREW certainly was of opinion 
that the Government were liable for the 
damage ; they allowed the grass to grow 
alongside the line during the summer months, 
and the slightest spark would conse9.uently 
cause it to take fire ; that was pure negligence, 
as, if the grass was kept properly cut, there 
would not be the same risk. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC WoRKS, in 
explanation, said that if he had considered 
Mr. W ecker had a legal claim, he should 
have prevented the matter coming before the 
House, as then that gentleman would have 
had legal redress ; but he hacl not considered 
he had that claim, but only an equitable one. 

Mr. DE SATGE wishecl to know whether it 
was to be understood that the House estab­
lished a precedent by allowing the motion to 
go or not. If Mr. "\Vecker got the £15, he con­
sidered that a precedent would be established, 
and other persons could come forward with 
similar claims ; he could see nothing more ' 1 
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difficult than to trace the course of a spark 
from an engine. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC WORKS said 
it was to prevent a precedent being made in 
the case, that he allowed it to be brought 
forward. 

Mr. WIENHOLT thought that if compen­
sation was paid to one person, the House 
could not refuse similar applications. He 
considered it was the duty of the people 
themselves to look after their property, and 
if they knew that a railway was }Jassing 
through their land, they should take proper 
precautions, and not expect the Government 
to compensate them for what was really 
caused by their own neglect. 

Question put and passed. 

APPOINTl\IENTI:l TO THE LEGISLATIVE 
COUNCIL. 

Mr. GROOJII, pursuant to notice, moved-
1. That, in the opinion of the Hou~c, the 

recent appointments to the Legislative Council 
we1:e not justified by the inerease of thl' M cm hero 
of the Legislative Assembly under the Redistri­
bution Act. 

2. 'l'hat, viewing the Legislative Council 
as a co-ordinate Branch of the Legislature, this 
House is of opinion that any attempt to uuclul~· 
increase its members, aml more particularly by 
the selection of gentlemen composed almost ex­
dush·cly of pasl oral tenant" of the Crown and 
ilwir ag<mts, is detrimental to the p:tblie inici'e~t, 
and desc>rving of eensurP. 

3. That the foregoing Rc,-olutiom bo for­
warded, by Address, to His Excellency the 
Governor." · 

He said he felt somewhat in a cliiliculty, in 
a House constructed as the present was, in 
seeking the opinions of new membe!'S in 
regard to the conduct of a Government 
before that House had met, especially as 
there had been a change of Government 
before the subject could have been brought 
forward. He had no doubt that he would be 
told that, as the late Governmant was defunct, 
they had no right to censure the pa8t actions 
of that Government; but he contend eel that 
it was the duty of that House, as represent­
atives of the people, to express their opinions 
of the action of the late Gowmmcnt in 
regard to the appointments to the LPgiRlative 
Council made by them on the eve of the 
meeting of a new Parliament. It should not 
be forgotten that it was not intended by the 
founder of the Constitution Act that tlw 
constitution of the Upper House should be 
nominative, when he first submittecl it for 
the consideration .of the Parliament of New 
South \V ales. He framed thr Act in such a 
way that the appointments to the Upper 
House should only continue Lr five years ; 
and if at the expiration of that time the public 
were satisfied with it, that then it should either 
remain a permanent nominative Chamber, or 
that the Legislature of the day should intro­
J.uce a Bill to make it elective, That gentle­
man, Mr. "\Yentworth, gave it strongly as hb 

opinion that it should be elective, When the 
time arrived-when the five years were about 
to expire-for making th~' appointment of 
members to the Upper House permanent by 
law, it became a quescion withthe Governor 
of the day as to what course of action he 
should take, and he ~cut a despatch to His 
Grace the Duke of N mvcastle, who was then 
Secretary of State for the Colonies, on the 
subject. That gentleman evidently considered 
it a matter of great importance, as he sent a 
despatch to the Governor containing 
opinions which should guide the Government 
in making those appointments. One para­
graph of that despatch was as follows :-

" A Government representing, not the entire 
community, but that politic~tl party which is in 
the ascendant, is in an evidently false position 
"·hen called upon to rcconstruci a branch of the 
Legislature. If they adopt the task, it cannot bo 
expected that they will place their own party in a 
minority in the Council. But it is equally pJear 
that if they give themselves a majority in that 
bodv, it will be liable to be viewed as the mere 
crea:'ure of the party which appointed it, and 
that their opponents will probably conceiYc them­
seh-es justificcl on succeeding to office in adjusting 
the inequality by the c-reation of fresh councillors, 
On every change of Ministry the iNiillC argument 
wiil bey equally good; and the consequence may be 
that the first act of each Administration may be 
to swamp the Council, which has been previo"usly 
swnmpecl by their prcclce{'l!sors." 

Now, it was very remarkable that tho~e 
words were almost }H'ophetic ou the part of 
the Duke of Newcastle, because the yery 

, catastrophe which His Grace supposed might 
occur actually occurred at a subsequent 
period in the colony of New South Wales, 
as, no doubt, was in the recollection of many 
honorablc members. The Governor of that 
colony submitted that despatch to his respon­
sible advisers ; and as the claullc of the 
Constitution Act ga>e him the power, as 
representative of Her ~T ajesty, to nominate 
gentlemen to the Legislative Council-be­
cause he could ignore the recommendations 
of his advisers-he called to the Council the 
most eligible and disinterPs1 ed men of that 
colony-men of various public opinions and 
oi much general influence. He ( i\1r. Groom) 
lmcllno don bt that the action taken by the 
Governor, who was then Sir John Young, 
met with the apprubation of the Duke of 
Newcastle, and that he did appoint gentle­
men who were a creclit to the colony. Now, 
that system was adopted by this colony from 
New South \Vales, and, ·whether for gcod or 
evil, the colony was now under it. He con­
sidered it was for the good or evil of the 
colony fo~· the people lo watch most carefully 
any Government wh 1 app-Jinted members 
to the Upper Chamb:'r. • The Constitution 
Act appointed a minimum of member,:, but 
not a maximum. Although the late Gov­
ernment raised up the numl--er to twenty­
eight, it was ~till within the pruvince of the 
present Go>ernmcnt to ask His :Excc,llency 
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to appoint additional members sufficient to 
carry out their views, should it be necessary 
for them to do so. In order to prevent any 
misconception on that point, he would read a 
paragraph from a despatch from Lord Gran­
ville to Mr. Robertson not long ago. It 
appeared that n:Ir. Forster had submitted two 
names as members of the Upper House, there 
being at the time thirty-one members. He 
submitted two names, but His Excellency the 
Governor refused to appoint them. .Mr. 
Forster considered it was the duty of the 
Governor to act upon the advice tlf his }Iin­
isters, but his colleagues did not a:;ree \1 itlt 
him, and he resigned and wrote to the Secre­
tary of State on the subject ; and when ;\lr. 
Bobertson took office, he commented verr 
strongly upon the interference of the Secre­
tary of State for the Colonies in the m:ttter. 
That opinion was caused by the receipt of the 
following despatch from Lord Granville: --· 

" I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt 
of y<nn· despatch, Xo. 109, of the 14th July, 
enclosing a mcmor>tndum made by J\Ir. Robertson 
on the subject of my despatch, No 2, of the 18th 
December last, 1'1..-lating to some additional ap­
pointments which had been macle to the Le..;isla­
tivc Council of X ew South 'Vales. \Vhen 
writing that de>pateh, I was fully aware that the 
number of the Upper House in New South 
\Vales was unlimited. I am also fully aware that 
on certain critical occasions it mav become not 
only expedient, but indispensable· to bring the 
two Houses into harmony, by creating, or threat­
ening to create, a number of Legislative Coun­
cillors sufficient for that pmpose. But it is not 
the less clear that the whole ntlue and character 
of the Upper Chamber will be clc,troyed if every 
succe'<sive ::\finistry is at liberty, \Yithout any sufii­
cient occasion, to obtain a majority in the Council 
by the Cl'ention of Councillors. To prevent this, 
some constitutional understamling, having in the 
public eye the form of a valualJle, although not 
absolutely an inflexible prececlent, ancl limiting 
the circumstances under which such creations ean , 
properly take place, is desirable. 8 uch an under- ' 
standing did, in fact., exist, between Sir John 
Young aml his successiw )finistprs; and the 
object of my despatch of the 18th Dccembr·r was 
to enforce on you the inconvenience of any 
course which was f'alculatecl, without necessity, 
to improve the authority of that understanding, 
and to the expediency of making it clear in the 
interest of the eolonial constitution that any 
neceso:1ry violation of it.s lett~r wa, not really a 
violation of its spirit ; that is to s:1y, that it was 
resorted to not to strengthen a party, but in 
realitv for the convenience of lp·.,islation." 
He c~nsidered that those wo~ds applil'd with 
very great force indeed to a mall er which he 
shoulcl presently bring under the notice of 
the House. Now, the LPgislati,·e Council, 
up to the time of the dissolution of the last 
Parliament, consisted oftwentr-one members, 
four of whom were appointed by the late 
Government; but in the address from His 
Excellency the Governor, with which the 
late Premier opened the present Parliament, 
there was a paragraph to the effect, that in 
consequence of the increased number of 

2c 

members in the Legislative Assembly, caused 
by the passing of the Redistribution Bill, 
the members of the Legislative Council had 
been proportionably increased ; and some 
three or four days prior to the resignation of 
the honorable membt>r, a Gazette appeared 
in which some seven members were nomi­
nated. Now, he denied that it was necessary 
to make that large increase in consequence of 
the increase made in the Assembly by the 
passing of the Redistribution Bill. There 
had not been any other reason assigned, and 
probably the honorable member for Port 
Cnrtis hacl not had any opportunity for 
giving any explanation; but it might app~ar 
to honcwable members strange that those m­
creases should have been made, as they were 
not made, to quote the words of Lord Gran­
ville, 

''to bring the two Houses into harmony." 

In order that honorable members should see 
how far it was neees:;ary to increase tho 
number of Legislative Councillors in propor­
tion to the Assembly, he thought that he 
should look to the relative numbers in other 
colonies, not only as a guide, but in defence 
of the position he had taken up. In Victoria, 
when the Legi~lative Council was elective, 
the number was thirty, and they were elected 
by special franchise, and the members them­
selves had a special property qualification. 
That body was, as very properly put by a 
great thinker, Mr. Higginbotham, a represen­
tative assembly of wealth; and probably from 
that very circumstance it was very antagonis­
tic to the other branch of the Legislature of 
that colony, which was composed of sev-enty­
eight members. In New South \Vales, the 
Council consisted of twenLy-six members, 
and the Assembly of :;eventy-two. The 
Council was formerly composed of twenty­
•even members, but one died ; and when Mr. 
I'arkC'i< 11 a:; challenged for not having filled 
up the vacancy, he stated that that was the 
numb0r agreed U])OD by Sir ,John Young and 
Mr. \Ventworth. But in this colony, whilst 
there was an At~sembly of only forty-two honor­
able members, there was a Legislative Cou!lcil 
of twenty-eight. Had it remained at twenty­
one, which was the number when the honorable 
memher for Port Curtis took office, it might 
have been said that the number was not too 
great; but he considered that it was very 
strange and singular that only three or four 
days before the commencement of the pre­
sent session, and when that honorable mem­
ber must have known that he was in a 
minority in the Assembly, he should have 
rosorted to the extraordinary expedient of 
nominating seven members to the Council. 
He believed it wa~ done fr·om purely political 
motives-what those were, honorable mem­
bers could form but one opinion-the honor­
able member for Port Cm·tis could say 
whether that opinion was right or wrong. 
There were honorable members returned to 
that House pledged to a certain course in 
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reference to certain matters, amongst others 
O'W regarding the Crown lands of the colony ; 
ancl he therefore could not come to any othPr 
conclusion than tltat the inerease of members 
in nnothcr place was to stifle any legislation 
upon that question wl1ich might take place 
in that House. If honorablA members would 
take the trouble to look at the names of the 
seven gentlemen recently appointed to the 
LegislatiYo Council, they would find abun­
dance of evidence in support of that allegation. 
The honorable member for Port Curtis, when 
introducing his Redistribution Bill, stated 
that hi~ objt>ct was to haye reprc~enteu all 
the interests of the colony. Although the 
honorable member f;aid, a few evPnings pre­
viously, that he was nol Yeryproud of his Elec­
tions Act for 1872, yet he had great reasons to be 
sati>fied with his Hedistribution Act, which 
was certainly the fairest there could he, as all 
interest; were represented by it; it was owing 
to tl1at fact, perhaps, that the honorable mem­
ber was at the present time sitting on the 
Opposition side of the House. He· believed 
that the nominations to the Council were made 
for the purpose of checking any legislation of 
the Assembly which the pnulic might con­
sider necessary to their interests. If the 
honorable member was in earnest when he 
said that his object was to increase the 
Council proportionately to the new Assembly, 
why \\"as it that, in his appoinments, he had 
selected only one gentleman representing the 
commercial interest, and all the others repre­
senting the Darling D01ms interest? Honor­
nble members could not shut thrir ears to 
what they heard outRide of that House; and 
it was commonly stated abroad that they 
were simply ''"asting their time in discussing 
the measures which had been submitted to 
them by the present Government-that they 
were merely passing Bills which, when sub­
mitted to the other branch of the Legislature, 
would be thrown out. Whether that \\·ould 
be the case or not, it was not for him 
to say ; he hoped, for the sake of the 
cmmtry, and for the credit of honorable 
gentlclllen in another placc1, that it would not 
be. At the ~ame tinw, they could not shut 
their eyes to the fact that many of the very 
desirable measures now introduc!:d by the 
Government might be rPjected by the other 
HonRe. He thought it >Ytts highly dangerous 
for any GovernmPnt to follow tho Pxample of 1 

}fr. Cowper, who, on one occasion, when he · 
wanted to pass his Land Bill, swamped the 
[Tpper House by appointing a number of 
gentlemen, who retired very soon after that 
Bill was pa~secl. But he could not help 
l'L<garding the swamping by the honorablc 
gentkman opposite, l\fr. Palmer, to be even 
worse than that of 1\f r. Cooper ; because that 
gentleman had boldly stated in the Assembly 
the course which he intended to pursue, and 
the As:,embly approved of the action he in­
tPndccl to takE'. But the honorable member 
for Port Curtis had not the same excuse ; he 
had not the excuse that it was for +he "con-

: VE'nirnce of legislation"-not for the purpose 
of strengthening legislation; and he had put 
it completely out of the reach of the Govern­
ment of the dav to make any such rPcom­
mendation to His Excellency. It could not 
be, he thought, that the framers of the 
Constitution .~et ever contemplated that it 
would be necessary to h&l'e recourse to 
such a swam1Jing; he was quite sure 
that that great man, Mr. \Ventworth, 
never dreamt of such a thing. Sir John 
Young, when he nominated two members at 
the instance of Mr. Hobert~on, explained to 
the Secretary of Hate for the Colonies that 
owing to thl' deaths they had in three years, 
they had been called upon to appoint nine 
mPmhers; and he gave expression to the 
opinion that during such a period he thought 
the number was rather large. To quote his 
own words:-

"It appeared to me that the crmtion o:f nine 
new members in so short a period was a large 
ad1ition to the LcgislatiYe Council, and would 
have been >;O considcrecl cYen with reference to so 
lrrrrre a body as the House o:f Ioorcls in I~nglancl. 
Ho"w much greater then to so limited a Chamber us 
the Legislative Council oft hi' c-olony ?" 

But how did that apply to the honorable 
member opposite, who, without any reason at 
all, except the very clear reason of desiring 
to check the voice of the people through their 
representatives in that House, had, within 
three or four days of the meeting of Parlia­
ment, nominated seven members to the LE'sris­
latiYe Council, six of whom belonged to the 
pastoral interest? The intention of the 
honorable member was quite clear, and was 
evidently opposed to the opinions to the 
Duke of N cwcastle, who said, in one of his 
despatches:-

"No GoYermnent can subsist unless the Legis­
lature' is an obj2ct o:f re:;rect. :No party GoYern· 
mcnt can long subsist with advantage to the com· 
nnmity unless rival political parties are tacitly 
agreed that gTeat constitutional questions shall be 
trea!ecl "·ith reference to the public good. anclnot 
to party intel'csto." 
He could not say that the honorable member 
opposite had shown much care and consider­
ation for the respect of \\·hich the Legisla­
tiYe Couneil should be an object. He e.1nld 
not say whether the honorable memher 
opposite had the same care or considern tion 
for the respect of the Legislature ; and in 
saying that, he wished to be understoorl as 
not reflectinJ in any way upon the ability 
or capacitir'5 of the gentlemen 11·ho had 
been recently appointed to the Legislnti\-e 
Council. The danger of the swamping J10wer 
given to the Upper House was very clear, 
and he would point out one instance in which 
it had been shown. Not very long ago-it 
was in 1869-a very important mea;;ure was 
introduced in that House by the honorable 
member for Carnarvon, who then represented 
:;\faranoa, Pallerl the St~tion WagPsBill. That 
Bill was necessitated by the circumstances 
of the colony, as at that time, owing io the 
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depression of 1866 and the followin~ yea1•q, 
large station properties were forced into t lw 
market by the mortgag<'llS, and the peoplo 
employed on those stations in many instances 
lost their wages. The object of tl11• Bill was 
to make it compulsory on the mortgagee·; to 
pay thosl\ wages, and it was pas:>ed by the 
Assembly, and sent up to the other Chamber. 
But whaG was the fate of it there? He found, 
on referring to tl1e Courier of that date, that, 
on the motion by i\Ir .. John Douglas for the 
second reading, an amendment was carried, 
that it be read a second time that clay six 
months, by a division of iiYe members against 
three. Now· it uppeared to him a farce that 

servants of thP Crown. That was a position 
which could not for one moment be assumed 
by the honorable gentleman opposite, for the 
simple reason that. with the rxception of :\fr. 
Ramsay, 'd1e genLlemcn appointed by him 
were unknown to political life. 

An HoNOI!ABLE .l\lE}IBRR : ::'\Ir. G01·don 
Sandeman. 

.l\Ir. Gaoo:11: Yes; :\Ir. Sandeman was an 
old member of the Assembly. 

AN Hoxori .. ti.BLE :\lEMBi R: l\Ir. 13uchanan. 
Mr. Gnoo:u: \Vel!, although that gentle­

man had been a member, he could not be 
looked U]l•Jn as an old member-as one of 
long experience. He believed he hacl now 
expressed his views in regard to the question, 
and he should be glad to hear some expres­
sion of opinion from the honorable the 
Colonial Secretary as to the course to be 
pursued by him. He certainly could not see 
why it was nect':,sary, because the Assembly 
had been increased from thirty-two to forty­
hYo, the Council should be increased from 
twenty-one to twenty-eight. He begged to 

it should be in the power of five members 
to throw out a measure, and thus up;et the 
legii'lation of the Assembly; and it did not 
appear to him at all surprising that a deep­
thinking man like Mr. Higginbotham, of 
Victoria., should have stated that, in many 
instances, the Legislative Councils could be 
done without. .Now, although he (:\fr. 
Groom) did not go so far as that, he still 
thought that, >Yhen an important and urgent 
measure of the Lower House could be thrown 
out by ih·e members in another place, there 
was some force in such a remark, for there 
was no appeal. Then, again, the idea of such 

t move the resolutions standing in his name. 
.:VIr. PECREY seconded the motion. 

a measure as the Payment of .Members Bill 
being rejected! That measure had pa3sed 
the Assembly once, and had been reject·,;d, 
and possibly might be rejected again. He 
app1·oved of the plan in America- that, if a 
measure passed by one branch had been 
rejected three times by another, the Presi· 
dent had the power to malw it necome law; 
and ,it was almost a question with him 
whether such a power should nut exist in 
thi~ colony. He thought it was peculiarly 
the province of a member of that House, 
if he thought that an injustice had been 
done, to express his ideas, as he (JI.fr. 
(;.rooru) lw.J endeavorecl to do that evening. 
He need not say that he felt very strongly on 

1 

the que,;tion, because he believed that, whilst 
legislation of a certain character was neces­
sary to the interests of the country, there 
was a large nnmber of gentiemen in the other 
Chamber who would do their utmost io prevent 
it from becoming law. He knew that the 
honorable member for Port Curtis was 
responsiblE' for that state of affairs; and he 
would s11y again, that he did not believe that 
thPre was the slightest necessity for the 
increase to the number of members to the 
Upper House, made on the recommendation 1 

of that honorable gE'ntleman just before he ~ 
left office. He had looked very carefully 1 

into the records of othE'r colonies, a1,d he 
eould not find an instanc'e anywhrre else of 
the head of a Government packing the l'pper 
House just a few days before leavinc: office. 
.Mr. Glatls!ono had certainly, before leaving 
office, made many a;Jrointments, but there 
was no analogy between the t"·o cases, as the 
appointments of Mr. Gladstone were of men 
who had for a great number of years been 

1 

Mr. PAL::UER said he had hoped that some 
honorable member of in!:luence on the oppo· 
site side of the House-some member ot the 
Ministry perhaps, who hatl, he had no doubt, 
forged the shot which the honorable member 
for Toowoomba had fired-would have ad­
dressed the House before he rose to reply; 
but it was very evident from the pause which 
had taken l'l1tcc that not one intended to 
come forward until after it was put out of 
his power to reply to any statements that 
might be made. He would, therefore, shortly 
reply to the assertions of the honorable 
member for Toowoomba. There were a few 
facts he should lc:a\·e to that House and to 
a much higher tribunal than that House­
namely, to the public at large. The 
opinions of the honorable member for Too­
woomba as to his motives-and when he 
spoke of his motives, he referred io those 
of his Government of which he had the 
honor to be head for nearly four ycaro­
and he hoped, therefore, that when he spoke 
of himself, it would b,, understood that he. 
was speaking of his Government-an::! the 
imputations conveyed against him by that 
honorable member, he treated >Yith the most 
supreme eontcmpt ; he had not the slightest 
respect, not the mo~t distant respect, for any 
imputation that could possibly be made by 
that honorahle member, and it was not the 
first time he hacl told that honora ble member 
tlw c~me thi11p: in that House. He certainly 
thou."hG it would haYe been more to the 
(1i;:;nity of the Government to have put some 
ho!lorable member of more weight in charge 
of that matt< r; mlfl he was astJnished that 
the honorable l'remi,Jr-who could have made 
a far better speech on the subject, and who 
could have concluded such a speech, as it was 
evident the honorable member for Toowoomba 
wished him to do, by impeaehing the late 
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Governmf'nt-should have left it to the horror­
able member to bring forward such resolutions 
as had just been read. He did not lwow how 
the maLter coulcl end, or what could bv made 
of it. He thought such a question should 
never have been brought before that House. 
He thought that the constitution of the other 
Chamber was a matter with which that House 
had nothing whatever to do. 

HoNORABLE ME~IBERS: No, no. 
Mr. PALMER: He thought so; and that, 

unless some action was initiated in the 
ChambE'r to which he referred, that House 
had nothing to do with it. But as certain 
statements had been made bv the honorable 
member who brought forward the motion, it 
would become his duty to refer shortly to 
them. In the first place, that honorable 
member had treated the House to a great deal 
of what, in so far as they were concerned, 
might be regarded as ancient history ; tlH' 
honorable member hac! thought fit to air his 
erudition, and to go into the earl_y history of 
the constitution of New South \Vales; but 
what that had to do with that House he (Mr. 
Palmer) was at a loss to imagine. Mor,t 
honorable mrmbers ~>ho had taken the trouble 
to read up those matlers must know that 
there was no connection whatever between 
the late Government filling up the Upper 
House and Mr. Co~>per literally swamping 
the Legislative Council of New South Wales. 
The action of Mr. Cowper was taken with a 
certain object-an object expressed by him 
openly, namely, to carry his land measure 
through the lTpper House the members of 
which Upper House stood in his way, and he 
(Mr. Palmer) considered ver_y properly so­
they having opinions of their own which they 
were bound to act upon. But Mr. Cowper, 
through the action of his Government, lite­
rally swamped them, not with a number of 
gE'ntlemen of years' political experience, but 
with people not >rorthy of the name of 
men, who lent themselves to Le +he tools 
of Mr. Cowper for a. day or two, in order 
to pass a Bill, and then retired into private 
life. The idea of comparing his action, which 
was to appoint a number of gentlemen to 

.make up the legitimate number of the Upper 
House, with that of Mr. Cowper, 11·as there­
fore most absurd ; there was no para,lel what­
ever between the t~>o cases. 'lhe facts of the 
case were very simple, and there could be no 
danger of his intentions being misunderstood, 
as he had clParly stated them in the speech 
d!'livered b_y His Excellency in opening the 
present Parliament. He had not gone behind 
the bush in anything he had d·me; he had 
not gone down to that House without nailing 
his colors to the mast; he had not attempted 
to conceal anything or to keep anything out of 
the Governor's 8peech, which it was well 
kno~>n vYas the speech of His l<:xcdlency's 
l\1 inistcrs. He stated that his object in 
making the additions was a Vf'ry simple one, 
namely, that the Assembly having increased 
t.he number of its members from thirty-two to 

forty-two, he considered that a proportionate 
increase should be made in the Upper House; 
and if the honorable membrr who moved t1e 
motion knew anything of the enormous cor­
respondence which had taken place on the 
subject, he woNld lmve known that it had been 
laid down that the Upper House should con­
sist of two-thirds of the number of the As­
SE'mblv. 

The SEcRETARY FoR PuBLIC LANI s : vv"ho 
said so? 

Mr. PALMER: The honorable memhE'r has 
the correspondence; he can find it out. 

The SECHETARY FOR PuBLIC LAJ\DS: Who 
by? 

1\Ir. Pn-:~IER: By a dispatch from the 
Home GovE'rnment, which anybody can dis­
cover for himself to-morrow. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC LANDS : I do 
not think it exists. 

}\fr. PALl\IER: I do not care what the hon­
orable member thinks-I have not the least 
respect for what he think~; I do not care 
ono fi·action whether he believes it exists or 
not. but I say that it does. 

The StiCRETARY FOR PuBLIC LANDS: I do 
not think so. 

The SPEAKER : The honorable member is 
not in order. 

The ~ECRETARY FOR PuBLIC WoRKS: Hear, 
hear. 

:Mr. P AT.J\1ER : The honorable member, in 
his usual style, was trying to put him out in 
his remarks, but the only effect of that would 
be to keep him a little longer on his legs ; 
at the same time, he would tell the honorable 
member that he had no right to interrupt 
him, and the less the honorable lllE'mber said 
the better. He would repeat that such a 
correspondence did exist, and had done so 
for years, and was to the effect that the 
Upper House should consist of h1 o-thirds of 
ihe number of members in the Assembly. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC LANDS : I 
deny it. 

hh. l\IonEHEAD: It is sure to be true if he 
denies it. 

The SPEAKER: This is a very important 
debate, and I do hope honorable members 
will avoid personalities. 

1\Ir. PALMER: It beg!ln from a Minister of 
the Crown, who should have known better, 
and who ought to have set a good example to 
the House, instead of which he set a very 
bad example indeed. He would say 
again, that the. corre~pondence did exist, 
and that that House having passed an Act 
increasing its number from thirty-two to 
forty-two, he was justified in asking His 
Excellr ncv the Governor to increase the 
number of members of the Upper House 
to their proper proportion ; it wns upon 
those grounds that the increase was made. 
Another charge made by the honorable 
member for Toowoomba W8S, that the 
Gazette appointing those gE'ntlemen only 
appeared t"l':o or three days before the open­
ing of Parliament; but he doubted whether 
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there was another honorable member besides 
the honorable member for Toov1oomba who 
did not know that the arrangements for 
making those appointments mu~t have occu­
pied considerably more than two or three 
days before the opening of Parliament. Did 
not the lwnorable member know that it was 
not a position ~o very much coveted--that 
for one acceptance there might be three or 
four refusals? Did that e>er enter into the 
mind of the honorable member ? He could 
safely say that he had requested a number 
of gentlemen to allow him to lay their names 
before His Excellency for appointment to 
the Upper House, and that he hacl refusal 
after refusal; and so far from havi~g selected 
pastoral tenants of the Crown m prefer­
ence to other~, he could prove that offers 
were made to a number of gentlenwn 
~ntirely unconnectod with squatting pursuits 
m any way, and that they were refused. 
t:lc;:> far from wishing to pack the U ppC'r House 
w1th pastoral tenants of the Crown, he had 
clone everything in his power to induce other 
classes of the community to take seats in 
that House. He was not going, nor did he 
believe h<J had any right to make use of the 
names of the gentlemen in this col•my to 
whom he had written, and with whom he 
had. communicated on the subject of their 
wrllmgness to be presented to His Excellency 
the Governor as persons fit t.o sit in the 
Upper House. But he again boldly asserted, 
whatever some individual members of that 
House might choose to think upon the sub­
ject-and he believed, he flattered himself, 
that the majority of the House had sufficient 
confidence in his word to believe that he 
would not state what did not occur-that 
before offering seats to many of the gentle­
men who now occupied seats in the Upper 
House, he made the same offer to a larger 
nun1ber of gentlemen who were n1en1bers ot' 
the mercantile community. But it must be 
patent to every lronorable member of that 
House that mercantile men, as a rule, in this 
colony could not afford time from their com­
mercial pursuits to devote their attention to 
political matters. In fact, many of them 
considered it would be injurious to them­
selves-and they ought to be the best judges 
of their own interests-to take any part in 
political life. That 1ms, of course, a ques­
tion which rested entirely with themselves, 
and with which he had nothing to do. But 
since this question came on he had taken the 
trouble to obtain, through a friend, a list of 
the pre3ent members of the Legislative 
Council, and he had ticked off, out of the 
twenty-eight members of which that House 
consisted, the names of fourteen who were 
totally unconnected with pastoral pursuits. 
Now, admitting that six out of the seven 
members whcm he had appointed were pas­
toral tenants of the Crown-but he would 
never admit that they had no other interest 
in the colony; for those engaged in pastoral 
prusuits had as much interrst in the welfare 

of the colony, and in many instances a great 
deal more, than any other section of the com­
munity-but admiLting that, he ~till main­
ta:ned that the Upper House fmrly repre­
sented the various interests of the colony. 
There were fourteen members-not including 
the honorable the Postmaster-General, who, 
althon""h he might, from family connections, 
be int~rested to some extent in pastoral 
pursuits, could hardly be considered a repre­
sentative of the pastoral interest·- out of 
t1Yeuty-eight, who, as far as he knew-and 
he knew a goocl deal about such matters­
were entirely unconnected with pastor.al p~r­
suits; and he repeated that the Lef(rslat1ve 
Council fairly represented the great mterests 
of this colony. And he would also say that 
his object-his duty was, so far as he could, 
to recommend to His Excellency the Governor 
the names of parties who would fairly repre­
sent the varied interests of this great colony. 
He believed, and he hoped, he had succeeded 
in this; and if he had failed, he had failed 
through error in judgment, and not wilfully. 

HoNORABLE MR~1BERS: Ht>ar, hear. 
J\Ir. PAL111ER: But he thought it was very 

vrematurc indeed to answer a question before 
it had been asked; to guess at results and 
put them down, as the honorable member 
for Toowoomba. had done, as foregone con­
clusions, before the members of the present 
Legislative Council had even been tried. He 
thought it was begging the question - a 
question that ought never to be enter­
tained; that ought never in fact to have 
been introduced, and with which that House 
was utterly unable to deal. The parallel 
between Yictoria and X ew South vVales was 
a most unhappy one. The Premiers of both 
of those colonies were virtually trying to 
destroy the Upper House. The Premier of 
Victoria had announced in his eleetioneering 
th1dress that one of the great objects of his 
Ministry would be to reconstruct the Upper 
House and prevent a dead-lock, which before 
now had occurred. The parallel with regard 
to that colony again did not hold good, 
because the Upper House in Victoria was 
electi Ye. In New South Wales, the Premier 
of that colony last session introduced a Bill 
dealing with the Upper House, which was 
thrown out because it had not been initiated 
in that House ; and he now persistently 
refused to appoint members to that House 
in order, he (.Mr. Palmer) believed he had 
slated, that it might be forced to remodel 
itself. He had no wish "hatcver to destroy 
the Upper House here. It was part of our 
present constitution, and he maintained that 
so far, to tlw best of his judgment, ever since 
its foundation, the Upper House had done its 
duty, and clone it wPll; and he had no reason 
to suppose that the present House would not 
do its dutv also. At all event:>, he said it 
was beggiri'g the question to say it would not. 
Then, again, he was twitted that on the eve 
of meeting that House, with the knowledge 
that he would not have a majority, hP had no 
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bu 'iness to make anv recommendations with 
re~ard to the Upper "Home. Tbat, again, he 
de:1ied. He had no knowledge that the late 
(7uvcrnment would not have a majority. From 
all the calculations he wasabletomakc, he lully 
expected a majority of two or three at the 
lea,,t; and any ~\linistry that had a majority of 
even one or two on going into office could carry 
on, because they were pretty sure to increase 
that majority. No doubt it was very easy 
to forrsee an event after it had happPI1ed; it 
W:H easy now to say that it was evident he 
would be in a minority when the House met, 
but he again denied that he knew anything of 
the sort. That his calcubtions were wrong 
he did not complain of for one moment; he 
calculated on a certain majority of two, but 
that ealcnlntion had failed-failed most com­
})letely, as the present majority on the 
GoYernment side of the House clearly showed; 
so the prophecy, as he ~aid before, was after 
~he eveut. That was a gift they all possessed 
m common ; bnt he was not to be held re· 
sponsible that his surmises or his calculations 
did not come out t:orreetly. vVith re,;pect to 
these appointments, and with the explanation 
lw had made, he was quite willing to take 
upon himself the whole of the responsibility 
cr,nnected with the recommendations he 
had made. He was glad to st'e that the 
honorable member for Toowoomha, while 
making broadcast insinuations against him­
self, did not attempt to impute any further 
crime against him with respect to these 
recommendations than that the gentle­
men appointed were, with one exception, 
pastoral tenants of the Crown. He was 
very glad the honorable member did not 
do so, because it saved him the trouble of 
entering into a defence of those gentlemen. 
He had no reason to regret the appointment 
of a ~ingle individual he had recommended, 
nor should he for one moment regret it until 
he saw by their actions they deserved that 
regret. He had no doubt the appointment of 
a nry different class of men would suit the 
honorable member for Toowoomba bettC'r; 
but he had yet to learn that it was the duty 
of any Premier of this colony to take the 
opinion of that honorable member or any 
otlwr honorable member, or any member of 
the community, upon the recommendations 
that he made to His :Excellency the Gov­
ernor. It was his clear duty to propose men 
he thought best adapted for the particular 
service he recommended them for; and he 
was not bound by what anyone supposed as 
to the fitness o± the gentleman whom he 
might recommend. Although he knew there 
was a probability that the question would 
come on to-night, he came qu.ite unprepared 
with any reply. He had very greal doubt. whe­
ther the question could Le put, and he did not 
thinl' it llcces>'ary w make any prepn.ration; 
but the honorablc the t-ipcnkl'r having seen 
fit, and no doubt he had studied the matter 
carefully, to put the question from the chair, 
he felt bound to reply, He felt, although he 
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stood there prepared to take the whole 
responsibility of these appointments on his 
own shoulders, that this motion was aimed at 
much higher game than his poor self. And, 
although, little as he might regard the in­
diYidual opinion of honorable members of that 
House, he should feel, and deeply feel the 
censure of the majority of it on his condud 
-yC't, with the proud consciousness that he 
had done nothing more than his duty to the 
eomHry; that he had endeavored to the best 
of his humble capacity to recommend to His 
Exc0llency men who had a stake in the 
country, men of mature age, not boys, not 
friends, not men without experit>nce in the 
c:;lony, he should feel, whether the majority 
of the House censured him or not, that 
he had done his duty. 

The Hon. D. B. MoRETON said the few 
words he would say on the subject in ex· 
planation of the reason why he would not 
give a silent Yota upon it, would arise from 
motives other than those of a partisan shape. 
He fretily endorsed much that had fallen 
from the honorable gentleman at the head of 
the Opposition, and although the honorable 
member for Toowoomba had made an able 
speech in support of the position he had taken 
up, yet he could not, for on<', as a member 
who neitht>r belonged to one side of the 
House nor the other, but who had views 
of his own, and who would at any moment 
undertake to vote in accordance with 
those views, approve of the expression 
of opinion given by that houorable mem­
ber. - Although there was one portion of 
the resolutions he might vote for, namely, 
the first- he certainly could not vote 
for the second or third-yet, after hearing 
the remark made by the honorable member 
for l'ort Cnrtis, a remark which entirely 
coincided with his own opinion-that the 
resolutions were aimed at a much higher per­
son than any person in that House-he for one 
would dissent from the whole of them. He 
gave these views for the purpose of at once 
stating that he was not actuated by any 
partisan feeling, but simply because he be­
lieved it was not their proper position, either 
on one side of the House or the other, to 
impute more motives than they could help to 
those who exercised the power they held as 
Ministers of the Crown. It was a common 
practice in that House-at least so far as his 
experience went it had been-to try to impute 
motives to every honorable member who gave 
a vote ; but he hoped the time would come 
when they would be judged by measures and 
not by insinuations and charges of motives 
from which their votes were supposed to 
originate. Although as an independent mem­
ber of the House, he agreed, to a certain 
extent, in the opinion ex1 ressed in the first 
n'solution, that the increase in the number of 
members in the Upper House was not justiiieJ. 
by the increase in that Chamber ; still, at 
the same time, believing that if they carried 

1 
the resolution it would be fixing censure on a 
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much higher person than anyone in that 
Hom: ~, he woulclnot vote for any of them. 

Mr. Buz.l.cor,;· 'tid b.' had not the slightest 
intention when this motion was brought 
forward of m:tking any olucrvat.ions with 
regard to it: but sec'ing that the honorable 
member for 'i'oowoomba stated he addrnsed 
his remark~ more particularly to those hcm­
m·able membcrd who had recently taken 
seats in that .House, he thought some 
of them should, at any rate, stand up and 
explain that, although perhaps they had 
not had the same experience as that horror­
able member, they could well understand 
what he intcncl:od to do with respect to the 
resolutions he had introduced that evening. 
He said resolutions of this character were an 
insult to the House ; and there was no doubt 
they were aimed higher than the position 
occupied by any honorable member of that 
House, or that they would ever occupy. He 
thought, before the honorable member for 
Toowoomba brought forward the resolutiom, 
he ought seriously to have considered the 
matte'', and if he had not consulted the 
honorable gentleman at the head of the Gov­
ernment respecting them he ought to have 
done so. He thought re;;olutions of this 
character would be a most serious thing tor 
that House to endorse or even to consider, 
and he could not bnt say that the honorable 
member for 1'oowoomba was committing a 
very grave error in submitting them. ·U the 
same time, however, hB felt it would be for 
the advantage of the members of that House, 
and also of the public outside, that the 
honorable member for Port Onrtis had been 
afforded an opportunity of vindicating him­
self so ably as he had done to-night. He 
maintained that his vindication had been 
complete and full in every respect. 

HoNORABLE NIEliiBERS : Hear, hear; no, no. 
l\Ir. BuzACOTT: Every honorable member 

who believed that thttt honorable gentleman 
had spoken honestly must say his vindication 
was complete. The honorable member for 
Toowoomba said it was absurd that four or 
five members in another vlacil should be 
afforded an opportunily of destroying the 
work of the House which was composed of 
the representatives of the peoplP, and in this 
he held the same opinion as that honorable 
m~mber; but that, he maintained, was the 
ver,v strongest argument that had been 
brought Jorward in favor of the incr!'ase of 
the members of the Upper House. They 
must all know that if they were to have 
debates at all, they must have an assemblage of 
members together; because half-a-dozen men 
-could not well get up a debate at a table ; 
they would be a mere committee, and they 
could not stand up one after another and get 
up a serious ancl set discussion. He there­
fore maintained that the remark made bv 
the bmorabie member for Toowoomba n·as 
really strong proof of the desirableness of 
increasing the members of the UpJ?er House, 
as had been done on the recommendation of 
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the honorable member for .Port Curtis while 
he held the office of chief adviser to His 
Excellency the Governor. After his state­
ment that there had been correspondence 
with the Secretary of State in whieh it was 
laid clown that the Upper House should be 
equal to two-thirds of the Lower House, he 
would repuat that his vindication wa3 full 
and complete, and he, for one, until that 
statement n·as disproved, should ·believe it. 
That honorable member said distinctly this 
correspondence exii'ied, and if it did exist, it 
could be produced before the House, and if 
what he had stated was not found to be true, 
they would then be quite prepared to form 
their own conclusions. \Yith regard to the 
statement that these additions were made 
only three or four clays before l'arliament 
as>embled, he attached very little importance 
to that circumstance. It was distinclly 'tated 
in the Vice-Regal Speech that chese additions 
had been made in consequen<'e of the increase 
of members in the Lower House ; and, 
although he might be disposed to think that, 
perhaps, the addition of seven was rather 
more than the circumstances required-and 
if a simple motion like that had been brought 
forward, he >hould feel called ur>on to support 
it-yet he could not see that any grave error 
ha'l been committed. Thev all knew that 
when a Ministry tendered to Her 11ajesty's 
representative certain advice on any subject, 
he was bound either to accept it or to dismiss 
the Ministry by whom it was tendered; but 
he would point out that in this case there 
was a distinction. When the advice of the 
:Ministry amounted to merely recommending 
certain names of persons eligible to occupy 
seats in the Upper House, His Excellency 
was not bound to accept that advice, and if he 
did not accept it, he was not bound to dismiss 
his responsible advisers, snd neither should 
the Ministry take umbrage at his refusal. A 
similar case occurred in .N cw South \'V ales, 
where the Ministry of the day recommended 
one or two members to the Upper House, 
and His Excellency refused to appoint them. 
There was no resignation of Ministers at that 
time ; neither did His Excellency the Gover· 
nor dismiss them. They remained in office 
for a considerable time afterwards ; but, had 
it been a recommendation to dissolve the 
House, it '"as Yery clear that eithn the 
GoYernor would have to take the advice or to 
dismiss his Ministers. As he understood the 
matter, the appointment of hlembers to the 
Upper House was in the exercise of the 
Royal prerogative, and all the Ministers could 
do was to recommend certain persons, and 
they should not take umbrage if the Governor 
refused to accept their recommendation. It 
had been stated by the honorable member for 
Toowoomba, that when the honorable member 
for Port Curtis made the recommendations he 
must haYc known he would meet the Hothe 
in a minority. Now, he had studied t:.e 
position of affairs at the time, and he could 
state distinctly to the House that when he 
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came to Brisbane he believed the late Ministry 
would have a small .majority, and he found 
that every one of the1r supporters thought so 
too. He therefore maintained that it was 
not fair for the honorable member for Too­
woomba to insinuate that the late Ministry 
were aware that they would be in a minoritv, 
and because they were aware of this they 
made these recommendations. He contended 
that nothing that had transpired that evPning, 
and nothing that had happened either inside 
or outside of that Hous~>, warranted a remark 
of that kind. He believed the additional 
members to the Upper House were appointed 
fairly and honestly, and in the full belief that 
when .Parliament assembled the Ministry 
would have a majority. He hoped the honor­
able member for Toowoomba, after this dis­
cussion, would see fit to withdraw the resolu­
tions. He could not conceive how the House, 
composed as it was at present, could assent 
to them in any way, or give them the slightest 
encouragement whatrver; ancl he was not at 
all surprised that honorable members opposite 
seemed disposed not to support them. He 
thought, after the statement made by the 
honorable member for Port Curtis, every 
honorable member ought to be satisfied that 
the resolutions never ought to have been 
presented to the House for its considt'r­
ation. 

Mr. BAILEY hoped honorable members 
would be very cautious in dealing with this 
motion. The assertions made by the honor­
able member for Toowoomba, and the facts of 
the case, appeared to him to be simply these : 
At a general election certain measures were 
demanded by the people of the colony, and 
the result of the election was that a great 
majority of the members returned -were 1 

pledged to support those measures. The 
assertion then went on to say, that finding 
these measures were distasteful, the horror­
able member for Port Curtis, who was then 
at the head of the Government, took steps to 
prevent them from becoming law, by packing 
the Council. But he was.not at all dispos' cl 
to believe that members of the UppPr House 
were willing to be made the puppets of the 
honorable member for Port Curtis, or anv 
other honora blc m em her, and he was also 
very loath to believe that the Upper House 
would be disposed to set at defiance tl1e 
expressed wishes of the people, as set forth 
by their representatives. He did not believe 
it would be possible for any honorable mem­
ber in that sense to pack the UppPr House; 
and it would be very premature to sa.Y it hacl 
been clone until it could be proved to have 
been done. 

Mr. DE SATGE hacl been waiting, with 
some patience, for an expression of opinion 
from the Gm·ern.ment, with regard to these 
resolutions, which had emanated from a very 
strong support-er of theirs. He thought they 
ought not to allow such a large portion of a 
private busim>ss clay to be taken up by a 
diseu-sion of this character. It was incum­
bent on them to stop at once, this almost 
indecent discussion, as was made patent to 
the House, by the speech of the honor­
able member for Toowoomba; and they 
ought at once to have disclaimed any part 
or portion of support to that honorable mem­
ber, so far as this motion was concerned. He 
thought, at any rate, one member of the 
Government ought to have replied, at once, 
to the present head of the Opposition, 
the honorahle member for Port Cnrtis. He 
considered that in an attack of this kind 
upon tlw Upper House-in even allowing 

' a discussion upon it, they were allowing a 
precedent of a very bad charactPr. Now, 
he would ask the House, what weight 
could for onP moment be attached to the 
assertions of the honorable member for Too­
woomba P He ·considered that a motion of 
thi~ kind should only emanate either under 
the direct sanction an cl support ofthe Govern­
ment or from some independent member of 
the House whose antecedents, whose charac­
ter, and 1vhose character as a reformer, should 
be perfectly spotless. That honorable mem­
ber had attacked the recent apj!lointments of 
the late Government in a manner most inde­
cent, and most flagrant; and he was sure 
that he would have the support of many 
honorable members of that House in stating 

Mr. P ALMER said he wished to say a few 
words in explanation. He now distinctly 
stated that to no member of the Upper House, 
or any gentleman he eyer asked to be 
presented to His Excellency as willing to 
accept a seat in that House, ··d·icl he ever put 
a single question of any description as to hi;, 
views upon any subject. • 

that, when they came to consider the names 
of the honorable gentlemen who were pro­
posed bv the late Government, they were 
gentlemen who hacl occupied the highest 
positions in this colony for the last twenty 
years. They had been picked as men who 
had taken an important part in the adminis­
tration of the laws of this colony, some of 
them ever since the establishment of respon­
sible government. There was hardly a name 
amongst the seven who ha cl not had great 
practical experience in the country, and who 
had not been connected 11·ith its settlement 
and advancement from the vPry first; and 
he thought when they attacked men of that 
position, and attacked them so unf!Lirly­
because he was sure there waH a coverc attack 
on those members pel'sonally-they should 
consider the circumstances of the country 
fifteen or twenty years ago. Certainly, then 
the name of a squatter in this colony was 
not looked upon in the way it was in that 
House at the present time, and the whole 
administration of the affairs of the country 
was then in the hands of those pioneers. 
·what would Queensland be now hacl it not 
been for the energy and determination of 
many of those gentlemen who had been ap­
pointed to the honorable position of members 
of the Upper House? Every one of them 
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had been connected with the advancement of 
the country in every possible respect. vVhat 
did the honorable member for Toowoomba 
know about them P And yet he attacked, 
under privileges of that House, men of that 
integrity and of that well known position 
in this country; and was he to do so un­
challenged, under cover of his position 
as a member of that House, when ac­
tually some of those gentlemen had not 
taken their seats P It was not yet known 
what their opinions were, or how they would 
vote, and that honorable member knew only 
by repute that they were men of un:;tained 
character. He must, therefore, in making 
an attack of this sort, lay himself open to a 
retort on his own position. He was very 
desirous of follo"l1"ing the direction of the 
honorable the Speak er and avoiding perso­
nalties, and they had had lessons in that 
House shO\ving that such a course was very 
desirable; bu~ the honorable member for 
Toowoomba must know that in making this 
attack, in his position as a member of this 
H ousc, he was attacking gentlemen who 
could not defend themselves, and that he 
was attacking the whole body of the Legisla­
tive Council of this colony. He ass~rted, 
also, that this attack came from the very last 
-and he said it advisedly-the very last 
honorable member who should attempt to 
discuss the charaeter and position of any 
member of the other House. He onlv won­
dered that the impeachment of tl~e late 
Government should be allowed in that House 
in any shape or form. They were not sitting 
on the Opposition benches to defend acts that 
had taken place some months ago, and they 
were not now te be impeached with regard to 
their conduct when in office. It was the 
present Government who had to defend the 
acts and the legislation of the country. The 
late Ministry had resigned, and they did not 
sit there to defend their conduct. The late 
Premier aftorded ample opportunities when 
in government for attaek, when he was tlwre 
with a body of supporters-many of whom 
were now uway- to support his conduct. 
He was sure that everv honorable member 
would consider that in the seven last appoint­
ments made to the Upper House the gentle­
men appointed were the very best men who 
could be found in the whole colony; men of 
the largest experience; m<'n who had been 
large leaseholders, and were great free holders 
in this colony ; men who had acquired by 
their own industry the right to purchase 
land, and make large settlements in the 
country. And he maintained that in this 
attack the honorable member for Toowoomba 
had made a general attack upon the respecta­
bility of men who. for twenty or thirty years, 
had striven to advance the interests of the 
colony, and who, by their own energy and 
success, had acquired large properties in it. 
He con! ended the discussion was most irrele­
vant, and ought never to have taken place in 
that House, and he did hope from the very 

outset the honorable the Speaker would put 
an end to it, as one outside the priYilE'ges of 
the House which could not be entel'tained 
in any shape or form. 

1\'Ir. PErTIGHEW was very sorry indeed 
that the honorable member who had just sat 
down had made the speech he had made. It 
was the most intemperate and the most inde­
cent speech he had heard in that House since 
he had been a member of it. He certainly 
must state that he had heard that honorable 
member say he was sorry motives were 
imputed, and yet he had been harping on 
that one subject all night. .He had imputed 
every evil moth·e to the honorable member 
for Toowoomba that he could think of, or 
dream of, or imagine. He must also state, 
and he believed every honornblc member of 
the House would bear him out, that the 
speeel1 which the honorable member for Too· 
woomba made on this subject 1ms calm and 
temperate, in fact particularly so. He rea­
soned the case out on its merits; he quoted 
largely from correspondence with Secretaries 
of State and other authorities, to show that 
this partirular action had not received the 
sup11ort of Governors and Secretaries of 
State. The turn in the debate had been 
caused by the honorable member who had 
just sat down by reason of his imputing 
motives to ihe honorable member for Too· 
woomba. He endeavored to show that that 
honorable member had representPd the gmtle­
men recently appointed to the Upper House 
in a light quite different to the way in which 
they had been represented. He (Mr. }'etti­
grew) had the pleasure of knowing some of 
those gentlemen for years, and he could say 
that they would be a credit to that or any 
other Legislature. He must also state that 
he was very much pleased indt'ed with the 
manly, straightforward def.,nre which was 
made by the honorable member for Port 
Curtis. That honorable gentleman spoke his 
sentiments; he took all the responsibility on 
himself, and showed that he did not wish to 
sl1irk the matter in the slightest degree. He 
thought the resolutions were very inoppor­
tune, and, after all the discussion, he could 
not see that any result could follow. For 
his own part, he could only support the first 
resolution :-

" That, in the opinion of this House, the recent 
appointments to the Legislative Council were 
not justified by the increase of the members of 
the Legislative Assembly under the Redistribu­
tion Act." 
He believed it was a mistake on the part of 
the honorahle member for Port Curtis, when 
Premier, to make these appointments, and it 
was a mistake he had confessed. 

Mr. PALM ER: No, no; I never said any­
thing of the sort. 

Mr. PETTIGREW: Perhaps the honorable 
member did not put it Pxactl.v in those words; 
he said he expected a majority. 

Mr. PALMER: That is a different matter 
altogether. 
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Mr. PETTIGHEW : The honorable member 
expected a majority in that House, and he 
could say that his calculations, and the calcu­
lations of other gentlemen, on the point, 
coincided pretty well with those expectations. 
He could assure the honorable member for 
Port Curtis that it was expected he would 
have a majori~y, a very small majority, when 
he met the House. However, he thought 
the number of gentlemen appointed, and 
there was no fault to find with the gentlemen 
themselves, was, perhaps, too large. As to 
what opinions they would represent when 
they came to deal with legislation, he believed, 
with the honorable member for Port Curtis, 
they were not going to be his dummies, or 
the dummies of any man. A man who would 
go there as the tool of any Government was 
perfectly unfit to be there, and such a man 
ought to feel thoroughly ashamed of himself. 
He would only be wasting time to go to the 
Upper House to legislate and be the tool of 
any Government. }i e thought the honorable 
member for 'l'oowoom ba would do well to 
withdraw the motion. He could see no good 
that could come from it, and he did not think, 
if the resolutions were forwarded to His 
:Excellency the Governor, it would make 
matters better. What could be done? These 
gentlemen had been appointed, and they were 
surely not going to turn them out again. 
They were there; and he thought the best 
thing tl!ey could do was to lean~ them in 
peace and quiehlPSS. He trusted they would 
legislate, as he believed they would, for the 
good of their country. 

The SEcRETARY FOR PunLrc LANDS said he 
would much rather not address the House 
on this subject ; but in consequence of some 
words which passed between himself and the 
honorable member for Port Curtis when he ' 
was speaking, he would now make a few 
remarks ou the matter he referred to. But 
before doing so, he would just say that the· 
first of these resolutions was the only one 
he could agree with ; and he did not agree 
with any of them being brought forward and 
honorable members being compelled to vote 
on them. Although he agreed thoroughly 
with the first resolution, he would much 1 

prefer that they had not been brought for- 1 

ward at all; and one reason for this was that 
no member of the Government knew they 
were intended to be brought forward. Cer­
tainly he, for one, did not know, and hon­
orable members who knew anything of the 

1 

honorable member for Toowoomba would 
give him credit for being rather apt to do 
these sort of things wHhout consulting the 1 

Government or anybody else; he was very 
independent in that way. He (the Secretary 
for Works) knew noth'ng about them, and 
he believed every other member of the Gov­
ernment was in the same position. One 
reason why he ohjected to the resolutions 
was, because they seemed to him, and he ' 
took them to mean, nothing more than a vote 
of censure on a defunct Government. He 

did not remember ever hearing of that before• 
and he thought it was a thing no Parliament 
ought to do. He took it that, having left 
the Ministerial benches, anJ taken seats on 
th" Opposition benches, they were fairly 
entitled to be left alone ; and it was not ad­
visable that any honorable member should 
ever bring fonvard a definite resolution bear­
ing on their conduct. He cerlainly objected. 
Lo any resolutions censuring a defunct 
Government; and although he had not had 
any conversation with the honorable member 
for Toowoomba about the matter, it was 
probable that his object might be answered 
by this disrussion; and he 1vould press him to 
withdraw the resolutions. \Yith rPgard to 
the observations of the honorable members 
for Hockltampton and l\Iaryborough, censur­
ing previous speakers for attributing motives, 
he would point out that throughout almost 
the whole of their speeches they attributed 
motives to the honoral,le member for Too­
woomba in introducing the resolutions. 

The Hon. B. B. MonETON : I rise in 
explanation. I never imputed any motives 
to the honorable member for Toowoomba. 

The SEcRETARY FOR PuBLIC LaNDS: He 
woul<'l accept the honorable memb0r's word; 
but he wns afraid he would have to put 
the same thing in a different "IYay. From 
beginning to end, that honorable member 
stated the object and motives-he was afraid 
he must use the word-of the honorable mem­
ber for Toowoomba was a higher aim--

The Hon. 13. B. :iYiom:TOK: I must rise 
again in explanation. 1 did not impute 
motives. I said the resolutions might cen­
sure a higher person. 

The SEcRETARY l'OR PuBLIC LANDS with­
drew any expression the honorable member 
considered oiten~ive; but his explanation, he 
thought, amounted to much the same thing. 
He thought it would have been better if 
honorable members had not said the horror­
able member for Toowoomba was aiming at 
anything except what he said he was aiming 
at. 1'i ow, with regarJ to the question itself, 
this was the only inducement he had in 
speaking upon it at all:-\V hen referring 
to the corrPspondence, he asked the horror­
able member for Port Curd,, "who said so?" 
and he receiveJ rather a sharp reply; but 
the question was put in kindness, because 
the honorable member was mrrkiup: an expla­
nation; and he (the Secretary for Lands) was 
merely suggesting that he was in no way 
proving what he stated, and that it would be 
just as wt'll to make the statement a little 
more definite. The whole of the question 
rested on this : There had been some kind of 
correspondence somewhere between some­
body or another, and the names of the parties 
to the correspondence not being stated or 
fixed in any way, and the matter was so 
hazy, that he thought it necessary to suggest 
that the honorable member should describe 
more minutely what his statement amounted 
to. The first part of the question that arose 
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was this : There was said to be some corres· 
pondence fixing tho number of members in 
the other House. Now, he knew of no 
power whatever outside the Act of Parlia. 
ment which authorised the Premier or the 
Government to take upon themselves the 
responsibility of proposing to increase the 
number of members in the Council. He 
believed that was undeniable. He knew 
of nothing in the shape of correspondence 
which could supplement an Act of Par­
liament in that respect, except instructions 
from the Home GoV<'rnment to the Govern· 
ment here. That could be done, but the hon­
orable member took the responsibility of the 
recommendation upon himself. He therefore 
presumed he hacl no instructions from the 
Home Government to make these recommen­
dations. He was aware that there was some 
eorresponclence three or four years ago; but 
he submitted that no Government could carry 
on that correspondence, and bring it forward 
as justification of their own actions-that 
they could do what they told themselves. 
He was aware that when Sir George Bowen 
was Governor, some ten or twelve years ago, 
an Executive minute was passed that the 
members of the Upper House should not 
exceed a certain number; but the honorable 
member had given no proof-he had cited 
nothing to show-that they were compelled 
to make this addition .. They had nothing to 
refer to as to where th1s correspondence wa~, 
and he knew of no correspondence that could 
warrant it. Even if they had the correspon­
dence before them, it would not carry out the 
attempted justification of that protmeding. 
They would find that the correspondence 
deprecated the swamping of the Upper House 
by appointing above a certain number of 
members, but it did not say that the number 
should not be kept below that. He was quite 
satisfied that not one word of correspondence 
could be found which in any way recom­
mended the increase of members in any case. 
\Vhat was pointed out was the abuse of 
appointing a certain number of members for 
political pnrposeg to swamp the Upper House. 
He therefore submitted that even if the hon­
orable member had the correspondence he 
supposed he had, and it was brought forward, 
it would be condemnatory of his conduct in 
putting in this additional number. He had 
already expressed his opinion that he would 
prefer that the resolutions had not been 
brought forward. He did not know they 
w-ould be brought forward to-night, and he 
hoped the honorable member for Toowoomba 
would withdraw them. He had not, so far 
as he knew, given any opinion on the action 
itself; but he had shown by the honorable 
member's own statement that he would be 
condemned if the correspondence were pro­
duced. He fp]t bound to say, as he had to 
speak on the matter, that so far as the gentle­
men who had been appointed were concerned, 
he had the greatest respect for them-he had 
nothing to say against them in any shape or 

1 form. Nor did he believe it was intended by 
the resolutions to cast any slur upon them or 
upon the Upper House. It seemed to him 
they simply amounted to the condemnation 
of the h,,ad of the late Government for pro­
posing that the Upper House should be 
increased by that number immediately before 
meeting a larger Parliament, in connection 
with which, the very least that could be said 
was, that he did not know for certain his 
Government would stand. He was not going 
to speak of the matter after the event, and he 
would simply give it as his opinion, that it 
would have been better if the honorable 
member had not done it. He hoped the hon­
orable memberforToowoomba, when satisfied 
with the length of the debate, would with· 
draw the resolutions. 

1\fr. PECHEY said that he was extremely 
sorry that the honorable member for Nor­
mm{by should have put into the mouth of 
the honorable member for Toowoomba the 
words that he had done, for he was sure it 
would be conceded by honorable members 
on both sides of the House, that no speech on 
surh a subject could have been freer from 
personalities of all kinds than that which had 
bl'en deliYered by the honorable member for 
Toowoomba. lie trusted that they would 
get through the debate without hearing any 
further remarks of the same kind. He must 
say that the speech of the honorable member 
at the head of the Opposition stood out in 
great prominence from those which had been 
delivered by the honorable member's sup­
porters; the honorable mt>mber'R speech was 
a very able and good speech, although he had 
made out a very bad case. The honorable 
member had stated that there was no parallel 
between the case of Mr. Cowper and his own; 
and he believed it was also stated by the 
honorable member for Toowoomba that there 
was no parallel between them. He quite 
agreed with those honorable members, for in 
the case of Mr. Cowper, he knew that he had 
the country at his back, and also the repre­
sentatives of the people at his back. He 
had expressed his wishes to pass a certain 
measure and his way was blocked by the 
Upper House; and in order that they should 
not do so any longer, he had certainly put a 
wrench upon the constitution, and it answered 
his purposes. The action of the honorable 
member for Port Curtis was exactly the con­
trary to that, as he must have kno\vn what the 
feelings of the country were; he must have 
known that the S)"Stem of voters' rights was 
disapproved by the country; he must have 
known that there was an agitation through­
out the country for a new Land Bill ; and he 
must have known that the last people to give 
satisfaction in the matter of the lands, were 
those who occupied the land which the people 
demanded to have t.hrown open. The honor· 
ab!,; member for Port Cnrtis wished to have 
a drag put upon the Assembly, whereas lVIr. 
Cowper, so to speak, wished to put on a 
spurt ; therefore the two cases wilre not at all 
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analogous. TlH•rc was anotlwr statement 
made by the honoraule member for Port 
Curtis, that the Upper House should consist 
of two-thirds of the number of the Lower 
House. "" mr, if there vms any force' in that 
argument- if then' had been any authori­
tanve deeision come to in the matter, it 
w01;ld have been the strongest argument 
agamst the course pm·sued by that honorable 
gentleman; for certainly, if he increased the 
Upper House in proportion to the incrl:ase in 
the Assembly, the proportion should not only 
hm·e been in quantity, but also in quality. 
"\Vhy should not the honorable member have 
waited until he was sure of the majority which 
he said he anticipated P and then, when he 
had that majority. he could have made the 
incrPase in the Fpper House not only in 
quantity, but in quality also. He would refer 
to another statement made by the same honor­
able member-that before asking the gentle­
men whom he had ad,·is<'d His Excelleney to 
nominate to the lJpper House, to accept that 
honor, he had ofrered it to gentlemen engaged 
in other _pursuits than sheep farming. .Now, 
he certamly thought, the lwnorable member 
had rather strengthened the case against 
himsclt, by H\akiug that admission; for he 
certainly had no~ t>ifi'red it to gentlemen who 
were capable of coming to a conclusion with 
regard to the honomble member's unconstitu­
tional aetion. He \Yished the honorable mem­
ber had gone a little further, and had informed 
the House whetl•er some of the gentlemen 
did not refuse because they thought he was 
putting a strain on the constitution. The 
honorable member had aeknowledgPd that 
one-half of the gentlemen made members of 
the Upper House by his action, were pastoral 
tenants of the Crown, and, he had contende<1, 
that it was a ,-ery fair division of the interests 
of the colony. He however did not agree 
with the honorable gentleman, and he "ould 
like the honorable member to point out 
gentlemen, in the other l lwmber, who could 
be said to represent either the agricultural 
or mineral intnests. There was one con­
clusion he must arrive at, namely, that 
although the honorable member waR dis­
appointed of his majority in that House, he 
took very great eare that he should not be 
disappointed of it elsewhere. 

Mr. DJ-cE:soN ~aid that if the three reso­
lutions were put in oloho, he should be 
inclined to >otc against them. HP thought the 
f\rst resolution was one to whieh many hon­
ou:ble members must give their concurrence, 
as individually they believed it to be correct; 
he also thought that there were many honor­
able members, and also people outside, who 
disapproved of the action of the honorable 
member for Port Curtis. He did not wish 
to impute motives to the late Government, 
but he \Yould say that their action was, to say 
the least, indiscrePt. :Notwithstanding the 
excellent speech made by the honorable mem­
ber for Port Curtis, it amounted to this-tb l 
he considered he had the power to -recommend 

the appointments, and he exercised that power. 
He submitted, howeyer, that it was not proper 
that honorable members of that House, know­
ing the feeling of the people outside, should 
shirk the responsibility of expressing an 
opinion upon the subjeet by asking the hon­
OJ•able member for Toowoomba to withdraw 
his resolutions as a whole. He himself would 
be sorry to see all three withdrawn, and hoped 
thehonorable member would retain the first. 
He did not look upon it so much in the way 
of a vote of censure upon a deiunct Ministry 
as a warning to a future Ministry. vVith 
regard to the second and third resolutions, 
he thought they would reflect upon the other 
branch of the Legislature now assembled; 
and as the House could not undo what had 
been done, there was no use in reflecting 
upon those gentlemen who had lately made 
an addition to that Chamber. He would 
therefore move that the clauses be put 
se1 iatim. 

Mr. l\IrLES said he was very much in­
clined to take the same view of the question 
a;; the honorable member for Stanley, as he 
thought it was of no use crying over spilt 
milk; and that, no matter what that House 
might do, they could not recall the appoint­
ments which had been made. He thought, 
for j.hat reason, it would be well for the hon­
orable rneni.ber for Toowoomba to withdraw 
the rPsolutions. Should the honorable mem­
ber, however, press them to a division, he 
should vote for them, as he did not believe 
there had been any necessity for the appoint­
ments. He had. come to that conclusion partly 
because one of the gentlemen who was 
appointed to a seat in the Legislative Council 
had since gone to England. Now, that gentle­
mNn's ~ervicps could not have been very much 
required when the honorable member for 
Port Curtis knew that he was going home. 
He quite understood that honorable member 
when he said he had not put a single qurstion 
to any of those gentlemen when he placed 
their names before His Exeellency fer appoint­
ment. He could quite understand that state­
ment, for if he was going to make an 
appointment of a similar kind, he should not 
rrqnire to ask any questions, as he would 
take very good care that he thoroughly under­
stood their politics preYiously. He had no 
doubt that the houorable member for Port 
Curtis knew their politics as well as the hon­
orable member did his own ; so that it was 
quite unnecessary for him to put the question. 
He thought on the whole, up to the present 
time, the Legislative Council had done their 
work. and done it well ; he thought that fewer 
mea~u~es had h_een thrown out by them than 
by smular bodies elsewhere, and he should 
be the last to cause any ill-feeling between 
that Chamber and the Assembly. He believed 
that any measure sent up from the Assembly 
would be dealt with fairly by the Legislative 
Council; at any rate, up to the present time, 

.there had Leen no occasion to lead him to 
suppose otherwise. 
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Mr. J. ScoTT said that he objected to the 
rpgo]ulions being discussed seriatim, as he 
did nol think it was a matter on which hon· 
orabl·~ members should be asked to vote. He 
considered that, making allowance for all 
liberty of debate, when a Ministry once wPnt 
out of office, they should not be made the 
subjects of a vote of censure. Let their past 
conduct be canvassed in any shape or form, 
but not in the manner in which it was being 
done, by having a distinct resolution tabled, 
and by honorable members being asked to 
pass a resolution condemnatory of a Govern· 
ment not in power. It put honorable mern· 
bcrs in the unpleasant position of having to 
vote when they would not wish to vote at all. 

The CoLONLH TREASURrm said he quite 
agreed with what had fallen from the houor­
able member for Springsure, ancl thonght 
they should follow the practice of the Eng­
lish Parliament, and not debate the action of 
a late Government. That was a rule laid clown 
b.Y that authority on Parliamentary practice, 
Mr. Todd. He thought the resolutions 
should be withdrawn, ns the object of the 
honorable member for Toowoomba had been 
answered by the discussion which had taken 
place upon them. He believed that the more 
strictly they confined themselves to t:w prac­
tice of the Imperial Parliament the safer 
they would he. The resolutions must either 
censure His Excellency the Governor or thn 
late Government; he certainly did not think 
it would be a decent thing fo1· that House to 
pass a vote of censure on His ExcellPncy ; 
and, if they followed the advice of Tocld, 
it was not advisable to pass a vote of 
censure upon a defunct Government. He 
should not say more, but he had no doubt all 
honorable members had strong opinions upon 
the subject; and had he been sitting oppo· 
site, he would most probably have expressed 
those he held. He should only refer to one 
remark of the honorable member for Port 
Curtis; a remark which the honorable mem· 
her had made several times. That honorable 
gentleman had taunted the present Govern· 
ment with not having met the House with a 
speech from the Governor; but supposing 
the Government had prorogued, and had 
called Parliament together two or three 
weeks earlier, the effect of that would have 
been to have unseated three honorable mem­
bers, namely, the honorable members for 
the Burnett, for Maryborough, and Burke, 
and that the Government wuuld not have 
been justified in doing. He hoped the hon­
orable member would not again repeat that 
remark, for he must have been aware what 
effect a prorogation would have had, and that 
~o Government would be justified in unseat· 
mg three honorable nwmbers simply for the 
purpose of gratifying their OIYn wishes. 

l\Ir. PALMHR would point out to the hon­
orable member how easily the Government 
could have done it. They could have met 
the House, and then adjournej for a day, and 
have come down with a speech ; but they 

were too good judges for that-they knew 
very well what they were about. 

'l'he question was put that the resolutions 
be taken seriatim, and the House divided as 
follows:-

Ayes, 13. Noes, 18. 
Mr. Hemmant .,Mr;·:·Morehea<i 

, MacDevitt '·· {~~~il:1cth?"taith 
u StephPns ;)'·,~,rn ,!l_,_eatt1e 
, l\Iacalister ~. ~~n 4fl·aham 

Fraser __ ----.,- W. Scott 
u MacroE"san .------- t- 1 ~ C' ;j~ p );CQtt 

Gronm0/ ,__:,\:...,\" --,;1·-)lOJ;:ds"\. 

Dic.kson Qf\//- , w;i,nl\._<>.1) 
Pr.rar ,:~ , ne i>;tt~ 
P~·cl1ey; ~ ,. Ivory, ~ 
!'.Iile.s z , ~JorEhon 
Fo'He , Lord . ~ 
Griffit 00 ... .I!oilg-kipson 

.r _-w-;}I· '~h9rn 
D 0 \ .;,1()1\ 1 horn 

EPA•· ;·;,::;J cttig-rew 
,, J·ailey 
" nuzacott. 

l\!Ir. FRASER said he l1ad not ],ad the least 
intention of saying anything on the question 
now befoee the House, but far less had he 
any idPa that the honorab]t' IU!.'Illber for Too­
woomba intended to place the motion on the 
paper. :::io far, thPrl'forc, as that side of the 
House was concerned, it was not a party 
question. He would suhmit that the autho­
rity quoted by the honorable the Colonial 
Trea~urer had rather confirmed the action 
taken bv the honorable member for 'lOO· 
woomba· than weakened it; because the reso­
lution was brougl1t forward, not for the 
purpo .. ·e mentioned there, but as a question 
of :::itate poliey. He must object to the state­
ment that they were not to censure any con­
duct of a clefuncL Government, because, if so, 
they must say that however objectionable the 
conduct of a Government might be when in 
office, so long as they lived they were to he 
free from any censure. He would lilre to 
know where the functions of that House 
wou1d end if they were to Hanetion such a 
course as that. He must sav that the honor­
able member for Port Curtis"hacl given a very 
candid reply to the speech of the honorable 
member for Toowoomba, and he submitted 
that the ho'lorable member should have done 
so; for, although he stood conscious of his 
own right, yet he should have been even 
grateful to the honorable member for having 
given him an opportunity of justifying to the 
country the course he had pursued. The 
Huuse must admit that the reply was an able 
and candid reply, but still it did not remove 
from the minds of honorable members the idea 
that very objectionable appointments had been 
made to the Upper House. He thought that 
the thanks of the House and of the c:ountry 
were due to the honorable member for Too­
woomba for having brought forward the sub­
ject, and he was sure that honorable mem­
bers would Le justly exposed to the cen­
sure of their constituents if they allowed a 
question of that sort to pass by in silence. 
It should be borne in mind that the horror­
able member for Toowoomba particularly 
guarded himself against disparaging in any 
way or degree.any one of the gentlemen who 
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had been the subjects of those appointments ; 
and he thought it was a very unfair advantage 
to be taken of the privilege and freedom of 
debate, to attempt to cast upon the honorc,ble 
member an aspersion of that kind. They 
had been told that the honorable member bad 
indulged in a number of assertions ; but he 
submitted that the honorable member haJ 
stated facts which could not be denied ; and 
what were those facts? vVhy, at the very 
time of the late Government going out of 
office, they made appointments to the 1T pp er 
House of an unusual number. anJ unusual 
in their character. It "\\as a fact that thoRe 
appointments had been made, and that six 
out of the seven gentlemen appointed were 
pastoral tenants of the Crown. Now, how­
e,'er independent, however upright, however 
free from suspicion the character of those 
gentlemen might be, it must be a fact recog­
nised by that House, that in the opinion of 
the country generally, the whole thing had 
been looked upen as a political move .. 
That being the case, he contended that, 
in justice to the late Governnwnt, and in 
justice to that House, the honorable member 
for Toowoomba had done well in bringing 
the question before the House that evening. 
A great deal had been introduced into 
the discussion which was beside the question 
altogether ; but he hoped that the effect of 
that discussion, although the resolutions might 
be withdrawn-and seeing the result of the 
last diYision, he hoped the honorable member 
would withdraw them-would he to act as a 
warning to future Ministries. Although it 
had been suggested that should the present 
Government find that the measures they had 
introduced into, and been able to pass through 
that Hou,e, were thrown out by the other 
Chamber through its having been packed by 
the late Government, it would be quite com­
petent for the honorahle Premier to recom­
mend His Excellency to counteract the effect 
by nominating a number of gentlemen frcm 
the other side, he trusted himself that the 
Ministry would not have recourse to anything 
of the kind. He thought it would be better 
to leave it to the sense of the country and the 
expression of public opinion. He hoped that, 
seeing the sense of the House that evening, 
the bonorablc members of tlw Upper House 
would well consider that fact, anJ deal with 
mcasurrs sent up to them mi their merits ; 
and finding that they were in accordance with 
the wishes of the people, "1\0uld deal with 
them impartially, anJ would not throw 
th0m out either for political or any party 
motives. 

Mr. MoRERllAD would not have addressed 
the House at all upon the question now before 
it, but for the semi-injurious attempt to dis­
tort what had taken place, which had been 
made by the honorahle member for Bundamba. 
That honorable member had held out. a threat 
to the Upper House ; he understood him to 
say that he hoped it would be a warning to 
the other branch of t.I1e Legislahu·e--

Mr. :FRASllR rose in explanation. What 
he said was that he honed it would he a wam­
ing; to future Ministers-not to the Upper 
Housr. 

Mr. :\foREHEAD: The honorahle member 
was di:>tinct, and yet very indistinct. The 
honorable member had certainlv made that 
remark, but he believed he intended it to be 
a word of warning to the Upper House. He 
did not know what the result of the resolu­
tions would be except as an insult to a person 
whose name he did not wish to bring into 
that debate. He was very sorry that any 
discussion should have taken place on the 
rewlutions, and considered that it might have 
been negatived at once. After what had fallen 
from the honorable me m her for Port Curtis, 
nothing more should. have been said, except 
by the honorahle member for Toowoomba in 
withdrawing the motion. He thought it \Yas 
now, that honorable member's duty to do so, 
and he hoped the honorable member would 
have that proper feeling which he believed 
every honorable member of that House had, 
and withdraw them. He had bPen surprised 
to hear the remarks ma<le by the honorable 
member fop Bundamba, and looked. upon his 
explanation as a very lame one. 

.Mr. FRYAR had very little to say either in 
favor of or against the resolutions, hut he 
believed the honorable member for Too­
woomba had done good service in bringing 
them forward. He was surprised to hear the 
late Premier say that that House had nothing 
to do with the constitution of the Upper 
House ; for although it appeared to be the 
prerogative of His Excellency the Governor 
to appoint members to the Upper Chamber 
on the recommendations of his advisers, yet 
surely that House had a perfect right to 
discuss the action of a Government in making 
those recommendations. He was Yery sorry 
that motives had been introduced into the 
debate-that the honorable member £Jr Too­
woomba had only fired shots which had been 
forged by the Govemment. He believed there 
had been no such intention on the part of the 
Government; nor wrre they aware, he believed, 
that the honorable member for Toowoomba 
was going to bring forward his motion, 
uutil it "as on the paper. That honorablc 
member had also been charged with firing 
at higher game than the late Government ; 
bnt he believed, again, there was no such 
intention. He brlirHcl the resolutions were 
intended to be a vote of censure on the 
late Government ; and although he did not 
quite agree with them, he believed that 
bringing them forward would result in good 
to the country. ThP honorable member for 
Port Uurtis said that he had taken great 
care to get the best men, and that there was 
a great difllculty in grtting them; and that 
out of every four y, ho were asked three 
refu~ed-so that it \Youlcl be seen fi·om that that 
three inferior appoinl mcnts had been made to 
every one good one. The honorahle member 
for Port Curtis said he believed they were 
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all good appointments, and complained of the 
great trouble he had; but, he thought, the 
honorable member had taken too much 
trouble, and that, considering that there was 
a new House about to assemble larger than 
any hitherto a'sembled, it would have been 
well for the honorable member to have left 
those appointmPnts until that House should 
have had time to give expression to its 
opinions. He thought there was nothing in 
the rPsolutions to char,ge the honorable mem­
ber with dereliction of duty, or excess of duty, 
but he thought he should have wait.cd. In 
common with other honorable memb<'rs he 
was desirous that the resolutions should 
be withdrawn; at the same time he was 
glad they had been placed on the paper, 
as honorablo members had thus had an 
opportuniiy of expressing their opinions, 
of that act of the lat0 Government. 

Mr. GROOM (in reply) said that he had not 
regretted, one iota, the action he had taken 
that afternoon in respect to the resolutions 
he had brought f,,rward, and it could not be 
expedPd that. he \mnld allow some of the 
remaTks which had been made to pass by 
without entering upon his defence. In the 
first place, he denied having said those words 
which had been put into his mouth by the 
honorable member for i{ ormanby, and during 
the fourleeu years he had been a member of 
that House--

~iir. FRASER called atteu1 ion to the state of 
the House. 

.\.quorum having been formed, 

able member for Port Curtis that evening 
satisfied him that he was right; he could 
also satisfy his own constituency that he had 
been right. He strongly objeeted to a nom­
inee Upper House, and he hoped that in 
time action would be taken to make it elec­
tive. He was strongly of opinion that his 
action that evening would be productive of 
good, by having caused a discussion on the 
subject; and now, with the permission of the 
House, he would withdraw the resolutions. 
At the same time, he would again repeat that 
he had not intem1ed to reflect upon any one, 
and would challenge the statement that that 
House had no right to discuss the uncon­
stitutional way in which appointments hacl 
been made to the other Chamber. 

Motion, by leave, withdrawn. 

THE CASE OF :J.1R. J. G. l\fcDONALD. 

Mr. MACROSSAN 
notice-

moved, pursuant to 

That, in the opinion of this House, J. G. 
::\fcDonalc1, late Golcl Commissioner, Charter~ 
Towers, is unfit. to occupy the responsible position 
of C+olcl Commissioner, or Police Magi,,trate. 

;\Ir. GnooM resumed: He was observing 
that he distinctly repudiated having been put 
in motion by a!1y honorable member of the 
Ministry, or by any honorable member of 
that House; he hall acted entirely inde­
pendl'ntly during the fourte<•n years he had 
been a member of the House, and would do 
so again. If his resolutions had not done 
m,y other good, they had had the effect of 
bringing out something from' the honorable 
member for Port Curtis-namely, tha.t some 
secret correspondence had been going on, 
of which the public knew nothing, with 
reference io the constitution of the Upper 
Hou,;e ; and that thP honorable member was 
determined to bring U]l the . number of 
the other Chamber to the maxmmm. as he 
sai'1 that a;: the Assembly was increased to 
4.2 lllr'dbf'r'; lw \vonld tah• •·:we that the 
Upper House should be increased to 28. 
He hoped some honorahle members, on going 
to their constituents, would be challenged 
about that secret correspondence. He had 
been charged with aiming at higher game 
than the latE' Government; but such an in- 1 

sinuation could only llroceed fl'om an empty 
minrl, of which they had had such an ex­
hibition by an honorable member on the pre­
ceding evening. It was no purpose of his to 
censure any one; but he had gone on broad . 
grounds, namely-that the adion of the late 1 

Government was unconstitutional. He still ' 
said it was, and the admis~ion of the honor-

He said that from whatever side the motion 
standing in his name was reg-arded by himself, 
it was 2 most unfortunate thing that he 
should be obliged to bring it before that 
House. He believed that he should be able 
to show that he had been obliged to bring it 
forward. It was ·a mo>t important question, 
but as he was thoroughly acquainted witlt all 
the inquiries that had bef'n made, and with 
other circumstances and other matters con­
nected with such inquiries which did not 
appear on the printed papers furnished to 
honorable members, ho could not in justice to 
himself, or to the constituents whose interests 
he repre~ented, allow the matter to pass 
unnotired. Before he entered upon the 
fc.1cts conuccted with the inquiry itself, he 
thought it would be advisable to give 
hono~able members some information res­
pecting the management of the gold fields, 
and the immense powers vested m commis­
sioners on them; inasmuch as he believed, 
11 i th the exceptwn of those honorable 
members who had occupied the position of 
:J1inister of \V orks at any time, ancl the 

! gold fields members themselves, the House 
\\"ere not acquainted with the manner in 

. which matters were conducted on the golcl 
' fields. Most people were under the impres­

sion that the office of commis~;ioncr was an 
office ~>hich anvone could hold; they were 
not aware of the powers or the duties of that 
officer. In realitv, the commissioner on the 
gold fields of Queensland had more power 
over the distribution of property than a 
judge of the District Court; his power, in 
fact, was unbounded, and claims of the value 
of thousands of pounds often rested upon his 
c!Pci;;imls; and there was no appral against his 
decisions. It was, therefore, of the utmost 
import.an<'e that a man appointed to the rosi-
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tion of commissioner should be thoroughly 
qualified, both tt>chnically, morally, and 
practically, for the exercise of his duties. 
The generality of the ap}Jointmcnts of com­
missioner had. however, unfortunately, not 
been in accordance with the qualities he 
should possess. He would not say how that 
hart arisen ; but he believed, as a general rule, 
that the gentlemen who occupied the position 
of commissioners had been the most unquali­
fied to hold the situation, of any officers under 

1 

the Government. · 
Mr. PALMER: No. 

certain threats l1elJ out to him by Mr. 
McDonald, to accept £3 in lieu of, or as 
compensation for leaving, the house ; and 
that, in a few days after he went out of 
the house, an individual who had been an 
offender against the law, and who, in the 
course of the inquiry, was ca1led "an ex­
convict," was put into the house; and that that 
individual took a woman into the house with 
him-a woman who was described as a 
character not at all estimable-and lived 
there with her. That was the charge made 
against Mr. McDonald; and that charge 

l\fr. MAClWSSAN: The honorable member 
said " No;" but he did not know what he was 
saying, as hE' (Mr. Macrossan) would be able 
to show before he sat down, that tl1e majority 
of the honorable member's appointments had 
been most unsatisfactory ; in fact, the gentle­
man whose conduct had been the subject of in- ! 
quiry, was appointed by the honorable member. 
In justification of the action that he had 
taken, and to prove the importance of the 1 
subject, he should read for the information 
of the House a menforandum which was 
issued by the Minister for Works of that I 
time, the honorable gentleman -who was now ' 
Speaker of the House, having reference to 
this particular case:-

was proved upon inquiry--not only upon 
evidence which was adduced in the inquiry 
held by Captain \Vhish, but still further, 

! in evidence adduced in the inquiry which vms 
held by Mr. Commissioner J{amsay, which 
latter inquiry was in the nature of an appeal 
from the former inquiry. By the ev~dence it 
was clearly proved that the case Andrews 
had stated was correct ; and the opinion of 
the :Minister for Works at the time the 
report was sent in was perfectly justifiable. 
He (:VIr. Macrossan) believed that there was 
another honorable gentleman, who was not 
now present, but who had held the same 
Minis'erial office after Mr. Speaker; and 

" }fmro. --Having read carefully Captain 
\Yhish's report, and the evidence re Anc1rews' 
charge, it is made too clear to me that Mr. 
McDonald has brought disgrace upon the public 
service, by knowingly employin2; a notorious 
offender a~ainst the civil and social laws ; and 
also as a magistrate and commissioner, he, Thh. 
McDonald, has favored his p1·otege, \Vilkie, at the 
expense of justice in one case, and to inflict injus­
tice in another (Andrews). 

" If comparisons are made of the dates in the 
evidence, and of my telegrams, wherein Thfr. 
McDonald was peremptorily ordered to remove 
and rc"train Wilkie from all official position anc1 
recognition, I think it will be seen that Mr. 
McDonald diso beycd these orders. 

"In my opinion Mr. McDonald ought to be 
dismissed the public service forthwith." 

That was the opinion of the Minister for 
vV orks and Mines in the Gonrnment of the 
houorable mrmber for Port Curtis-that Mr. 
:McDonald ought to be dismissed from the 
public service forth with. The papers relating 
to the inquiry had been in the hands of 
honorable members for ten or twelve days, 
and he (Mr. Macrossan) hoped that, in 
justice to the individual on whom the inquiry 
was held, honorable members had read them 
tltrough carefully. The charge upon which 
the inquiry was held was simply this :-A 
certain gold miner, named Andrews, built a 
house outside the Government reserve at 
Millchester, on the Charters Towers gold 
field. H.e stated in the charge which he 
made, tl1at that house was built outside the 
reserve forty-two feet; that, after he' had 
built it, the Government reserve was ex­
tended, and that he was obliged to leave his 
house-in fact, that he was induced, by 

1 

that honorable gentlPman also held the ~ame 
opinion. But why Mr. McDonald was not 
dismissed by the Government of the honor­
able member for Port Curtis, he (::'vir. 
l\lacrossan) did not know. He should no~ 
like to take up the time of the House by 
reading too much from the inquiry, and he 
should read onl_y what he considered sufficient 
to show the case that Andrews had sent in, 
in his complaint to the Minister for \Vorks. 
There was a foot-note at the end of the 
complaint which read thus :-

"A very serious complaint, which requires full 
explanation am1 inquiry into. Forward to Sec­
retary for \Vorks, of which (sic) Department 
Mr. l\IcDonalc1 is the paid Commissioner.­
A.H.P., W.H.W." 
Arthur Hunter Palmer and vVilliam Henry 
\Valsh. In consequence of that note, Cap­
tain \Vhish was sent to Charters Towers. 
He held an inquiry. The result of his in­
quiry appeared in the papers laid on the 
table of the House. After stating that he 
had arrived at Charters Towers, he said:-

" The copy of An:lrews' complaint, and that of 
his letter to Mr. McDonald, the only papers 
handed to me, are herewith returned." 
This was a report to the Secretary for Public 
vVorks at the time, who was Mr. Speaker:-

"The depositions on the subject accompanying 
this report will be referred to by me in the course 
of summing up the case. I will, in the first 
instance, confine my remarks to the subject mat­
ter of the complaint, which seems to resolve itself 
into the following particulars :-· 

"1st. Was there a recognised reserve at Mill­
chester before Mr. McDonalcl went there ; and, 
if so, of what area? 

" 2nd. vV ere there distinct boundaries to it at 
the time that Andrewe built hie houee P 
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" 3rd. IV as Andrews' house erected cl cm• of 
those boundaries ? 

"4th. Does there appear to have b0en any 
necP~sity for extending the reserve ? 

" 5th. Did l\fr. JHcDonald pay Andrews for the 
house on behalf of Government.? 

" 6th. Difl he give the house to \Yilkie to 
live in? 

" 7th. Dicl he wittingly allow \Vilkie to take a 
prostitute, Leah Gardiner, into the house to live 
with him? 

"Slh. vVas there any public servant present 
with a superior claim to being allowed the use of 
the house?" 

It would be observed that some of those par­
ticulars had nothing to do with the charges 
that Andrews had made. Andrews made no 
charge regarding the " superior claim" of any 
other public servant to \Vilkie; he merely 
stated that he had built his house outside the 
reserve ; that his house had been taken from 
him-that he had been inclucerl to give it up 
for £8, by McDonald-and that after he 
had been induced to give it up, \Vilkie and 
Leah Garlliner hacl gone to live in it. 
Captain \Vhish, in his report, said:-

" On the first mul oiecond part-iculars-Evidence 
is conclusive that there wa• a Governnwnt reserve 
laid out by Mr. Charters and Sub-Inspedor 
Klolwoy, and marked with jwgs. This is proved 
by Acting Sub-Inspeclor Collopy and Constable 
1feSwecncy, and I was myself shown the pegs, 
which are still standing,"--

Captain "\Vhish, himself, was surely sufficient 
evidence, when he said he -was shown the 
pegs "still standing;"-
,. and \1 hieh n.ppcar to in elude :; hou! two aert~!'l of 
s;runud, an,_l l cannot nndcrGhmd 'vhy J\Ir. l\fc­
Donalcl ''hould luwe cxpericnc•f'd nny di!1kulty in 
<bc•crlaining the cxar·t limits of the resene in 
question." 

And never could he (::\Ir. :CdacroHsan) under­
;;tand why ;}'Jr. l\IeDonald had any difliculiy 
in ascertaining the reserye in question, 
because he abo, as well as Captain \Vhish, 
saw the pogs in the ground months afterwards. 
Andrews was turned out of his house, and 
for five months afterwards, to his (Mr. 
.M:acrossan's) knowledge, three pegs were 
standing ; the fourth had been pulled down, 
with the collusion of l\Ir. McDonald, by a 
eertain resident on the main street who had 
built on the reseno, and who had pulled the 
prgs down to covC'r what he had done:-

" On the 3rd purtieular--I cxmninetl the 
position of Andrews' hon~t', wltit·h is about. forty 
feet, more or h•~<s, ouhide the boundaries of the 
original rc.<crvc. 

"On the 4th particular-The rc•se1·•,•, a' 
originally laid out, was sufficiently large to contain 
the usual public offices"----. 

That. was beyond the question. He maintained 
that tb.~.t had nothing to do with the question, 
and, ilHnefore, he should not read it. 

"On the Gth particnlar-::\Ir. l\IcDonalcl admits 
!ha' he paid _\ndrews eight pounds for his house 
by a Government TOnr.:hel', purchasing it for 
Gonl'l!l!!.0Ut. The eight pound~ wa~ not a0ceptecl 

~D 

by Andrews as adequate value for the housc,.but 
simply receivccl by him, as any smaller sum m1ght 
haTe been, under protest, and in fear of being 
foreibly oj ccted, and with the full determination 
of laying the ,;natter before Government, as he 
had now clone. 
He (:\fr. Macrossan) hoped that honorable 
members understood this. He supposed that 
all of them had their copies of the inquiry. 
Andrews, in the charge, said that, as mea­
sured, his house was outside the boundary of 
the original reserve ; that MeDonald t.old 
him it did not matter, he would have to sh1ft; 
that, after some conversation, Andrews agreed 
to take £8, and that McDonald told him that 
the man, \oVilkie, who was then along with 
McDonalcl, would write a letter from Andrews 
to .i\fcDonald, and that Andrews should sign 
it. The purport of that letter was that 
Andrews was willin~ to accept £8 for his 
house. Captain \Vhish showed that that 
letter bore internal eTidence of not having 
been written by Andrews, and his reasons on 
that internal evidence were as followed :-

" In comparing the copy in my possession with 
the original sent to Mr. ~IcDonalcl, signed by 
Andrews, but not in his handwriting, I found 
certain discrepancie>, which I hav~ marked in 
pencil. 

"The 'pirit of the letter is submi,sive, almos~ 
abj<•ct, which is by no means the spirit in wl~ch 
Andrews thinks and speaks of the whole affair; 
the letter represents him in pecuniary difficulties 
at a time whrn he was earning from £6 to £12 a· 
week as an engineer; and the idea of his pre· 
ferring £8 from a gold c01mnissioner to £13 
from a private incliviclnnl. is so incredible that 
I\Ir. M~Donald thought it nece;osary to at•cotmt for 
it by e:~:plainiug- !ha! Andrews would have hacl to 
move the house for £13, which the latter rlenies.'' 
Again:-

" On the 6th :md 7th partieular:s-Thc evidence 
of all pm·lie .• shows that after turning Andrews 
anrl his "-ife out of the house, :!\Ir. l\IcDonalcl 
gave poss.ession of it to 'Vilkie who was his 
orderly, and who occupied it from the time that 
Amlrews vacated it"--. 
"Thfr. ;}'IcDonald, himself, did not deny it;­
"to the date of \Yilkie's last embczzlenwnt, about 
th.• 23th 11ay-aml that he had a prostitute 
namet'l Lcah Garclincr li ,-iug with him ttt the 
time, of 1vhich fact }fr. :\IeDonald was admitteclly 
cognisant. 

"He states thac he had giwn 'Vilkie notice io 
l•'aYe the house in consequence of sueh conchwt ; 
but it is difficult to reconcile this with the fact, 
well known and freely commented upon in 
Millchester ;"-

and well known ancl freely conuuented on 
l.Jc"'"llll, :\Iillclwster, to his (Mr. Macrossan's) 
km•··• 1 -~ 
''that vVilkie and Leah Gawliner were always 
living together in a tent on the reserve, and then 
movetl together into Andrews' house, by the 
Uounnissioner's pcr1nission, and rmnain0'd there 
un:l"J]e,ted until vYilkie's millpracti~es once more 
enlminatccl in an a,'t of open embezzlement." 
On the 8th parLieular, which referred to l.lr. 
l\.fcDouald's relat10ns to other public seP;ant~ 
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and as it was a matter beyond Andrews' com­
plaint, he should not speak ; although it was 
a matter for the Government themselves :-

"The statement of Mr. McDonald that he sent. 
an orderly to warn Andrews not to build a house 
on the reserve, is deniecl by the latter, and the 
orderly employed on the occasion is said by Mr. 
McDonald to have been dismissed bv him in 
December last. • 

" The charge of insolence against Andrews is 
admitted by him so far only as that he told }fr. 
McDonald he would inquire of the Government, 
whether the Commissioner had authority to turn 
decent working people out of their houses, to 
make room for his prostitutes." 

That was the insolence of which Andrews 
was guilty, and which he admitted:-

"So much for the subject matter of Andrc>ws' 
complaint, the grounds of which appear to be 
thoroughly established; but to enable you to 
form a correct opinion on an isolated question, I 
feel compelled to draw your attention to certain 
circumstances of recent occurrence, which throw 
a considerable light on the subject, and which 
appear to me to prove beyond a doubt the exis­
tence of some community of interest between the 
Gold Commissioner, and \Vilkie and Leah Gar­
diner, such as should never have arisen between 
persons in their relative positions." 

Captain '\Vhish then went into detail about 
Wilkie having embezzled certain funds, 
which he (Mr. Macrossan) would explain 
to honorable members :-An entertainment 
of a theatrical and musical kind was coming 
off at Charters Towers, for the benefit 
of the hoRpital. \Vilkie was one of the 
indivicluals who collected the money for 
the tickets. Instead of handing ·the money 
for the tickets over to the hospital committee, 
he appropriated it to his own use. That was 
the embezzlement of which he was guilty. 
borne endeavors were made-which did not 
appear in the return, but, in fact, of which he 
(Mr. JHacrossan) knew-to compromise the 
matter between the hospital committee, 
Wilkie, and Mr. McDonald; but the hos­
pital committee were determined to prosecute 
unless VVilkie gave back the money. '\Vilkie 
had not the money, and it appeared in 
evidence, further on-in Mr. Ramsav's re­
port-according to an admission which Mr. 
McDonald himself made to Mr. Ramsay, 
that he gave £7 to '\Vilkie on the day preced­
ing the apprehension of the latter, aml gave 
it to him out of his own pocket. For what 
purpose ? He (Mr. Macrossan) should leave 
honorable members to infer anything! The 
money was owing three months ! But there 
was a suspicious influence : the money was 
given at the time VVilkic was threatened 
with a prosecution for embezzlement unless 
he produced the money to the amount re­
quired. It tended to show the "community of 
interest" existing between them. He should 
read some evidence of Mr. McDonaldhimself 
as it was given to Captain Whish :-
~ , " Mr. John Graham J\lfcDonald states : I am a 
Gold Commiesioner and Police Magistrate of the 

district of Charters Towers. I joined the ap· 
pointment about 27th September, 1872,, There was 
said to be a reserve here, and there were two or 
three pegs in the ground, said to be put in by 
Mr. Charters, but I never could get anyone to 
show me the complete boundaries of the reserve, 
nor was there any plan or record of any such 
I'eserve having been laid out in the office." 
He admitted that "there were two or tlm:e 
pegs," but he could not get any one to show 
him " the complete boundaries." '\V ell, if he 
had only taken the trouble to have a~ked 
Constable MaeSweeny, Gillanders, Sergeant 
Collopy, or, in fact, any other civilian living 
in the reserve, the boundary pegs would have 
been shown him; but he (Mr. Macrossan) 
did not think he ever took the trouble to 
a~ccrtain the boundaries. He did not believe 
there was any mining surveyor there :-

"In the month of October, Mr. Superintend­
ing Commissioner Jardine l'equcsted me to accom­
pany him to Millchester, for the purpose of deter­
mining where the reserve should be. I subse· 
quently marked it out in accordance with his 
vic\vs. \V e noticed, at the time, that there were 
several persons encamped within the boundaries 
of the proposed site. Mr. Jardine "aiel that if it 
were determined by the Government to erecL 
the public bnildings at Millchester, it would be 
necessary to give those parties notice to re­
move. Subsequent to this, while M:r. Jarcline 
was at Ravenswoocl, he wrote me a letter, elated 
26th::'\ ovember, 1872, in which he writes as follows : 
-'I would at once give notice to the people 
camped on the reserve at l\1illchester, to remove 
within a given time.' " 
That was, the people who were on the 
reserve as he had extended it; not camped 
on the original r(;Jserve :-

" In accordance with those instructions, I 
caused a notice to be issued giving various parties, 
who were camped within the boundaries of the 
proposed site, fomteen clays notice to remove. 

"I laid out the reserve in November, 1872, and 
on or about 3l'll December, all the people camped 
on the rcscne received a notice to quit.'' 

He then went on to say :-
"Andrews did not begin to build till after l\fr. 

J ardine and myself had determined the site of the 
present reserve ; and while he was building I sent 
him a verbal notice, by my orderly, that he was 
building within the site reserved for Government 
pm·poses." 
Now, he (Mr. Macrossan) took it that any 
individual who understood anything about the 
gold fields well knew that that must be a 
falsehood, although uttered there by the Gold 
Commissioner. There was no man, in 
his senses, who would undertake to build 
a house inside the Government reserve, or, 
having once started to build it, not only upon 
the Government reserve, but even upon any 
other man's claim, or upon a Government 
allotment, who would not immediately desist 
-,especially against Government, for he could 
not claim, by any means, compensation from 
the Government. He undertook to say that 
there was not a single mining member in the 
Hou;,e would believ~J McDonald. Mr. 



1'/ze Case qf [7 MAY.] .J£1·. J. G. McDonalrl. 379 

:M:cDonald had sent verbal notice by his 
orderly. \Vhy did he not produce the 
orderly-it was competent for him to do so­
to be examined by Captain Whish? Captain 
\Vhish told him the evidence of the orderly 
was important; but he did not produce him. 

The t'lECitETARY FOR PuBLIC \V oitKs : \Y as 
that in the evidence? 

Mr . .:\fAcRoss,tN: \Vhicll P 
1'he SEcRETAllY FOR PUBLIC \VoRKS : That 

Captain Whish told him to produce the 
evidence of the orderly P-It was no~ in the 
evidence: withdraw the statement. 

:Mr. lYIAcnossAN: He withdre1v the state­
ment that Ca]Jtaia Whish gave tlte order 
to produce the orderly. But it \Yas com­
]Jetent for Mr. McDonald to have pro­
duced that evidence, because he· must 
have known tha~ the orderly's evidence 
was important. It came out in the rt>­
port by .Mr. Ramsay that the orderly was 
living on Charters Towers for some time­
about six weeks before Mr. Hamsay went up. 
the man went to the Endeavour River. The 
orderly was a man named Burns, who, after 
he had been dismissed by Mr. McDonald, 
followed the occupation of a horse-tailor, and 
herded his horses on the reserve before the 
court house; so that there could have been , 
no difficulty in producing him. If that 
orderly by whom the order had been sent, as 
stated, to Andrews to desist from building on 
the reserre, had been produced, his evidence 
would have settled that matter; but Mr. 
McDc,nald had failed to produce that evi­
dence. "Andrews," he went on to say, 
"was not summoned because his wife stated that 
he was, at the time, suffering from fever, and 
that he would at any time remo.-e as soon as he 
recovered. In accordance with this request, he 
was allowed to remain till the lst February, 1873. 
On then being required to remove, he demurrecl, 
stat.iug that he considered himself entitled to 
some compensation, and stating that the lmilcliug 
had cost him some thirteen pounds to ereet. He 
was summoned on the 1st February, to show 
eansc why he should not be evicted. On the 
aftcmoon of that day, I had been laying off 
c·laims near Millchcster, and on my return the 
defendant met me. I believe \Yilkie, who was 
orderly at the time, was with me. Andrews 
asked me if I would allo>Y him some compensation, 
as he stated again that the building had cost him 
some thirteen pounds, which sum he coulcl obtain 
by removing it ancl erecting it el~ewhere. I 
value the building il self at eight pounds. I 
slated to him tlmt I had no authority whatever 
to allow him any compensation on bt>l;alf of tlw 
Go;'el'llment, but that, as he had been suffering 
fl'Om fever, and stated he was unable to build 
another humpy without compensation, that I 
could take it upon myself to allow him what I 
considered to be a fair value, Pigltt poum1•. This 
he agreed to." 

It would be unnecessm·y to read Captain 
vVhish's inquiry further; it would be better 
that he (.Mr . .:VIacrossan) should go on to 
Mr. Hamsay's, and take that a~ sulllming up 
the whole. 

HoNORABLE MEMBERS : Hear, hear. 
lYir. MACROSSAN: However, he should say, 

that when Captain Whish sent down his 
report to the Government, which, he sup· 
posed, was fully considered by all the mem­
bers of the late Government-at least, he 
should give them the credit of having consi­
dered it, because he found their names 
attached to a minute, headed, " Suspension 
of Mr. J. G. McDonald"-the following 
opinion was arrived at :-

" ::Yiinistcrs recommend, under the report of 
Captain \Yhish, that Mr. McDonald, Gold Com­
mis,ioncr, be suspended, and called upon to show 
c'msc whv he should not be dismissed the public 
service.n" 

It was signed by the honorable gentlemen, 
J\Ir. Thompson, Mr. Graham, Mr. 1\furray­
Prior, 1\Ir. Palmer, and Mr. Bramston. Then, 
Mr. McDonald was superseded by Mr. St. 
George, who went up to Charters Towers. 
Mr. McDonald came down to Brisbane, he 
(Mr. Macrossan) believed, and he sent in a 
reply to Captain \Vhish's report, as it were, 
showing cause why he should not be dis­
missed the public service. Now, mark, in 
answer to that showing of cause, there was 
the statement of Mr. Herbert, the Under 
Secretary, in a letter from him to Mr. 
McDonald :-

" Sir-Referring to previous corresponclence on 
the subject of your suspension from your office as 
Golcl Commissioner, Charters Towers and Brough­
ton Gold Fields, I am desirecl to inform you that 
the Government consider that yon have not cleared 
yom·self of the charges which have been brought 
~gainst you ; but, as you may be entitled to demand 
a fresh im1uiry in consequence of your not having 
had an opportunity of cross-examining the wit­
neoses whose evidence was taken by Captain Whish, 
and of producing witnesses for your own defence, 
a further inquiry will be granted you, should you 
wish it." 

A further inquiry was granted to Mr. 
JliicDonald in consequence of the irregula· 
rity with which Captain Whish had conducted 
the first inquiry. In justice to Captain \Vhish, 
he must be allowed to state for himself why 
he conducted the inquiry in what was sup· 
posed to be an irregular manner : this was 
his reason :-

" In the absence of all instructions as to the 
mode of conducting the inquiry, my sole object 
was to keep it as priyate as possible, affecting as 
it did the character of the senior Government 
officer, and the complaint was, as the honorahle 
Colonial Secretary noticed, of so serious a c•harac­
tcr that I could not but believe that the Com­
missioner would be able to refute it. MY on! Y 
alternative was to arraign l\fr. MeDonald ·in the 
character, more or less, of a prisoner in his own 
court, house on a charge which after all might 
turn out to be groundless. I was loath to expo~e 
him to such a humiliation, p.or did I consider 
such a course advisable on public grounds, as 
being derogatory to the character of the Chief 
Go.-ernmcnt officer for the district, who might, as 
I have said, all the time be perfectly innocent of 
the charge laid aiaiust him ; but I beg to aesure 
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you, that no such sentimental eonsiderations shall 
e•er again form ground of complaint ugainst any 
future inquiry in which I muy be engugecl." 
It was out of deference to Mr. :McDonald 
himself that Captain Whish conducted the 
inquiry as he did. However, an inquiry was 
held by Mr. Ramsay, and Mr. McDonald 
was allowed every opportunity of repu­
diating the charge Andrews had made. J\fr. 
McDonald was in a place where he had every 
opportunity of producing evidence which he 
thought would exculpate him from the charge. 
'l'he inquiry was conducted in a very unusual 
and strict way, on oath; and, yet, according 
to the report of Mr. lhmsay, he utterly 
failed to break down the charge against him. 
Only such portions of Mr. Hamsay's report 
need be read as bore on the case. Now, he 
(Mr. Macrossan) might say, concerning Mr. 
Ramsay, that his was one of the very few 
appointments which were made by the late 
Government that was worthy to be made;­
he was a gentleman who had given great 
satisfaction as a gold commissioner and police 
magistrate at Havenswood ; in fact, there was 
nobody on the Queensland gold fields who 
had given such satisfaction as that gentleman. 
He considered it was an invidious thing to 
ask him to hold an official inquiry upon a 
brother officer of the same rank as himself; 
it placed him in an invidious position, because, 
at that time, there was a rurnor on Charters 
Towers that certain powerful members of the 
late Government were determined that Mr. 
JliicDonald should not be dismissed, and that 
a favorable report was looked for. Well, in 
'Pite of the rumor, J\Ir. llamsay conducted 
the inquiry as a gentleman and as a Govern­
ment officer ought to do. This \YaH hi,; 
report:-

" In my letter of instnu·tion~ there are only l wo 
points in the ease menti01wd for my guidance, 
viz.:-

" 1. The name of thn orderlv said bv J:\Ir. 
McDonald to ha•e been sent by him to gi.-e\wti<'e 
to Andrews that he was building on the reserve ; 
also, if the said orderly was produced, to have him 
examined. 

"2. If it was a fuc't that J. \Viscman \Vilkic and 
Leah Gm·diner were living in the hut in question 
from the 21st ::'!Iareh to some elate in ::'\Iay." 

Now, that was a fact that was plainly proved, 
without dispute. 

The SECRETAUY FOR PunLIC Womcs: :r.,-o, 
no. 

Jliir. JHACROSSAN : It was nob proved: 
Well, the honorable gentleman would say, 
after that, that the sun did not shine. 

An HoNORABLE MEMBER: It does not. 
Mr. MACROSSAN : If any honorable gentle­

man, in open day, raised his head, and shut 
his eyes, and said he could not see the sun 
shine, certainly that did not alter the fact of 
its shining :-

"Regarding the first, ~Ir. Jl.IcDonald stal•~> he 
sent his ordcdy, Hc>m-y Burns, to r;i>e notice to 
the man who wus building the hut, about thl' 3ih 
o1• 6th .2\ oYember, and that this occurred aftpr 

:Ylr. J arcline and himself had fixed the reserve. 
\V m. C. Little, a witness called by Mr. McDonalcl, 
states that on the 5th or 6th X ovember he hearcl 
1\Ir. McDonald request his orderly to gi•e the 
man bnilding the hut notice' that it was on the 
rcsene. Mr. Little also states th,,t ?llr. Jarcline 
was at this time at the Towers." 

Lower down, JYir. Ramsay said :-
"Regarding Little's evidence, I do not consider 

it of any weight." 

He (JYir. Macrossan) had not anything 
to say about him, further than that his 
evidence with respect to anything about Mr. 
lHcDonalcl could not have any weight ,,-ith 
IJersons acquainted with affairs on Charters 
Towers, and 1\Ir. :McDonald's complai;;ance 
in the case of Moxom and Poro, in which 
Little was concerned-a case which was well 
known to the honorable and learned members 
for llavenswood and Oxley. He must tell 
honorable members that, beneath all the 
evidence of the inquiry, there was a mass of 
filth--

HoNORABLE l\IEMBERS: Hear, hear. 
Nir. MACROSSAN: Of scandalous matter-­
HoNORA.BLE l\IEJIBEHS : Hear, hear. 
1\Ir. MAcuossAN : "Which no honorable 

member of the House--
HoNORADLE l\ImrBEns : Hear, hear. 
]\,fr. ::\IAcnossAN: Could thoroughly under­

stand so well as he, himself--
Ho:Nolu.m,g J\fEMBERS : Hear, hear. 
l\lr. 1fACROSSAN : \Vho kn<>w the facts of 

the case; or, as honorable members from the 
gold fields, who kne'il" the state of the gold 
iields. Further on, Mr. l{arnsay said:-

"Yet Mr. McDonald puts in an aflidavit oJ' 
}lr. ltol<l Commissioner ,Jardine's, stating that 
on the day that he, in Mr. }fcDonalcl's company, 
first fixed how far the resN'\"e shoulcl be extencl,d, 
the hu! >ms built"---. 

He (Mr. l\facrossan) hoped the Secretary for 
Public Works would mark that the "hut was 
built." He should give the honorable gentle­
man some information on the subject yet;­
it should be something towards the building 
of the hut. Mr. J ardine went to Charters 
Towers on a special mission in the month of 
October, 1872, which was the date in question. 
He (M:r . .l\:Iacrossan) did not know the exact 
date of his arrival; but he knew it was before 
lhe middle of October. One question upon 
which he was called to decide was, where the 
Government buildings should be. At that 
time, there were two little townships opposed 
to each other very much-one ri>alling the 
other a:; to which shoulclha>e the po•t ofrlce 

' and other Government buildings. A great 
pressure was brought to bear on Mr. J ardinc 
by the residents of Charters Towers and 
Millchester. Mr. J ardine determined that 
he would not make up his mind on the matter 
at that time. He had another mission to 
pertorm, he (Mr. l\Iacrossan) believed, to the 
Cape River; and, abut the 20th, he left 
Charters Tower;; to riLlL· iu lhc Uape ]{iver, 
ancl he' y;-a~ ab.,Pnt about ten or twelve day,, 
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At the time he returned, Charters Towers 
was in a staii• of riol. It might be in the 
recollection of honoralJle members that there 
was a very serious riot- that a certain 
butcher's shop was pulled down. During 

·the first week oJ' K ovember, ]\fr. J ardine, 
Mr. Charters, and Mr. McDonald, and 
other gentlemen were engaged in quelling 
that riot, and in enforcing the keeping 
of the peage, and in trying the rioters. 
Now, l\1 r. ,J ardine did not determine upon 
the reserve until a few days before he left, 
so that he shoulcl not be annoyed by the 
residents in making known his determination. 
He left Charters Towers, it might be, on the 
18th November, and he arrived at Ravens­
wood on the 20th. He (.lYir. Macrossan) was 
inclined to Lelieve that that gentleman, in 
putting in his affidavit, had made the mistake 
of confounding the whole time he was on 
Charters Towers in the month of October; 
but, as if to prove that, he and Mr. Me· 
Donald went together to choose the spot for 
the reserve, as it was to be extended. J\Ir. 
J ardine' s affidaYit contained the following 
passage:-

" At the time aforesaid there Wt~re erected on 
the street frontage of the said reservtc' two or three 
tents, composed of saplings, bark, and canvas, and 
on the bank of the watercourse from the northern 
botmdary of the said resene one lmmpy, facing 
the southern boundarv." 
That was the hm;py in question. There 
never was another built facing the southern 
boundary but the lmmpy of Andrews, as 
stated by J\Ir. Ramsay in his report. Mr. 
l~arnsay was on the ground, and could better 
get all the evidence requisite than honorable 
members could understand it in the report. 
'l'hcre was a great difference between reading 
a report of an inquiry put on paper, and 
hearing witnesses giving their evidence viva 
voce ; as everyone knew, a grPat deal depended 
upon the demean or of witnesses, and upon the 
manner in which they gave their evidence. 
So that Mr. Ramsay was in a much better 
position to judge of the nature of the proofs 
adduced than any honorable member could 
be in the House, reading the report. According 
to Mr. Jardine's affidavit, and as J\Ir. Ramsay 
said in his report-

" He told :!\fr. :M:cDonaltl at the time, that if 
the resene was extended he could purchastc' the 
hut, as it could be ma<ltc' ayailable for men's quar­
ters, aml there is not the least doubt there ni.'ver 
was more than one hut near the plaeP. Andrev;, 
<btinctly denies having receivP:l any notice." 
There could be no doubt that Andrews told 
the truth, that the hut was built outside the 
boundary before the reserve was extended. 
But, in the extension of the reserve, J\Ir. 
:McDonald far exceeded the intentions of Mr. 
Jardine, because, instead of marking off four 
or five acre;, he actually marked off-
" 17 acres 3 roods 30 perches, in the best part 
of the town, which naturally has injured it vm·y 
much, and about a fourth of the ground woulcl 
haye been quite sufficient." 

?\ow, lw (Mr. Macrossan) defied the Minister 
for \Vorks, and anyone else, to say if that 
was not so. 

The SEcRETARY FOR PuBLIC WoRKS: 
Was that part of the charge ? 

Mr. JI.IAcRossAN: No; but it showed how 
:Mr. McDonalcl had exceeded his duty. There 
was another charge apart from that of 
Andrews, a more serious charge than that. 
which he had not come to yet. Purther down, 
after remarking upon Little's evidence, Mr. 
Ramsay said:-

" ThPre is not the least cloubt that J. \Viseman 
Wilkie ancl LeRh Garcliner were living together in 
the hut from the beginning of February till after 
the middle of MaY. It. was notorious that \Vilkie 
was living with her during the time he actC'cl as 
orderly to Mr. JHcDonahl. 

" Regarding Mr. 11cDonalcl not turning \Vilkie 
out of the house, on account of the illness of 
Leah Gardiner, :Mr. Rutherford, chemist, states 
that on the 2ncl :March she was so far recovered 
that she could have movecl easily ; and it is 
strange the very day Mr. Collopy gave Wil~ie 
notice to leave, that Mr. McDonalcl wrote to hrm 
saying that he reguirecl the hut for his orclerlies." 

The other part of the paragraph related to 
the char()'e of embezzlement which was made 
against Wilkie, and the extraordinary .manner 
in which :Mr. McDonald dealt wrth the 
charge. An information was laid against 
\Villciefor embezzlement, and Mr. McDonald, 
instead o£ waiting, as any other magistrate 
would have waited, for \Vilkie to be brought 
before him as a prisoner, actually allowed 
him to be bailed before he was arrested at all. 
It appeared that Wilkie was never arrested 
until he was in the court house, actually 
when he was being tried. The evidence for 
that was the two bondsmen, who stated that 
when they first went to the court house, in 
company with \Vilkie, to sign the bail bond, 
which was some time in the night, they were 
told that the bail bonds were not made out ; 
when they went a second time, Det.ective 
Timmins came up, but he never went m; so 
that Wilkie was never actually arrested at all. 
That was most extraordinary. It tended to 
show, as Captain \Vhish said, "community of 
interest." 

J\Ir. J\IrLEs : Partnership between them. 
Mr. MAcnossAN: Yes; a partnership. 

Mr. Ramsay said :-
"Mr. :\IcDonald has tried to insinuate that the 

whole of the inquiry has been instituted by the 
polic:e ; but if the police had wished to do any­
thing of the kind, it woulcl have been done long 

i ago. 
" In conclusion, I must say I fully endor3e 

what Captain vVhish has statecl in his.re.port, ~n 
every point. Having been. Gold CommrFs.wner 1;1 
charge of Ravenswoocl dnrmg the whole trme M1. 
~IcDonald was stationed at Charters Towers, I 
was perfectly aware that the Police Commissioner's 
Courts";-

he (Mr. J\Iacr~ssan) thot~g~t th?re was ~ 
mistake-" Pohce Commrsswner s Courts 
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must be meant for "Police and Gold Corn- dismissal was quite sufficient; but it was not. 
missioner's Courts";- There were still some further doubts; and 
"were in many cases improperly conducted." the same day, a further telegram was sent :-

h d " I am instructed further to say, 1'e Wilkie, that 
The report of the impropriety had reac e he must not only be dismissed, but not allowed any 
him at Ravenswood, a distance of nearly access to Government premises or records in any 
sixty miles :- wav." 

"In fact, I go much further than Captain I N ~w, he (Mr. Macrossan) maintained that 
\Yhish as I consider the evidence I now forward this was the most serious charge in the inquiry. 
to you'places Mr. McDonald in a far W?rse posi- And Mr. McDonald had failed to do as he was 
tion than he was before, and that, with every directed : he did not dismiss '\Vilkie from the 
opportunity given him, ~e has. qu~te faile~ to Government premises, and the answer which break down the case agamst lnm m any smgle 
point." he made on the 24th .March, by telegram, was 

a falsehood. Perhaps honorable members 
Now, he took it that that report ought to have would not understand that about "Kitchen's 
been sufficient for any Government to have public house." Leah Gardiner, a short time 
dismisFed the gentleman in question. He be- previous to this-according to another CO?J-· 
lieved that had the late Gavernment not gone plaint which he had, quite unconnected w1th 
out of office as soon as they did, after that the present one, but connected with the case 
report reached them, Mr. McDonald wm;ld of Constable Gillanders--
have been dismissed. But that charge which Mr. DE SaTGE rose to a point of order. 

·Andrews made was not the most serious The honorable member for Kennedy said he 
charge in the inquiry. There was ano1her had some other document quite unconnected 
charge underlying that, more serious, although with the present case : he was not in order 
that which Andrews made was quite bad in referring to it. The House had had enough 
enough. Before ever And£ews made a ehar,ge of the present case from him. 
at all, it had come to the ears of the Colomal Mr. M.A.cnossaN: He did not state it! The 
Secretary and the Minister for '\Vorks that honorable member was quite mistaken. 
Mr. McDonald employed vVilkie in the Gov- Mr. DE SaTGE : were they to listen to 
ernment service, "an ex-convict," as he was other matters not connected with the case be-
called; and if honorable members would turn fore the House p 
to the first page of the return, they would Mr. MacRossaN : It was the complaint of 
find two or three telegrams on the subject :- Constable Gillanders. 

"Telegram to Commissioner lHcDonald, Mill- The SPEAKER: He might state that he 
chester.-Brisbane, 15th March, 1873.-Yon are thought the honorablemember had wandered 
requested to dismiss W'ilkie at once." from the case; but he had not wished to 
Another telegram, same date :- , interrupt him so far. 

"MnMo.-Referring to instructions from the l'tir. l't1acROSSAN : In the end of the year 
honorable the Colonial Secretary, I am desired to 1 1871, there was a lady on Charters Tow\rs 
inform you that John Wiseman \Yinie is not to named Mrs. Kitchen, who kept a public-
be employed in any department of .the Gover;1- house. He believed she was pretty well 
ment; you will therefore be good e11ough to d1s- known to every member of the House, and all 
miss hiifi from your office at once." might rest assured that her character had not 
Another, on the 19th March. It seemed that much improved by her going to the North. 
the members of the Government were rather ' HoNORABLE MEMBERS: Hear, hear. 
doubtful about Mr. McDonald com}Jlying . Mr. MaCROSSAN: Well, Captain Whish, 
with that request:- ! in his report-or, at least, ~Ir. M~Don~ld 

"MEMo.-Referring to letter and telegram from himself, in reply to Captam Whish-m-
this office on the 15th instant, requesting you to sinuated a community of interest existing 
dismiss Wilkie, I am to state that the Secretary between him and Wilkie and Leah Gar-
for Public \Vorks considers the employment of an diner. Now, this community of interest 
ex-convict by you as orderly and secretary is un- made its appearance for months before ever 
pardonable. Andrews made his complaint. Mrs. Kitchen 

"It is considered to have been vour dutv as applied to Mr. McDonald, it seemed, quietly, 
police magistrate to have been awar0; througl{ the for a license to keep her house open all night. 
police, who are the licentious characters in yom Mr. McDonald granted her permission. 
district. And hence, since the police report the Constable Gillanders, in the exercise of his 
circumstance!!, vou should have known that this duty, saw her house open, and ordered her to 
man \Vilkie w~s notoriouslv keeping a woman D ld 

" close it. She complained to Mr. Me ona , named Gardiner at Kitchen's public-house. and 1\fr. McDonald fined the constable, who 
" The whole matter is looked on as being most 

discreditable to yomself, and must seriously affcet only acted in the exercis\ of ~is duty, £5, or, 
your character in the eyes of the rr;;pectable in default, two months 1mpnsonment. The 
inhabitants of Charters Towers. constable complained to his superior, ancl his 

"I am further desired to confirm \Vilkic's complaint came down as far as the honorable 
dismissal from your department, and forbid his i member for Port Curtis, and this is what he 
having any further access to the public records." said on the matter :-
Now, one would have thought that that "This conviction is wrong. There is no power 
language was strong enough, and that the given by any Act which enables a magistrate to 
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gwe authority to licensed publicans to keep their 
houses open all night. Mr. McDonald to return 
the £5 fine to Gillanders." 

He (Mr. Macrossan) should like to know the 
date of that : there was no date to it. The 
occurrence must have been at an early period 
of the year. Now, leL the House see what 
the lady was to whom Mr. McDonald was 
lrind enough to give permission to keep her 
house open all night :-

"This hotel in question is one frequented by 
bad characters; rowdies ancl card-sharpers find it 
a home. On the night of the 30th ultimo one of 
the lodgers went out of the house, joined by more 
of the same character, and waylaid two decent 
men on their way home, but were subsequently 
arrested and punished. · 

" Mrs. Kitchen, the proprietress, is a woman of 
very questionable chrtracter; she has recently 
been living with a man who is not married to ht>r, 
her lawful husband being still alive. She has 
also a barmaid, named Garcliner, openly kept by 
a man named James \Viseman \Vilkie." 

At a ve~y early period it was known to every 
one on Charters Towers, and to a great many 
people out of Charters Towers, that Wilkie 
and Leah Gardiner were living together; and 
Wilkie was at the time an orderly of the 
commissioner. Although he was stated to be 
an orderly, he actually never performed an 
orderly's duties, being all the time employed 
in the office on Government work, acting 
sometimes as clerk of petty sessions. The 
" community of interest" between this trio 
was established in January, 1872, when Mr. 
McDonald actually broke the law to enable a 
woman of questionable character to keep her 
house open all night; and broke the law still 
further by reprimanding and fining a con­
stable for doing his duty. Therein, he had 
found he had gone too far. It was not the 
only act of which the same gentleman was 
guilty beyond the law, if the newspapers 
were looked at ; because the whole of his 
career on Charters Towers was in defiance of 
the law and of morality. Honorable members 
would understand that the tent which 
was spoken of in several parts of the 
inquiry, was said to be on the Government 
reserve ; it was so close to the Government 
reserve that Mr. Ramsay said it was 
either on it or so near it that he did not 
think it worth while to run the line. 
This tent was kept as a convenience, and that 
~as ho'l!" the discrepancy occurred; they some­
times hved together in the tent, and when 
more convenient they lived at Mrs. Kitchen's 
public house. Another reason was, they 
boarded at Mrs. Kitchen's; and it was a 
common thing on gold fields for people to 
sleep at one place and hoard at another. He 
had been told by some honorable members, 
that in bringing this motion forward, he was 
simply moving a vote of censure on the 
Government; but he distinctly repudiated 
any such intention ; he had no desire to cen- 1 

sure the Government or to embarrass them 

in any way. His desire was simply to prevent 
a public scandal from being perpetrated, and 
he hoped honorable members would only take 
it as such; and that each member, in giving 
his opinion on the quPstion, would give it alto­
gether independen~ of party motives, and 
with a clear consc1ence, whether he was a 
member of the Government or not. It might 
be asked by honorable members, how was it 
that miners and other residents on Charters 
1'owers did not complain of the irregularities 
of this gentleman ? and he would give a good 
reason why. Rincc his eonnection with the 
gold fields of Queensland, which was over 
eight years, there had been complaints made 
constantly to the Secretary for Public W arks, 
by miners, of the conduct of commissioners. 
At the verv first gold field on which he was on, 
Peak Downs, there was a commissioner there, 
who, as honorable members were aware, ended 
his days in Rockhampton gaol. Complaints 
were made over and over again against 
him, and yet every one of them was un­
attended to ; and he believed that if they 
had been attended to, as they ought to have 
been, his crime would never have been 
committed. Again, in the Rockhampton 
district, innumerable complaints had been 
made against the gold commissioner, of which 
no notice was taken, and it was the same at 
the Cape River. Men actually came down 
from that field to Brisbane to get justice done, 
and then they were told they had no redress. 
At Ravenswood, at a certain time previous to 
the time mentioned in this inquiry, there was 
a gold commissioner, not quite so immoral, 
perhaps, as the gentleman upon whom the 
inquiry was held, but quite bad enough, and 
whose conduct was equally bad, so far as his 
decisions were concerned. He was complained 
of-more than 1,100 persons signed a petition 
calling for an inquiry into his conduct-his 
immoral conduct, and the partiality of his 
decisions as gold commissioner. A short 
time after the petition was sent clown, 
although no specific charge had been made, 
a telegram came to llavenswood, stating that 
an inquiry into a specific. charge mentioned 
therein was to be held by Messrs. McMillan 
and Sharkey. He knew all the circumstances 
connected with the inquiry, as he was present 
on behalf of the miners of the district. 'l'he 
inquiry was--

'l'he SPEAKER: I think the honorable 
member is wandering from the question. 

Mr. :\fAcRosSAN submitted that he was 
not. He was endeavoring to show the reason 
why the miners of Charters Towers had not 
complained against Mr. McDonald. That 
charge was :-did that gold commissioner 
bring a certain woman to a certain place, she 
being a notorious prostitute ? That charge was 
admitted on the second day of the inquiry 
when the commissioner saw that the evidence 
was too strong against him. Another charge 
was in course of being proved, along with 
many others in the back-ground, when the 
inquiry was stopped ; and in spite .of the ad-



'l'he Case q[' [AS8"El\.IBLY.] Mr. J. G. McDona7d. 

mission of the commissioner, who had actually 
been suspended, he was reinstated, and, as 
he said himself, with more ~ower than ever he 
ha,] before. The miners of Queensland, and 
especially of Northern QueeDsland, had been 
tired out in making complaints without avail, 
and that was the reason why no specifie com­
plaint was made against Mr. McDonald 
until the inquiry now under notice was held.. 
Even this complaint Andrews would not have 
made if Mr. MeDonald. had paid him the 
full value of his property. There were two 
men mentioned in the inquiry who were 
evided. a few days before Andrews, l\faci!roy 
and Sanjoe. They came to him and made a 
complaint somewhat similar to the one An­
clrews made to the honorable the Seeretary 
for ·works ;-tiley complained that they had 
been evicted from their humpies, and he dis­
tinctly told them it was better to bear the 
wrong inflicted upon them than to seek redress 
at the hands of the Government in Brisbane, 
brc:cuse they would not get it. Had Andrews 
<'ome to him he would have told him 
the same, because he was completely tired 
of seeing miners make complaints which were 
never attended to. He certainly hoped the 
responsibility which now rested on the 
shoulders oft hat House-a responsibili tyw hi eh 
had never b<'fore assumed the same appearance, 
bcrause hitherto thf' managem<'nt of the gold 
fields had never been brought before the 
House-would be undertaken in the spirit so 
imv>rtant a question deserved. Complaints 
which had been made had never gone beyond 
the walls of tlw office of the honrable theo 
Secretary for \Yorks ; and he hoped every 
honorable member would go into the matter 
with the full responsibility which rested upon 
his shoulders, of trying now, at least, to 
prove that miners would not make complaints 
without having them tried, ancl investigated, 
tmd adjudicated upon justly and honestiv. 
H«' believed he was justified in saying, as ll.e 
said before, that had the late Government 
remained in office, this complaint would not 
have come before the House ; that they 
would have dealt with it in a very different 
manner to what the honorable the Secretary 
for \Yorks had done. He llid not, however, 
blame that honorable gentleman very much, 
because the report of the inquiry, made by 
J1Ir. .Ramsay, did not reach Brisbane in 
£ufficient time before the meeting of Parlia­
ment. This r<'poi•t was dated in :;s-ovember. 
He knew full well that the gentleman who 
previously occupied the position of Minister 
for Works and Mines was fully determined 
that Mr. lVIcDonald was unfit to occupy the . 
position of gold commissioner. Ho had no in· 
tention whatever of depriving Mr. McDonald, 
or rather of ousting him from the public service; 
but he said, from the line of conduct he had 
pursued at Charters Towers, and the scan­
claiR he had caused there, it would still 
be a greater scandal to send him back 
to the gold fields as gold commissioner. 
If the Government were determined to 

keep him in the service, they ought to find 
some other employment for him than that 
of Police Magistrate and Gold Commis­
sioner. He did not wish to dictate what 
they should do, but merely pointed out 

·what they should not do. 'l'hey should not 
place him in that responsible position, be­
eause, from the inquiry, it was evident he was 
totally unfit to discharge such important 
duties. He hoped honorable memhers would 
deal with the matter in sueh a manner as to 
show that they were determined to do justice 
to the miners of the country. He would 
conclude by asking the members of the pre­
sent Government, if, at the time, on the 5th 
of February, when this minute was signed-

" Ministers recommend that the suspension of 
Mr. J. G. McDonald, orderecl by the Executive 
Minute, dated 17th July, 1873, be ";ithdrawn, 
and that the case be 1·eferrecl to the Secretary for 
Public ·works for his decision"- • 
they had ever reall the evidence and the re­
ports given in this inquiry? There was one 
name of a member of the Government 
which was not attached to that minute-the 
name of the honorable the Attorney-General. 
He knew that that honorable gentleman had 
read it previously; and whether it was 
because he had read it his name was not 
there, he dicl not know; but he felt certain 
that if the honorable the l'remier had read 
it, he would never have consented to put 
his signature to that minute. Ho now 
moved-

That, in the opinion of this House, J. G. 
McDonald, late Gold Commissioner, Charters 
'Iowers, is unfit to occupy the responsible position 
of Gold Commissioner or Police Magistrate. 

:i\Ir. HoDGKINSON said he would second 
the motion, although he entirely disagreed 
with it. It was a vote of censure upon the 
present Government, and he could not pos­
sibly endorse it, even if the character of l\tlr. 
IVIcDonald was ten times worse than it was. 
He knel'l' nothing about the virtue of Leah 
Gardiner, about whom the honorable member 
appeared to know so much. He was happy 
to say he ;vas not so well acquainted with her 
as that honorable member appeared to be. 
He did not know at what hour she retired 
to rest, or whether the tent she occupied was 
twenty or forty feet from the commissioner's 
residence. 'l.'he honorable member seemed 
to have devoted a great amount of his intell~­
gont ability to the locality which Leah Gardi­
ner usually adopted as her residence ; and, 
considering the highly mercurial character of 
that gentleman, he could not admire the 
knowledge he possessed of that female. He 
would, howeYer, point out one fact : There 
might be some que;,tion about Mr. McDonald's 
fitness as a gold commissioner, and he would 
noi say that the honorable member for Ken­
nedy was not right to some extent; but he 
thought that when he stated a case against a 
man, he ought to state both sides. Now, it 
was a fact that a testimonial had been pre-
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sented to that officer on the conclusion of the 
inquiry referred to. That testimonial was 
signed by a large number of respectable men on: 
Charters Towers, one of whom was of the same 
name-he did not say that was an additional 
compliment-as the> late Premier, .H. \Yynd­
ham Palmer. There was also Mr. A. B. Uarr, 
manager of Lhe Bank of New South Wales ; 
Mr. 1\iowbray, manager of another bank; and 
a great many other gentlemen, not only 
bankers and business men, but reefers ; and 
it was only right that they should give Mr. 
McDonald credit for receiving that testi­
monial. And when they remembered this 
on the one hand, and also the fact that those 
men were not to be bribed, and then looked 
at the notorious character of the man 
on whose statements the honorable member 
for Kennedy appeared chiefly to found his 
ease-that was this .Mr. Wilkie-he thought 
they could at any rate leave it a matter of 
indecision whether :Mr. lvicDonalu was a 
depraved character or not. No doubt he 
might have been in error, bt'i.t he (Mr. Hodg­
kinson) believed his chief fault was in being 
found out. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC WORKS said he 
eould scarcely make out what the honorable 
member for Kennedy eould mean when he 
said that by this motion he had no intention 
of proposing a vote of censure upon the 
Government. He thought that honorable 
member must givo the Government credit for 
having some little spirit. And was it possible 
that the Government could sit there for ten 
minutes if such a motion were passed ? As 
to ihe disclaimer of the honorable member, 
there was no necessity whatever for making 
it, and he only called attention to it to show 
the value he placed upon it. He would not 
sit in that seat for ten minutes if such a 
motion was carried, and he believed no man 
·with the lca:>t possible spirit could do so. 
As to the motion itself, as the honorable the 
Speaker was aware, this matter was for a 
considerable time before the late Govern­
ment, and it had come to the point at which 
all the evidence was. printed, he thought, 
about six weeks before the present Govern­
ment came into office. At all events, it was a 
month before ; and no doubt the matter had 
been under the careful consideration of the 
late Government. He merely pointed this 
out to show it was an unfair argument to say, 
if that Government had r.omained in power, 
what they would have done; because they 
had plenty of opportunity of going into the 
whole matter, and acting in a certain way, if 
they thought fit, but they did not do so. ·with 
regard to the merits of the case, he could 
only assure the House that he had gone 
through the evidenee carefully, that he had 
pored over it for sBveral day8, and he was 
perfectly satisfied that the statements made 
by Mr. ::YicDonald were thoroughly true, 
and completely borne out by the evidenre. 
His statements were clear and straightforward 
from beginning to end, and were corroborated , 

to a very great extent by the evidence. 1'he 
case was commenced by the letter of Andrews 
to the Secretary for l'ublic \Vorks; and it 
was hard, after reading that letter, to see 
what the charge was. He accused JYir. 
::\fcDonald of having forced hip.1 to leave the 
house which he had built on the reserve, and 
it was difficult to see whether he forced him 
to take too little for the property, or whether 
he should have forced him to leave at all, or 
that having done so-and this appeared to be 
the real charge-he put some other parties in 
it for an immoral purpose. He had examined 
the first part of the charge, and, so far as that 
was concemed, he found that Mr. MeDonald 
had actE-d correetly as a Government officer, 
so far as money matters were eoncerneCI ; and 
with regard to his duty as gold commissioner, 
he was perfectly right in turning the man off. 
The other charge-that he did this only for 
the purpose of putting in other parties 
for inunoral purposes of his ovvn.-was a 
matter of little more cliillculty, perhaps. 
Captain \Yhish was sent up to report on this 
charge, and he was a gentleman with whom 
he was very slightly acquainted; in fact, the 
whole of his acquaintance with him had 
arisen in connection with his report on this 
matter. \Yhen he got so far as the end of 
that report, he was inclined to endorse 
such a memorandum, as he believed the 
honorable the Speaker, when Minister for 
\Y orks, wrote, and which he believed appeared 
in Captain \Yhish's report. But when he 
read the evidenc<l upon which it was based, 
he was Yery much surprised that such a 
re1Jort ever was written. If honorable mem­
bers would look at the evidence and read 
the report, he believed they would be aston­
ished that a man could commit himself 
to so many mistakes. The first man brought 
fonvard was Andrews, who wrote a letter 
to the Colonial Secretary, enclosing in 
it a letter which he said was forced out of 
him, by threats, by the Gold Commissionrr 
and the man \Yilkie. Now, the honesty of 
witnesses was a very important element in 
dealing with a matter of this kind, and there­
fore, first all, he tried to find out what sort of 
a man Andrews was. He found in a telegram, 
a testimonial from a policeman up there, that 
he was a man of excellent character. Now, 
he would rall attention to the fact that, all 
through this aflair, very little was saitl against 
Mr. McDonald, and very little evidence was 
given against him, that there was not a police­
man at the bottom of it. There was nothing 
so clear as that it was a private matter, and 
that the police were at the bottom of it. In 
every important step in the investigation, the 
police were the only men who came forward 
against JI.Ir. McDonald ; it was also clearly 
proved that Andrews was in constant com­
munication with them, and it seemed to 
him very evident that they were the concoctors 
of the whole scheme. Now, with regard to 
the honesty of this man Andrews, honorable 
members, on turning to page 4, would find the 



386 The Case qf [ASSEMBLY.] Mr. J. G. MeDonald. 

letter addressed to Mr. M<'Donald, which he 
enclosed to the Coloniall:lecretary, and which 
ran as follows :-

"I have the honor to inform you that I was 
served with a summons to-clay f6r being in un­
lawful occupation of land reserved for Police 
Court and other Government purposes. I am in­
formecl that if an order is made against me, it is 
within your power to stop my taking away, or in 
any way disposing of the building or any improve­
ments I have made on the ground I have but 
lately known to be reserved for Government pur­
poses. It is unfortunate for me I should be placed 
so, for I am only recovering from a lengthened 
suffering of feyer, and barely in a position to find 
the ordinary necessaries of life. This being so, 
I respectfully request you will concede that I be 
allowed to remoYe the improvements I have made, 
by Monday, the lOth instant. I ha Ye been offered 
£13 for the place, but would prefer to dispose of 
it to you for the Government, and what improve­
ments I ha Ye made, at that sum-£8." 
This letter, he said, he was coerced to write 
before he was removed, and it was commented 
~m i~ the report w,ritten by Captain vVhish, 
m th1s way :- . 

" The spirit of the lettt•r is submisoive, almost 
abject, which is by no means the spirit in which 
Andrews thinks and speaks of the whole a:ffair ; 
the letter represents him in pecuniary difficulties 
at a time when he was earning from £6 to £12 a­
week as an engineer; ancl the idea of his preferring 
£8 from a gold commissioner to £13 from a 
private individual is so incredible, that M1·. 
McDonald thought it nece,sary to account for it 
(see page 4), by explaining that Andrews would 
have had to move the house for £13, which the 
lattrr denies." 

If honorahle members would now turn to 
page 12, they would find the original of this 
letter which he sent down to the Colonial 
Secretary, and which he represented-in fact 
he swore to it-to be a COlJY of the original 
whieh he was coerced to sign. This letter 
run pretty much in the same way as the copy, 
until they came to one or two important 
points. It said :-

"I have been offered £13 to remove the building, 
which was struck out of the copy-
" but would prefer to dispose of it to you, for the 
Government, at £8, as it stands, and that what 
improvements I have made, to you, at that sum." 

The concluding words were, as would be seen, 
also altered, and the circumstances, as they 
appeared in the original letter, were entirely 
altered from what he represented them to be. 
The copy sent down was made to· have a 
t •!ally different meaning, and how this could 
11itYe escaped the observation of Captain 
Whish-and it would be seen that it was an 
important matter, because it referred to 
the most serious charge made against Mr. 
MeDonald Ly Captain Whish-he could not 
understand. He said :-

"The idea of his preferring £8 from a gold 
com:nissioJ?-er to £13 from a private indiYiclual, is 
so mcrecl1ble that Mr. MeDonald thought it 
necessary to accotmt for it." 

. And, what Mr. McDonald said was, that 
' Andrews had told him another party had 

offered him £13 to remove it; but Andrews, 
in the letter he enclosed to the Colonial Bec­
rctarv left out the words "to remove the 
build!ng." So far with regard to the man's 
honesty. But he went further into this matter. 
He had his suspicions aroused when he came 
to this part of the testimony, which appPared 
to be the only portion of it of any use, be­
cause the other evidence was given by parties 
who had a strong bias in the matter, and 
whosP opinions should never have been taken, 
and how they came to be taken he did not 
know. When he came to examine further 
into this man's character, he found that he had 
been convicted under the Vagrant Act by the 
Bench about six weeks before, and for what P 
For striking a woman. It was a very dis­
graceful case, and the Police Magistrate at 
the time had to speak in very strong terms of 
this man's conduct. Then, to show the fur­
ther bias the police had in the matter, Collopy 
actually came forward and endeavored by a 
side wind to insinuate that this man, who was 
not only fined, but severely censured by the 
Bench, was not fairly treated. He said two 
women were fighting; Andrews went to separate 
them, and one of them said he struck her, and 
yet the Bench fined him. In fact, in excusing 
the man in that,way, he, in effeet, insinuated 
that the Bench was wrong. He represented 
it as a squabble between two women; Andrews 
rushed in like any respectable man might to 
separate them, and for that the Bench fined him. 
But, in reality, it was a most disgraceful case, 
and Mr. Jardine, the Police Magistrate, com­
mented in very severe terms on the conduct 
of Andrews. There was another point on 
the morality of the question that had been 
lost sight of: which was material here. This 
letter represented Andrews in pecuniary diffi­
culties, when it appears he was earning from 
£6 to £12 a-week. Captain Whish put it 
forward as an excuse why Andrews could not 
have written this letter, that he was receiving 
from £6 to £12 a-week as an engineer. There 
might be some excuse, if he was sick and his 
wife lying ill, to come forward and write such 
a letter to the commissioner as he did; but 
what possible opinion could they form of a 
man who, when he was earning from £6 to 
£12 a-week, could make himself so mean 
-so detestable-as to write such a letter, 
simply for the purpose of getting £8? He 
threw aside his evidence as utterly bad 
and worthless. When he came to study 
the points and to follow them out, he found 
there was scarcely a bit of his evidence in 
which he did not contradict himself, or in 
which his wife clid not contradict him. Look 
at the kind of evidence on which Captain 
vYhish wrote his report ! If honorable mem­
bers would look through the bulk of Andrews' 
evidence, they would see it was what his 
wife told him. He came forward, gave 
this to Captain Whish in the shape of 
evidence, and then there· was a certificate 
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signed by Selina Andrews that this was 
correct. That was certainly the most ex­
traordinary evidence he had ever heard of. 
Then look at the statement in the last para­
graph but one of !Japtain V\rhish's report, 
page 6, where he sa1d :-

" Throughout this inquiry, the information 
o btainecl from the police officers has been most 
reluctantly given, especially such eYiilence as 
might seem to impugn the character of the Gold 
C ommissiouer." 

He thought, if honorable members compared 
that with the evidence given in that report, 
and the facts proved in evidence afterwards, 
they would find very little justification for 
that assertion. For instance, one officer 
stated quite coolly, that the police barracks 
were not finished until the latter end 
of April, but according to Captain \Vhish's 
opinion, it was made with great reluctance. 
The statement ";as, however, thoroughly 
untrue, as was shown by the records of the 
department. If there was one thing proved 
more than another-for the evidence was in 
his own possession-it was that the building 
was finished on the 31st of January, and 
people were living in it at that time. He 
was not comparing the evidence given on one 
side with that given on the other; he was 
merely taking the evidence of those who had 
tried to prove Mr. McDonald in the wrong, 
and it was actually proved, on their own 
statements, that it was impossible be could 
have been there at the time. He believed 
the honorable member for the Kennedy said 
the letter was written in Wilkie's hand­
writing, but he bad seen the original letter, 
and he was satisfied that it "as not. Now, 
after all, it was very hard to see what they 
had been trying to prove Mr. McDonald 
guilty of. Captain \Vhish said it resolved 
itself into a number of questions, such as :-

" Was there a recognised reserYe at Millchester 
before Mr. McDonald went there ; and, if so, of 
what area?" 
\Vhat that could possibly have to do with the 
subject he could not understand. The plain 
facts of the matter were these :-Mr. J ardine 
had at a certain time marked out an area of 
ground for a reserve ; it "as increased on the 
spot that l~ad been pegged out before, and the 
reasons giVen by .Mr. McDonald for the 
action he took in the matter, seemed to him to 
be good and conclusive. As a matter of fact, 
the reason it was increased to seventeen acres 
was to oblige the inhabitants, by allowing 
them to make a portion into a cricket ground. 
But that was a matter of no importance 
what ever. He had power to make the reserve 
as large as he thought necessary, and he 
could not see how that had any bearing on the 
question. \Vhether Andrews' house was on 
the reserve or not did not bear materially on 
the matter, because Mr. McDonald had power 
to remove him whether he "as in the original 
reserve or not. The only question was whe­
ther Mr. McDonald told the truth when he 

said the man was building there at a certain 
time. Mr. J ardine said, in his affidavit, that 
when he went to mark off the ground 
there was a hut on it; and Mr. McD0nald 
said, after receiving instructions from hi:> 
superior officer, Mr. J ardine, to mark off the 
ground, but before he did so, he was "alking 
over it, and saw a man building a hut, and he 
sent his orderly to give him warning, which 
was only a matter of courtesy, as the reserve 
had not then been marked off. It seemed the 
man and his mate, or the man he had in his 
employ, were at work, and Mr. J.\1cDonald, 
after sending his 01·derly to them, rocle on ; 
and this was corroborated by a man who was 
in his company. It had been said that this 
orderly was not called as a witness, but there 
was no blame wha.tever to }fr. Jl.icDonald for 
that. He had not the slightest information 
as to the way in which the investigation was 
conducted, what witnesses would be required, 
or what he was wanted to do. But whether 
his orderly gaYe the men warning or not was 
quite immaterial. This man corroboratPd 
J\fr. McDonald's statement, "hich was also 
corroborated by several other facts too minute 
to go into ; and if there was anything ni.ore 
conclusively proved than another, it was the 
correctness of Mr. JI.IcDonalcl's statement­
that there "as a hut building on the ground 
at thA time, which was a matter the honorable 
member for the Kennedy brought against him. 
He might here state that during the whole of 
the investigation he never saw .Mr. :McDonald; 
he did not know him personally, and until 
recently, he never spoke a word to him in his 
life. In going through this matter, there 
were two points he was not clear upon, and 
he sent for Mr. McDonald ancl asked him 
how could it be consistent with truth to say 
there was no hut on the ground two days after 
Mr .• Tardine said he saw it. Mr. l\'IcDonald 
at once referred him to a eertain date, 
and he saw that the Government had 
actually bought off the hut referred to by 
Mr. J ardine, and he now had the vouchers in 
his desk, giving the man compensation for it. 
This was conclusive proof; and all the more 
valuable, because M:r. Jardine did not know 
at what point his evidence on the matter 
would be directed. It "as a small hut, and 
he had the vouchers for the £4 compensation 
paid for it. It was amusing to see the way in 
which they proved the reserve was there. 
~\1r. McDonald said he could never get any 
one to show him the complete boundaries of 
the reserve, nor was there any official record 
respecting it at Millchester ; but when Mr. 
Whish was sent up, he at once sent for the 
inevitable poliqeman, he called Gillanders, 
who was always ready to prove the reserve. 
But why, in the name of eommon· sense, 
should a commissioner go and ask a police­
man for things which ought to be in the 
office P If the Government could not find 

1 better means than that of keeping records in 
towns of such importance as Millchester, he 
thought Mr. McDonald was quite justified in 
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taking the thing de novo and marking out the 
reserve afresh. Captain "\Vhish gave what 
might be termed Irish kind of evidenre on 
this-he said he saw the pegs himself. Now, 
if that meant anything, it simply meant tlu1t 
the policeman showed him the pegs. He 
said:-

"And I was myself shown the pegs, which arc 
still standing." 
And he gave this as proof positive that a 
survey had taken place. This was only 
repeating, in another form, and a very unfair 
form, so far as l\1r. l\t[clJonald was concerned, 
that the policeman showed him the pegs, and 
it amounted to nothing. He would again 
call attention to the man Andrews. Captain 
Whish said :-

" The spirit of the letter is submif,$ive, almost 
abject, which is by no means the spirit in whieh 
Andrews speaks of the whole affair." 
But honorable members must remember that 
Andrews' rage took three weeks to bcil over. 
It was only when he got the money, and had 
frrsh conversations with the policeman, and 
kept going backw:ard and forward, that his 
indignation was raised to the point at which 
he wrote the letter to the Colonial Secretarv. 
Captain Whish said in his report, page 5 :_:: 

" On the 6th and 7th particulars,-The evidence 
of all parties shows that after turning Andrm'' s 
ancl his wife out of the house, Mr. MrDonahl 
gave possession of it to \Vilkie, n·ho was his 
orderly, and who occupied it from the \,ime that 
Andrews vacated it, to the date of Wilkie's la"t 
embezzlement, about ihe 25th May,-ancl that lw 
had a prostitute named Leah Gartliner living with 
him at the time, of which fact Mr. McDonn1c1 was 
admittedly cognisant." 

The hut was handed over to the Inspector of 
Police, and after that it was entirely out of 
the hands of Mr. McDonald. The Inspector 
had often asked for a house-he asked if he 
might have that one, and when it was given 
to him, all the responsibility rested with him 
with regard to the parties remaining there. 
There .Was a good deal of evidence on the 
matter, which went to show that Mr.lVIcDonald 
was living about three miles back, at Charters 
Towers, at the time he allowed them to occupy 
the house; and that when he actually found 

1 out the character of the man and the woman, 
he did not allow them to remain inside Gov­
ernment property at all. There was one part 
of the evidence upon which he himself was a 
long time before he could be satisfied. He 
did not wish to follow the lwnorable member 
for Kcnnedy into details, except so far as they 
bore on the point, and there was one point 
which required very careful study before the 
thing could be seen. The correspondence 
commenced with a telegram from the Under 
Secretary to l\!r. McDonald-

"You are requested to dismiss '.'Vilkie at once.'' 

That was on the fiftePnth of March, and it 
was hard to S('e from the evidence, except by 
carefully comp:tring dates, whether he carried 
out these instrurtions or not. He had, how­
ever, satisfied himself, on a perusal of the 
evidence, th:tt the telegram in the middle of 
the page, 

"Re \Vilkie-Your r,'quest has been attended to," 

was conert in every particular. That was 
on dw 24th of April, ancl it appeared that 

He did not think there could be a more unfair 
conclusion, or that a more unfair remark than 
this could be made on the eTiclcnce that Mr. 
McDonald gave about this matt,•r. He ac­
tually made it to be understood in his report 
that, Mr. MeDonald knowing these circum­
stances, allowed this man "\Vilkie to go into a 
hut that was the property of the Government, 
and that he admitted it. But it had never 
been admitted by Mr. l\1cDonald throughout 
the case, ancl his statement on the point was 
clear and straightforrmrd. Not knowing any­
thing of the antPcedents of \Vilkie, who ap­
peared to be an Px-convict, and on the recom­
mendation of Mr. J ardine, who nwrely said 
V\'ilkie had got into some trouble, he took 
him into the Government employment. This 
was all the foundation there was for Captain 
Whish's statement, that J\fr. Jl.icDonald took ; 
vVilkie into the Government service, and he 
knew a woman came to live with him. l\Ir. 
McDonald was not aware at the time, so far 
as he could see, whether this woman was his 
wife or not; and as soon as he did know, as 
the evidence showed, that she was a woman 
of the town, he ordered them to leave. The 
doctor said the woman could not leave at that 
particular time, and the orders then given 
were to leave as soon as she was able. 

, on the day he received the telegram he 
dismissed Wilkic. He had found that 
the records of the office showed there was 
nothing in Wilkie's handwriting af~or that 
date; and he had not. ll'ft the premises for 
the reason given before-that it was in the 
possession ol another man. He would now 
make a few remarks as to how this case grew 
as it went on. The first charge, and the 
only charge that he could see, was this : that 
Mr. McDonald had used Government pro­
perty for immoral purposes; and 1vith regard 
to this he would point out that one extra­
ordinary part of the evidence was the letter 
written by "\Vilkie to the Colonial Secretary. 
which had been commented on so severely to 
the disparagement of l\lr. lVIc Donald. All 
he could say was, that if the fair fame of' 
any Government officer was to be tarnished 
in the slightest degree by such letters as 
that, it was time every respectable man left 
the Government service. He would not give 

1 it five minutes' consideration, and he was 
astonished that the Commissioner sent up to 
inquire into the matter could think it could 
possibly have any influence in the ease. He 
could r~ot see that it had any bearing on the 
case ; and from the very fact that Wilkie 
tried to bring his old master, or superior, 

1 

into a mess, was the best evidence in fact in 
favor of him. \Vilkie's virtuous remon-
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strance with Leah Gardiner about the scan­
dal she was causing by walking out at night 
with Mr .. :U cDonald for immoral purpose~ 
led to the assault case ; and if vYilkie's 
evidence was of any use at all, it was in 
support of Mr. McDonald. It [ended to 
prove that they were all virtuous, and not 
immoral characters, and on that point the 
whole case rested. Another charge mixed 
up with this was, respecting the arrest of 
vVilkie; and not understanding much about 
legal matters, he had consulted the. honorable 
the Colonial Secretary on the pomt, and he 
said .Mr. McDonald acted according to the 
usual forms, and quite correctly-so that 
he could at once dismiss that from 
fnrther eonsideration. He knew the honor­
able member for the Kennedy had a strong 
belief in the legal opinions of the honora ble 
the Colonial Sccreiary, and he would, there· 
fore, take it for granted that Mr. J\leDonalcl 
was right in all his proceedings in that matter. 
He was prepared to go further into the evi­
dence of Andrews, but he thought the House 
would be perfectly satisfied with what he had 
already shown respecting his character. He 
had been convicted in court under the 
Vagrancy Act six months before ; it was 
shown that he was a man mean enough to 
write a letter which was characterised by the 
commissioner sent up to enquire into the 
matter as " submissive, almost abject," and 
in which he stated he had been sick and was 
not in good circumstances, in ordPl' to get £8 
from the Government ; while, according to 
Captain \Yhish's report--although it was not 
clear how he got the information, and he 
presumed he made it on the man's own 
authority-he was earning from £(j to £~2 
a-week. He was also mean enough, m 
writing to the Colonial Secretary, to enclose 
a letter which was altered from the original; 
and it was through that piece of forgery 
ihat all the charges had been made against 
Mr. JYlcDonalcl. If he had been honest 
enough to send down the original letter in 
the iirst place, there would have been no 
investigation by the Government. Another 
advantage taken of Mr. McDonald was 
charging him, in the second report, with 
being responsible for the morality of the 
town, and with issuing licenses to a 1l sorts of 
people. This was n'ry unfai1·, awl he dirlnot 
take it mio his consideration at all. There 
were five magistrates on the bench, and how 
eould Mr. McDonalcl be held responsible P 
It was introduced into the evidence for the 
purpose of damaging JI.Ir. JYicDonalcl, but the 
true facts of the case did not clama::: c him in 
the least. He had read l'.Ir. St.' George's 
letter, but it did not bear out what was 
stated. Mr. St. George was sent up to tal[e 
charge of the field when lHr. McDonald \nlS 

suspended, and as soon as he arrived there, 
he wrote to Mr. Jardine as follows:-

"I nrriYecl here on the 30th n1llnt1), t~11d tuok 
o\ er charge from JI,Ir. MeDonalcl nu 1st Au;;mt, 
the two intervening days being holUay,; on ac ;uunt 

of the races. I am glad to be able to tell you 
1· that I found everything in the most satisftwtory 

state in the oflice, and, so far as I have been yet 
able to judge, out of doors as well ; and I am 
bound to say that at tl1e races, as you know, 
usually a so~·t of licen "ed saturnalia on a gold 
field, nothing coulcl be more orderly than the con­
duct of the people. I have not had a single 
police court case before me, arising out of any 
misconduct or riotous behaviour there, or, indeed, 
elsewhere. There are of course a considerable 
number of disorderly characters, of both sexes, 
upon a place like this, but so far as I can judge, 
thcv arc held well in hand; and, though I have 
giv~n strict orders to the police respecting them, 
I have had no complaint brought before me. 
JiicDonald goes down to-day, and he has been 
presentecl with a most flattering address and a 
purse of £120. I darB Bay you will sec the former. 

Later, on the 6th of August, he wrote again 
on the same subject, and much to the same 
purport, except in one clause, which he would 
read:-

" There has been, in my opinion, too great a 
facility given by the bench of magistrates here to 
persons of notoriously disreputable character in 
obtaining licenses as publicans; and, judging by 
rcpuk, ancl from my own observation, I should 
say that some of the public houses in the town 
are brothels." 

That was about the only evidence on the 
matter, and he took it as the best evidence. 
He believed a man who had been in Brisbane 
for some time could make the same observa­
tion about tlH• Brisbane bench of magistrates. 
He passed a house which, he believed, could 
be characterised in that way, and the state­
ment-" that some of the public houses in 
the town are brothels " might also be said 
about Brisbane. Such a thing as that could 
not be brought in as part of the charl?e, and 
he merely brought it forward as showmg the 
way in whieh evidence had been foisted in. 
He had examined the matter connected with 
the granting of licenses very carefully, and 
the correspondence showed that it was the 
police who were to blame that certain persons 
did not get notice. In fact, the bench ex­
pressed ~egret that they could not go into 
the matter, simply because notice had not 
been given. And yet, although there were 
five respectable men on the bench, this was 
brought in as a charge, not against the bench, 
but against one individual. There was one 
part of the rorrespondcnee which did not 
refer to his department at. all, and that was 
with reference to policeman Gillanders. He 
had read it through, and he thought it was 
not a very heinous thing for a magistrate to 
grant leave to a publican to keep his house 
open all night. He did not know whether it 
was legal or not, but he knew that, in his 
capacity as a magistrate, he had clone it him­
self, and the parties had danced all night. 
A.nd then, an additional reason why leave 
should have been given on the occasion 
referred to was-it was New Year's night; 
and, if he had been in Mr. McDonald's place, 
he would lhave gi'l'en them leave himself, a• 
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long as they behaved respectably. Whether givmg his evidence, and no man knew bet­
ter than he did, what evidence he should give 
to elicit the truth. The honorable member 
for the Kennedy had referred repeatedly 
to the removal of people out of the way so 
that they should not give evidence, but there 
was one man, Mr. Little, who gave very 
important evidence, and Mr. llamsay appeared 
to think very little of it; and therefore he did 
not· think the statements of Mr. Ramsay 
should weigh much with the House. He 
would not detain the House longer, but he 
believed that anyone who read all the papers 
carefully, would see that it was simply a 
quarrel between the Gold Commissioner and 
the police, and the latter had managed to 
rake up into it the dirtiest matter he ever 
knew. After having very carefully gone into 
it himself, he believed that Mr. McDonald 
came out free of blame. It was asked 
whether the Ministers were responsible for 
his re-appointment, but all he could say was, 
that he recommended that re-appointment, 
and that he was quite willing to take the 
whole responsibility of it upon himself. He 
had examined the case, and he admired the 
straightforward way in which McDonald had 
treated it; at the same time quite understand­
ing the difficulties that gentleman had to 
contend with. 

Mr. P ALMER thought the motion should 

it was legal or not, he knew it was the 
custom of the country for magistrates and 
the bench to allow it. Mr. McDonald acted 
en his opinion, and there was nothing, so 
far as he could seP, immoral or wrong 
in it, or anything to support the state­
ment that he was unfit to be a magistrate. 
·with regard to going over the evidence there 
was one point on which he had not dwelt, and 
that was, the apparent inconsistency between 
the evidence given by the man Andrews and 
that given by his wife. Honorable members 
would see that Andrews' evidence differed 
upon most material points from that of his 
wife, and therefore there was not much 
dependence to be placed upon it; he might 
say that he had settled his mind upon 
Andrews' evidence, after knowing his history, 
before he had read it. It might be that he i 
had left out some point of importance in the 
case, but he could safely say he had given it 
the most minute study and consideration, and 
had gone into every detail to see if Mr. 
McDonald bad acted improperly. He saw 
that directly Mr. MeDouald wrote the 
memorandum on the report, that if he had 
gone further, and seen the evidence on which 
it was based, he would not have written it. 
He had read to the House, he believed, 
sufficient to exonerate that officer from having 
anything to do with the woman whom Wilkie 
brought into the hut. Some honorable 
members, he had heard, said the case ap­
peared to be not proven ; but he considered it 
was most distinctly proved by Mr. McDonald 
that he was not aware of the character of 
the people about him. There was one point 
remaining upon which he had not settled his 
mind, and that was, -..vh~ther McDonald 
obeyed his orders-whether having received 
instructions to dismiss the man Wilkie, 
be did so immediately ; but there was 
proof that he did so; the mere fact of the 
woman remaining in the hut until some time 
afterwards was said to be a proof that he had 
not acted up to his instructions ; but he did 
act up to them, and whether people kept her 
there or not afterwards, had nothing to .do 
with :Mr. McDonald, for she might have lived 
there for a month afterwards, and he would not 
know anything about it. There was some­
thing about the circumstances of the woman 
leaving the place which would absolutely 
exonerate JH:r. McDonalcl from knowing any· 
thing about it. The statement of Collopy that 
she was living there till the 25th May was 
quite sufficient for him ; and if honorable 
members would refEr to the different evi­
dence that man gave on three different occa­
sions, they would be quite satisfied that it was 
not to be relied upon. In one place it con­
tained a lot of insinuations, next time it was 
plainer, but when the man was cross-examined 
he ran away altogether in several particulars. 
No honorable member would fail to see that 
on the occasions on which Sergeant Oollopy 
was examined he was not consist.nt in 

i not have been put in its present shape, as it 
was, in fact, giving to the House the prero­
gative of the .Executive in dealing with their 
own officers. If the motion had been put in 
another form, such as, that in the opinion of 
the House the Government by their re-instate­
ment in office of Mr. J. G. McDonalcl were 
not worthy the confidence of that House, he 
could easily have understood it. The horror­
able Minister for Works had put the case so 
well, that he would not have risen at all to 
address the House, had it not been for the 
statement of the honorable member for the 
Kennedy-that if the late Government had 
remained in office Mr. McDonald would never 
have been re-instated. Perhaps that horror­
able member, in his reply, would say how he 
became possessed of that information. Now, 
so far from that having been the case, he 
might say that he had always held the 
opinions he now expressed-and no doubt the 
honorable Minister for Works would come 
across papers · to that effect-that Mr. 
McDonald was very badly treated. He was 
not at all satisfied with the reports of Captain 
Whish and Mr. l~amsay, but went into the 
evidence himself very carefully, and came to 
the conclusion that . the case was one of 
malicious persecution of Mr .. McDonald from 
beginning to end. '!.'hat was his opinion ; 
and no doubt some action would have been 
taken had not his honorable colleague, the 
late Minister for Works, required further 
evidence before he could make up his mind. 
Had that further evidence come, in all proba­
bility his Government would have taken the 
same action as that taken by the present 
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Government, and for which he gave them 
great credit. 

Mr. DE SATGE thought it was quite evident 
thab the honorable member for Kennedy had 
brought all the powers of his mind to bear 
upon the persecution of Mr. McDonald; but 
that honorable member appeared to have 
been opposed to every commissioner, for he 
believed it could not be denied that he had 
pleaded guilty to assaulting Mr. Hackett, and 
had been fined for the offence.. He thought 
that an honorable member who had thus lost 
his temper on one occasion should have been 
the last person to bring forward the present 
case, and to attack a civil servant under his 
privilege as a member of that House, 
especially after that officer had had his ease 
thoroughly investigated by the Ministry, and 
had been acquitted by them. 

Mr. LoRD said he had followed the horror­
able member for the Keunedy very closely 
through his arguments, and he had certainly 
arrived at the same conclusion as the old 
Scotch proverb-not proven. The whole case 
amounted to this, that Mr. McDonald had 
an orderly, who kept a woman. 

Mr. MILES said he had no doubt that he 
should be accused by the honorable member 
for N ormauby of wishing to maliciously per­
secute Mr. McDonald, when he said he held 
the very same opinions thab had been ex­
pressed by the honorable member for the 
Kennedy. He had read all the papers very 
carefully, and he could come to no other con­
clusion than that the report of Mr. Ramsay 
was borne out by the evidence. There was 
an old proverb that-

" Birds of a feather will flock together,U 

and when he found that Wilkie was orderly 
to Mr. McDonald, who must have known his 
previous character, and that he had been con­
victed of embezzlement, the whole case 
appeared to him as one which required look­
ing into. The whole speech of the honorable 
Minister for Works referred to an inquiry 
made by Captain Whish, and the honorable 
member never made one allusion to the inves­
tigation carried on by Mr. Ramsay. Now, 
it would be found that Mr. Ramsay, after 
Captain Whish's report was sent in, commu­
nicated with McDonald, and told him that he 
musb defend himself against the charges 
which had been made against him; and to 
that Mr. MeDonald replied, that the inquiry 
was not a fair one, as he had no opportunity 
of cross-examining the witnesses. Mr. 
Ramsay then held another inquiry, the result 
of which was to put Mr. McDonald in a 
worse position than he was in before. Then 
again, the honorable member was very incon­
sistent in the attacks he made on the police, 
inasmuch as, on the previous evening, during 
a debate in committee on the Elections Bill, 
the Government held up the police as being 
specially qualified for the collection of the 
electoral rolls ; how they could be that, and 
yet be guilty of such conduct as that with 

which they were charged by the honorable 
member, he was at a loss to say. The fact 
was, the Government wanted one night to 
make use of them, and on the next, they were 
abused by a member of the Government, who 
said that the whole of the evidence against 
McDonald was simply the result of a quarrel 
between that gentleman and the police. He 
(Mr. Miles) was of opinion that the police 
were like other people-there were good and 
bad amongst them; but he was not prepared 
to make the sweeping charges against them 
which had been made by the honorable 
Minister for Works. 

Mr. IvoRY called attention to the state of 
the House. 

A quorum was formed. 
Mr. MILES: As he had said, he had looked 

through the evidence and he had failed 
entirely to come to the same conclusion as 
the honorable Minister for Works. It would 
be useless for him to go into that evidence 
again after it had been gone into so fully by 
other honorable members; but he was con­
fident that it was all against Mr. McDonald. 
Then, again, it should be remembered that 
the ho):wrable member for Kennedy had been 
residing on that gold field; so that every 
thing had come under his personal observa­
tion, and was it to be supposed that that 
houorable member would stand up in that 
Hou~e and state what was false P 

Mr. \V. Scott called rtttention to the state 
of the House. 

A quorum being formed, 
]\fr. ::'viiLES resumed : Honorable members 

seemed to be very uneasy ; but although 
they could count out the House, they would 
not put him down. 1'he honorable member for 
Normanby attacked the honorable member 
for Kennedy by saying that that honorable 
member was always quarrelling with gold 
commissioners and had been fined for horse­
whipping one ; but he was under the impres­
sion that a horse-whipping would do some oi 
them good. He believed that some of the 
gentlemen appointed to the position of com­
missioners were entirely unfitted for it-they 
resided at the most distant and extreme ends 
of the colony, and being thus far removed from 
the seat of government, they could do almost 
·as they liked, and ride roughshod over every­
body. He was not surprised at the hunorable 
member having horse-whipped one of them. 
If the honorable member divided the House 
he should vote with him ; and so far as his 
vote was concerned-whether it affected the 
position of the Government or not, he did not 
care one single straw-he shoulcl not hesitate 
in recording it. 

Mr. FRYER said that like the honorable 
member for Carnarvon, he was very glad that 
the honorable member for the Kennedy had 
the courage to bring the matter before the 
House. The honorable member for Nor­
man by, with his usual adroitness, had managed 
to import other matters into the debate, and 
had mentioned about the houorable member 
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for the Kennedy having been fin~d for 
assault-well, he had heard somethmg of 
that case, and he believed the Bench fined 
the v>rong person. He thought it was 
right that questions like the present should 
be brought before the House, so that 
honorable members might know what ~Iinis­
ters were doing sometimes-so that some 
things might. be exposed whirh would 
not bear the light of inquiry. It appeared 
to him that there had been a great deal of 
beating about the bush, and referring to little 
discrepancies in the evidence without looking . 
at the main facts. He thought the }Jrincipal i 

thing to be considered was, whether the com- · 
missioner knowingly employed an ex.convict, 
and whether he employed him, knowing that 
he was then living in direct violation of the 
law; also whether he allowed public houses 
to be kept open in violation of the law ; also 
whether he fined a constable for discharging 
his duty ; those were all matters which should 
have been treated very differently to what 
they had been by the honora ble Minister for 
Works. It had been stated that com­
missioners were irres pomible, and that no 
appeal could be made from their decisions ; 
but if such was the case, it was all the more 
necessary that great care should be shown in 
the selection of gentlemen to fill such an 
office ; and if the debate did no other good, it 
wouid have the effect of drawing attention to 
the necessity of giving a court of appeal 
from their decisions. Mention had been 
made of a testimonial whic.h had been given 
to l\Ir. McDonald, and he had .cen it, aml a 
splendid specimen of caligraphy it was; but 
it was a p·eat pity that before a man was 
thought worthy of a testimonial, he must set 
at defiance the laws of decency. He hoped 
the honorable member for Kennedy would 
withdraw his resolutions, as he·would notlike 
to see them put to the vote ; he would not 
like to vote against the Government under 
the circumstances in which they were placecl. 
He was very glad that the matter had been 
brought fonmrd. 

M.r. Jl.lACROSSAN, in reply, said he rose to 
say a few words, and was sorry that the 
honorable member for X ormrmby >vas not in 
his place, as he would then have said a few 
words to thathonorable member. He wished 
to reply to some of the rema1·ks of tho honor-
a blc :Minister for Works, in rC'gard to tlw 
mannC'r in which that honorable gentleman 
had spoken of the police, who had knmn, 
what the reserve was very wrll indeeLl. If 
Mr. "\\'hish or Mr. Ramsay wanted any in­
forma~ion upon the. subject on which they 
were mstructed to mquire, i.hey could nol 
have applied to anyboL1y lwttC'r than the 
police ; but those gentlemen smd that the 
police were unwilling to give anj information, 
Ho that the honorable l\lini,lcr for \Y orb, 
was wrong when he said it was a case got up 
hy them. \Vith regarJ to the testimonial, 
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he might ~ay that he "a·; ou the gd1l 
field at the time :Mr. :1IeDonald wa., di~-

missed, and was about to leave; and he 
could assure the House that the testi­
monial was got up, not for the purpose of 
recording a [ellse of the professional ability 
of that gentleman, bu~ simply to give him a 
sum of money to help him on his >vay home. 
He could assure honorable members that 
many who signed that memorial, signed it 
without knowing what it was, and paid their 
money without knowing what for. That 
memorial could in no way, therefore, be 
acce1Jted as an interpretation of the feelings 
of the people there. He had heard one 
person say that he had signed it without 
reading it, and it had been brought to him­
self, as the editor of a newspaper at Mill­
chester, to sign; but well knowing JYfr. 
JVIcDonald' s character, he had refused to do 
so, although he was asked a second time; so 
that it was no disproof of the charges which 
had been macle by him that day. As to the 
evidence of Collopy, he thought the honor­
ablc 3\iinister for \Yorks hacl treated that 
man very unhandsomely, as there was no 
doubt that, as a policeman, he was the best 
officer in the service ; and he very unwillingly 
gave any evidence against ::Ylr. McDonald. 
The honorable Minister for \Yorks said, it 
was not proved that Wilkie lived in the hut 
after the telegram had been sent to McDonald 
to dismiss him ; but then' was the evidence 
of st:>ven witnesses that he lived in the humpy 
for some time after. He thought, however, 
the matter hacl been discussed sufficiently, 
and in order to ease the consciences of those 
honorable members who could not vote 
against the motion, and did not like to vote 
for it ont of regard to the Government, he 
would, with the permisoion of the House, now 
withdra>Y it. 

1\Iotion, by leaYe, withdrawn. 

ROCKHAMPTON GAS COMPANY'S BILL. 
:l\fr. GRAHAM moved-
That ihis Bill be now read a ~econd tinE'. 

He might inform honorable members that. the 
object of the Bill was simply to. enable a com· 
pany to supply the town of Rockhampton with 
gaR. A Select Committee had considered the 
matter very carefully, and had made a few 
suggestive amendments in the Bill, which he 
would move when it was in Committee of the 
whole House. 

Question put and passed. 

INSOLVENCY BILL. 
The CoLoNIAL SECRETARY moved the post­

ponement of all other business on the paper, 
with the view of considering the Order of the 
Day for the thiril reading of the Insolvency 
Bill. 

The SPEAKER said the honorablf' member 
had a perfect right to dispose of the Govern­
ment business as he thought proper; but he 
had no control over the private business on 
the paper, hence the motion could not be vut. 

~lr. GnrFFITH submitted that it vms not an 
unu~ual eou1·se to pursue, and in the present 
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instance it was necessary, as if counsel were 
to be heard at the Bar, some tih1e should be 
fixed for their attendance. He had no objec­
tion to amend the motion ; but as to its being 
unusual or irregular, he might say that he re­
collected very well that when the then honor­
able member for Leichhardt had a motion on 
the subject of the appointment of a railway 
commission, which had dropped to the bottom 
of t.he paper, the honorable the Speaker, who 
was then on the floor of the House, supported 
a similar course being adopted to that now 
proposed. If it was ruled out of order, then 
the same objection would apply to Orders of 
the Day Nos. 15 and 16 ; but he believed the 
House vrould agree to it, as it was a matter 
which would only occupy half an hour. 

The SPEAKER said that the order of business 
as laid down on the paper must be strictly ad­
hered to, and no motion such as the present 
could he allow to alter it. 

.Mr. PALMER did not see why any business 
should take precedence simply to suit the per­
sonal convenience of anybody-even if they 
were judges of the District Court. If it 
was in the ordinary course of business he 
should have no objection. 

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL thought it was 
hardly a private matter, as it was in connPc­
tion with the business of the country. 

JYir. J. ScoTT thought the honorable mem­
bers opposite should fix upon a day when 
there was no business on the paper. 

:Yir. GRrFFirfi would then name Friday, 
the 22nd instant. 

The CoLONIAL SECRETARY said he under­
stood that tlw Insolvency Bill was down for 
the third reading that day, and he would 
ask, what there was to prevent counsel being 
heard at tho Bar at once? ' 

The SPEAKER said the only difficulty was 
that such a motion would disarrange the 
order of business, of which the hmiorable 
the Premier was not in charge. He might 
further point out· to the honorable mem­
ber that there was a motion on the sub­
ject standing in the name of the honorable 
Attorney-General. 

The ATTORNEY-GENER.AL: Hear, hear. 
Nrr. GnrFFITH said if honorable members 

would consent to sit five minutes longer they 
would come to that motion in the ordinary 
way. 

The OrdPr of the Day for the third reading 
of this Bill being called, 

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL moved, as a con­
tingent motion-

That Eclmuncl Shepherd ancl William IIcmv 
Abbott Hirst have leave to be heard by eounsei, 
at the Bar of the House, with reference to this 
Bill. 

'l'he J uclges of the District Court had peti­
tioned to be so heard, and thPy could be 
heard at half-past three next day. 

Mr. PECHEY said he did not think it was 
exactly fair to put back other busines;; on 
the paper in order that those gentlemen 
should be heard by counsel. Honorable nwm-
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bers did not know how long the legal gentle­
man might be who would appem· for the 
judges. And he could not see why the judges 
should not come themselves to the Bar, in-

'· stead of being represented by counsel. The 
' House should hear them in propria pPrsona. 

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: He knew that 
both the judges ought to be about their 
duties; but one had 'spoken to him for leave 
of absence on account of illness. He thought 
it would shorten the proceeding and conveni­
ence the House if their honors should bo 
heard by counsel, as he had proposed. It 
would not take twenty minutes or half-an­
hour. Anyone interested in a Bill before the 
House who wished to be heard, should be 
heard. 

l\fr. GRIFFITH observed that, as the Colo­
nial Secretary had given notice for the 
adjournment of the House over next '\Yeek, 
he f'hould be willing to postpone the third 
reading of the Bill until next day, to enable 
the judges to be heard at the Bar before the 
Bill was passed. Counsel would not occupy 
long at the Bar; and it would be a conveni­
ence to decide now when counsel should be 
heard on behalf of the judges . 

.;\fr. PETTIGREW said he thought it was 
asking too much that the business of honor­
able members should give precedence to the 

1 gentlemen who had petitioned to be heard. 
Let them go to the Attorney.General. 'l.'wo 
barristers in the House were enough. 

Question put and negatived. 
On the motion of Mr. GmFFITH, the Bill 

was read a third time and passed. 




